
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 78, Zoning Code as follows:  Amend Section 78-611, Repeal and Remove Table 


78-611 and Repeal and Recreate Appendix B of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee 


Action:    


Plan Commission recommends approval 7 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-9- 2021 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


March 23, 2021 


April 13, 2021 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Amend Sec. 78-611 – Classification of plant species.   


For the purpose of this chapter, plant materials are classified into 13 groupings: "climax tree", 


"tall deciduous tree", "medium deciduous tree", "low deciduous tree", "tall evergreen tree", 


"medium evergreen tree", "low evergreen tree", "tall deciduous shrub", "medium deciduous 


shrub", "low deciduous shrub", "medium evergreen shrub", "low evergreen shrub", and non-


contributory plants. Species suitable for landscaping use and compatible with Dane County 


climate and soil factors are listed in Table 78-611 Appendix B, below. The zoning 


administrator City Forester and/or City Tree Commission shall review proposals for, and the 


applicability of, species not contained in this list and is authorized to approve appropriate 


similar species. See Appendix B for a very detailed listing of plant species and characteristics. 


 


2. Repeal and Remove Table 78-611: Classification of Plants  


 


Climax Trees  


(75 Landscaping Points)  


 Low Deciduous Trees  


(10 Landscaping Points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name   Botanical Name  Common Name  


Acer saccharum  Sugar Maple   Amelanchier sp.  Serviceberry  


Ginkgo biloba  Ginko  
 


Crataegus sp.  
Hawthorn: Cockspur, Downy, 


Washington  


Quercus sp.  Oak: Red, White, Pin   Malus sp.  Crabapple sp.  


Tall Deciduous Trees  


(30 Landscaping Points)  


 Tall Evergreen Trees  


(40 Landscaping Points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name   Botanical Name  Common Name  


Acer sp.  Maple: Red, Silver   Abies concolor  White Fir  


Gleditsia 


triancanthos  
Honeylocust  


 
Pinus sp.  Pine: Red, White, Scots  


Populus 


grandidentata  
Bigtooth Aspen  


 
Tsuga Canadensis  Canada Hemlock  


Tilia sp  Linden: Basswood, Littleleaf, Redmond     







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


Medium Deciduous Trees  


(15 Landscaping Points)  


 Medium Evergreen Trees  


(20 Landscaping Points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name   Botanical Name  Common Name  


Betula sp.  Birch: River, Paper   Thuja occidentalis  American Arborvitae  


Prunus sp.  Cherry: Choke, Pin     


Salix sp.  Willow     


Low Evergreen Trees  


(12 Landscaping Points)  


 Low Deciduous Shrubs  


(1 Landscaping Point)  


Botanical Name  Common Name   Botanical Name  Common Name  


Juniperus sp.  Juniper: Mountbatten, Redcedar  
 Berberis 


thunbergii  
Japanese Barberry  


Thuja sp.  Arborvitae: Pyramidal, Techny   Spiraea sp.  Spirea: Froebel, Snowmound  


Tall Deciduous Shrubs  


(5 Landscaping Points)  


 Tall-Medium Evergreen Shrubs  


(5 Landscaping Points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name   Botanical Name  Common Name  


Cornus sp.  Dogwood: Grey, Pagoda  
 Juniperus 


chinensis  
Juniper: Pfitzer  


Syringa sp.  Lilac: Chinese, Hyacinth   Taxus sp.  Yew: Japanese  


Viburnum sp.  
Viburnum: Arrowwood, Wayfaringtree, 


Nannyberry  


 
  


Medium Deciduous Shrubs  


(3 Landscaping Points)  


 Low Evergreen Shrubs  


(3 Landscaping Points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name   Botanical Name  Common Name  


Corylus americana  American Filbert, Hazelnut   Juniperus sp.  Juniper: Sargent, Creeping, Andorra  


Cotoneaster sp.  Cotoneaster     


Forsynthia sp  Forsythia: Border, Early, Weeping     


Rosa sp.  Rose: Virgina, Rugosa     


 


3. Repeal and Recreate Appendix B Landscaping Charts 


 


APPENDIX B  LANDSCAPING CHARTS AND CHECKLISTS 


Detailed Classification of Plant Species  


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Climax Trees (75 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  
Common 


Name  


Growth  


Rate  
Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


*Acer saccharum 
RF  Sugar Maple  S  Round  


Rich soil; salt-sensitive; oval when young; yellow, orange or scarlet 


fall color.  


"Green Mountain"  Scorch-resistant; leathery leaves.  


*Carya ovata RF  
Shagbark 


Hickory  
  Native and very adaptable, salt-sensitive, fruit-nut, lawn tree.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Ginkgo bilboa  Ginkgo  


S  


Pyramidal  
Very urban, dioecious, females produce smelly fruits, golden yellow 


fall color.  


"Fastigiata"  
Sentry 


Ginkgo  
Columnar  Seedless.  


Juglans nigra RF  


Walnut  


Eastern 


Walnut  


Black 


Walnut  


F   


Best in public open spaces or lawns; not to be used as a street tree; 


poisonous to other plants within the drip zone; susceptible to 


caterpillars and leaf-spot disease.  


*Quercus alba RF  White Oak  S  Round  


Extremely sensitive to soil compaction; tolerant of urban conditions; 


dry soil; subject to iron chlorosis; red fall color; very difficult to 


transplant; excellent lawn or shade tree.  


*Quercus bicolor 
RF  


Swamp 


White Oak  
S  Round  


Very tolerant of urban conditions; moist to wet, intolerant of alkaline 


soil; tolerates poor drainage; difficult to transplant; yellow fall color.  


*Quercus 


macrocarpa RF  


Bur Oak  


Mossycup 


Oak  


S  Round  
Sensitive to soil compaction; tolerant of urban conditions; dry to wet 


soil; no fall color; very difficult to transplant.  


*Quercus palustris  Pin Oak  M  Pyramidal  


Sensitive to soil compaction; tolerant of urban conditions; moist, acid 


soil; pendulous lower branches; red fall color; iron chlorosis on 


alkaline soil; lawn tree; cultivar "Sovereign" best for streets.  


*Quercus rubra RF  


(also known as 


Quercus Borealis)  


Northern 


Red Oak  


Red Oak  


M  Round  


Sensitive to soil compaction; tolerant of urban conditions; pyramidal 


when young; red fall color; well-drained soil; fast-growing for oaks; 


excellent lawn, shade, and street tree.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native   S=Slow   M=Medium   F=Fast  


    


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Tall Deciduous Trees (30 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  
Growth  


Rate  
Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


Acer nigrum  Black Maple  M  Oval  
Does well in poor, dry soils; red to bright gold fall color; 


excellent for lawn, shade, or street.  


*Acer rubrum RF  


   


   


Red Maple  


Scarlet Maple  


Swamp Maple  


   


   


   


F  


Round  
Moist, acid soil; tolerates poor drainage; smooth gray bark; 


yellow, orange, or red fall color; salt-sensitive.  


"Armstrong"  Fastigiate  No fall color; light gray bark.  


"Autumn Flame"   Early scarlet fall color.  


"Bowhall"  Oval  Orange fall color  


"Red Sunset"   Late, scarlet fall color.  


"Schlesingeri"   Red-orange fall color.  


*Acer saccharinum 
RF  


Silver Maple  


Soft Maple  


White Maple  


River Maple  


F  Vase  


Heart and fast-growing; most soil; tolerates poor drainage; 


fine-textured; weak-wooded (develops heart rots after fifty 


years, limbs may fall); yellowish or no fall color  


"Blair"   
Very 


Fast  
 Strong branch structure; storm-resistant.  


"Pyramidale"  
Upright Silver 


Maple  
 Pyramidal  Improved branch structure.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


"Silver Queen"  
Seedless Sugar 


Maple  
 Round  Seedless  


"Wieri"  
Cutleaf Sugar 


Maple  
  Shredded leaves; pendulous branches.  


Aesculus hippocas 


tanum  
Horsechestnut  M  Round  


Urban; course; showy, white May flowers; litter problem; no 


fall color; difficult to transplant; pest or disease problems may 


limit use.  


Alnus glutinosa  
European Alder  


Black Alder  
F  Oval  Rich or wet soils; produces catkins; possible winterkill.  


Betula lutea RF  Yellow Birch  M  Round  
Drooping branches; moist well-drained soils; yellow-orange 


bark; rusty yellow fall color.  


Catalpa speciosa  
Northern 


Catalpa  
F  Oval  


Poor, dry soil; showy, white June flowers; coarse; litter 


problem; no fall color.  


*Celtis occidentalis 
RF  


Common 


Hackberry  
M  Vase  


Tolerates alkaline soils; "pebbled" bark; yellowish fall color; 


pest or disease problem may limit use.  


*Fagus grandifolia 
RF  


American Beech  S  Oval  


Moist, rich soil; smooth, gray bark; yellow-bronze fall color; 


difficult to transplant; salt-sensitive; sensitive to soil 


compaction.  


Fagus sylvatica  European Beech  S  Round  
Moist, rich soil; less difficult to transplant than American 


Beech; several cultivars available; excellent lawn tree.  


*Gleditsia 


triancanthos 


inermius  


   


   


Thornless  


Honeylocust  


F  


Vase  


Tolerates poor drainage; thornless, as are all of the following; 


pest or disease problem may limit use; salt-tolerant; yellow 


fall color.  


"Imperial"  Round  
Podless; low-growing; flat-topped; pest or disease problem 


may limit use.  


"Shademaster"  Irregular  
Podless; vase shape in age; pest or disease problem may limit 


use.  


"Skyline"  Upright  
Podless; tends to form central leader; good golden fall color; 


pest or disease problem may limit use.  


"Sunburst"  Irregular  
Podless; yellow new foliage; poor branch structure; pest or 


disease problem may limit use.  


*Gymnocladus 


dioica  


Kentucky 


Coffeetree  
M  Upright  


Moist, rich soil; coarse and rugged; dioecious; yellowish fall 


color.  


Juglans cinerea RF  Butternut  S   
Needs good soil and consistent moisture; fairly good shade 


tree; susceptible to butternut decline.  


Larix decidua  
European Larch  F  


Pyramidal  
Full sun; graceful, fine-textured; transplant in spring before 


buds open; yellow fall color.  


"Pendula"   Interesting weeping branches.  


Larix kaempferi  Japanese Larch  F  
Wide-


Pyramidal  
Similar to European Larch, more picturesque.  


Larix laricina RF  
American Larch  


Tamarack  
M  


Narrow-


Pyramidal  
Hardy; drought tolerant; used in shelterbelts.  


Liriodendron 


tulipifera  
Tuliptree  F  Upright  


Rich, moist soil; unique leaves and interesting June flowers; 


yellow fall color; purchase from northern source.  


*Platanus 


occidentalis  


Sycamore  


American 


Planetree  


F  Pryamidal  


Moist soil; tolerates poor drainage; mottled bark; coarse, 


maple-like leaves; no fall color; pest or disease problem may 


limit use.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Populus alba  


"Pyramidalis"  
White Poplar  F  Fastigate  


Moist soil; tolerates poor drainage; mottled bark; coarse, 


maple-like leaves; no fall color; pest or disease problem may 


limit use.  


Populus deltoides RF  


   


Eastern Poplar  


Very 


fast  


Fastigiate  
Hardy, fast growing; golden yellow fall color; tolerates 


drought; brittle; may produce "cotton"; too large for homes.  


"Robusta"  Upright  Seedless.  


"Siouxland"   Larger greener leaves; seedless; uniform in shape; hardy.  


"Cottonless"   Seedless; many similar species available.  


Populus grandi-  


dentata RF  


Bigtooth  


Aspen  
F  Narrow  


Moist, sandy, gravelly soils; not shade tolerant; yellow fall 


color.  


*Prunus serotina RF  Black Cherry  M  Oval  
Dry soil; white flowers and black fruits in drooping racemes; 


orange fall color; pest or disease problem may limit use.  


Taxodium distichum  Baldcypress  F  Pyramidal  
Moist, intolerant of alkaline soil; tolerates poor drainage; sun; 


bronze fall color; fine texture; purchase from northern source.  


*Tilia americana RF  


American 


Linden  


Basswood  


Linden Tree  


Linn Tree  


M  Round  Sensitive to soil compaction; salt-sensitive; coarse; rich soils.  


Tilia cordata  
   


Littleleaf 


Linden  


   


S  


   


Pyramidal  


Urban; moist soil; fragrant flowers; poor branch structure, 


needs training while young; yellow fall color.  


"Chancellor"  Uniform, upright habit.  


"Greenspire"  Improved branching habit.  


Tilia x euchlora  


"Redmond"  


Redmond 


Linden  
M  Pyramidal  Urban; dark green foliage.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  S=Slow   M=Medium   F=Fast  


    


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Medium Deciduous Trees (15 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  
Growth  


Rate  
Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


Aesculus x carnea  


"Briotii"  


Ruby Horsechest-  


nut  
S  Round  Rich, most soil; red flowers.  


Aesculus glabra  Ohio Buckeye  S  Round  Rich, moist soil; yellow-green flowers; orange fall color.  


Alnus glutinosa  European Alder  F  Oval  
Wet; tolerates poor drainage; catkins; cone fruits; no fall 


color.  


*Betula nigra RF  River Birch  M  Vase  
Wet to dry, intolerant of alkaline soils; tolerates poor 


drainage; pinkish, peeling bark.  


*Betula papyifera RF  Paper Birch  M  Oval  
Cool, moist soil; white, peeling bark; golden yellow fall 


color; pest or disease problem.  


Betula pendula  


"Gracilis"  


Cutleaf European 


Birch  
M  Weeping  


Cool, moist soil; dissected leaves; yellow fall color; pests & 


disease.  


Betula platyphylla 


japonica  


Japanese White 


Birch  
M  Pyramidal  White bark; some resistance to bronze birch borer.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


Cercidiphyllum 


japonicum  
Katsuratree  M  Columnar  


Moist soil; dioecious; form controlled by pruning, wide 


spreading if multi-trunked; yellow to red fall color.  


Cladrastis lutea  
American 


Yellowwood  
S  Round  


Moist, rich soil; smooth, light gray bark; fragrant, white June 


flowers in large clusters; yellow fall color.  


Magnolia acuminata  Cucumbertree  F  Pyramidal  
Inconspicuous, greenish flowers; pink to red fruits; coarse 


foliage; no fall color.  


*Nyssa sylvatica  Black Gum  S  Pyramidal  
Moist soil; tolerates poor drainage; dense habit; dioecious; 


orange to scarlet fall color; difficult to transplant.  


Phellodendron 


amurense  
Amur Corktree  M  Round  


Urban; dry soil; dioecious; compound leaves; corky bark; 


yellow fall color.  


Prunus maackii  Amur Chokecherry  M  Round  Amber exfoliating bark; does well in containers.  


Prunus padus 


commutata  


Harbinger  


European Bird  


Cherry  


S  Round  Sun; early to leaf out in spring; pest or disease problem.  


*Prunus pennsyl-  


vanica RF  
Pin Cherry  M  Upright  


Poor, dry soil; sun; graceful; shortlived; suckering; red fruits; 


orange to red fall color.  


Prunus sargentii  Sargent Cherry  M  Upright  Sun, well-drained soil; early, pink flowers; red fall color.  


Salix alba tristis  
Golden Weeping 


Willow  
F  Weeping  


Wet soil; tolerates poor drainage; bright yellow twigs; fine-


textured; litter problem.  


Ulmus parvifolia  Chinese Elm  M  Vase  Disease resistant; exfoliating bark.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native   S=Slow   M=Medium   F=Fast  


    


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Low Deciduous Trees (10 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  
Growth  


Rate  
Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


Acer ginnala  Amur Maple  M  Round  Sun, shade; red fruit; red fall color.  


*Alnus rugosa  Speckled Alder  F  Round  Wet soil; tolerates poor soil; lenticeled bark.  


*Amelanchier 


arborea RF  
Downy Serviceberry  S  Upright  


Dry soil; shade; gray bark; white flowers; yellow to 


red fall color; edible fruits.  


Amelanchier x 


grandiflora  
Apple Serviceberry  S  Spreading  Semi-shade; large, white flowers, edible fruits.  


*Amelanchier 


laevis  
Allegany Serviceberry  S  Upright  


Moist soil; shade; white flowers; orange to red fall 


color, edible fruits.  


*Carpinus 


caroliniana RF  
American Hornbeam  S  Spreading  


Moist soil; shade; smooth, gray muscle-like trunks; 


orange fall color.  


Cercis canadensis  Eastern Redbud  M  Spreading  
Sun or shade; purplish-pink flowers; yellow fall color; 


purchase form northern source.  


*Cornus 


alternifolia  
Pagoda Dogwood  M  Spreading  


Cool, moist soil; shade; blue-black berries on red 


stalks; early, maroon fall color.  


*Crataegus crus-


galli  


"Inermis"  


Thornless Cockspur 


Hawthorn  
 Spreading  


Urban; sun; persistent, brick red fruits; orange to red 


fall color; no thorns.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Crataegus laevigata  


"Paulii"  
Paul's Scarlet Hawthorn  


S  Upright  


Heavy soil; sun; double, scarlet flowers in late May; 


no fall color; pest or disease problem.  


"Superba"  
Crimson Cloud 


Hawthorn  
Single, scarlet flowers; resistant to leaf spot.  


Crataegus x lavallei  Lavalle Hawthorn  S  Upright  Urban; sun; glossy foliage; bronzy-red fall color.  


*Crataegus mollis  Downy Hawthorn  S  Upright  
Sun; large, red, early-ripening fruit; yellow fall color; 


pest or disease problem.  


Crataegus 


phaenopyrum  
Washington Hawthorn  M  Upright  


Urban; sun; latest blooming; small, persistent, orange-


red fruits in clusters; orange fall color.  


*Crataegus 


punctata  
Dotted Hawthorn  S  Spreading  


Moist, heavy soil; sun; picturesque; pest or disease 


problem may limit use.  


Crataegus x "Toba"  Toba Hawthorn  S   
Sun; double, pink, fragrant flowers; glossy leaves; red 


fruits; dwarf-15.  


Elaeagnus 


angustifolia  
Russianolive  F  Round  


Dry, alkaline soil; sun; fragrant, inconspicuous 


flowers; silver-gray foliage; no fall color; pest or 


disease problem may limit use.  


Magnolia x 


loebneri  


"Merrill"  


Dr. Merrill Magnolia  M  Pyramidal  
Rich soil; sun; white, many-petaled flowers; difficult 


to transplant.  


Magnolia x 


soulangiana  
Saucer Magnolia  S  Round  


Rich soil; sun; large pink flowers; difficult to 


transplant.  


Malus species & 


cultivars  
Flowering Crabapples    


All require sun and well-drained soil. They all possess 


a high degree of resistance to the apple scab disease.  


Malus "Adams"  
Adams Flowering 


Crabtree  
M  Spreading  


Slightly susceptible to fire blight; rose-red flowers; 


5/8" diam., persistent, deep red fruits.  


Malus baccata 


jackii  
Jack Flowering Crabtree  M  


Upright 


spreading  


Slightly susceptible to fire blight; white flowers; tiny 


1/3-1/2"diam., dark red fruits.  


Malus "Bob White"  
Bob White Flowering 


Crabtree  
M  Rounded  


Moderately susceptible to fire blight; white flowers; 


5/8" diam., persistent, yellow fruits.  


Malus "Candied 


Apple"  


Weeping Candied Apple 


Flowering Crabtree  
 Weeping  


Slightly susceptible to scab; pink flowers; 5/8" diam., 


persistent cherry-red fruits; foliage tinged with red.  


Malus "Centurian"  
Centurian Flowering 


Crabtree  
 


Narrow-


Upright  


Disease resistant; rose-red flowers; 5/8" diam., 


persistent, cherry-red fruits.  


Malus "David"  
David Flowering 


Crabapple  
M  Rounded  


Slightly susceptible to fire blight and scab; white 


flowers; 1/4-1 1/2" diam., reddish fruits for in 


alternate years.  


Malus "Dolgo"  
Dolgo Flowering 


Crabtree  
M  


Upright-


Spreading  


Slightly susceptible to fire blight and scab; white 


flowers; 1 1/4-1 1/2" diam., persistent red fruits.  


Malus "Donald 


Wyman"  


Donald Wyman 


Flowering Crabtree  
M  Rounded  


Disease-resistant; white flowers; 3/8" diam.; 


persistent red fruits.  


Malus "Dorothea"  
Dorothea Flowering 


Crabtree  
S  Horizontal  


Moderately susceptible to scab; clear pink semi-


double flowers; 1/2" diam., yellow fruits.  


Malus "Gibb's 


Golden Gage"  


Gibb's Golden Gage 


Flowering Crabtree  
 Rounded  


Disease resistant; white flowers; 1" diam., persistent, 


yellow fruits.  


Malus "Indian 


Summer"  


Indian Summer 


Flowering Crabtree  
 Rounded  


Disease resistant; rose-red flowers; 5/8-3/4" diam., 


red fruits.  


Malus "Mary 


Potter"  


Mary Potter Flowering 


Crabtree  
S  Horizontal  


Moderately susceptible to fire blight and scab; white 


flowers; 1/2" diam., red fruits; 10' height.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


Malus "Ormiston 


Roy"  


Ormiston Roy 


Flowering Crabtree  
M  Rounded  


Slightly susceptible to fire blight; white flowers, 3/8" 


diam., persistent, yellow fruits.  


Malus "Profusion"  
Profusion Flowering 


Crabtree  
M  


Rounded-


Spreading  


Slightly susceptible to fire blight; rose-red flowers; 


1/2" diam., deep red fruits; bronze-green foliage.  


Malus "Red Jewel"  
Red Jewel Flowering 


Crabtree  
 Horizontal  


Moderately susceptible to scab; white flowers; 1/2" 


diam., persistent, bright red fruits.  


Malus "Robinson"  
Robinson Flowering 


Crabtree  
 


Upright-


Spreading  


Disease resistant; rose-red flowers; 3/8" diam, 


persistent, bright red fruits, bronze-green foliage.  


Malus "Sentinel"  
Sentinel Flowering 


Crabtree  
 


Narrow-


upright  


Slightly susceptible to fire blight and scab; pale pink 


flowers; 1/2" diam., persistent, bright red fruits.  


Malus "White 


Cascade"  


White Cascade 


Flowering Crabtree  
S  Weeping  


Disease resistant; white flowers, 1/2" diam., yellowish 


fruits.  


*Ostrya virginiana 
RF  


Hophornbeam  S  Pyramidal  
Dry soil; shade; catkins; elm-like leaves; yellow fall 


color.  


*Prunus americana 
RF  


American Plum  F  Horizontal  
Dry soil; sun; suckering habit; white flowers; yellow 


to orange fall color.  


Prunus cerasifera 


"Newportii"  
Newport Plum  M  Round  Sun; reddish-purple summer foliage.  


*Prunus virginiana 
RF  


Chokecherry  


M  Upright  


Dry, infertile soil; suckering habit; white flowers; 


yellow to orange fall color.  


"Canada Red" or 


"Shubert"  
Shubert Chokecherry  


Sun; foliage changes from green to purple in early 


summer.  


Pyrus calleryana 


and cultivars  
Callery Pear  M  Oval  Sun; early, white flowers; late red fall color.  


Saliz matsudana 


"Tortuosa"  


Corkscrew or Contorted 


Willow  
F  Upright  


Wet soil; tolerates poor drainage; sun; twisted 


branches; pest or disease problem may limit use.  


Saliz pentandra  Laurel Willow  M  Round  Wet soil; sun; foliage glossy, dark green; dense habit.  


Sorbus alnifolia  Korean Mountainash  S  Oval  
Cool soil; simple leaves; small flowers and fruits; 


orange to red fall color; pest or disease problem.  


Sorbus aucuparia 


and cultivars  
European Mountainash  M  Oval  Cool soil; orange fruits; pest or disease problem  


*Sorbus decora  Showy Mountainash  S  Upright  
Cool Soil; large, reddish fruits; pest or disease 


problem.  


Syringa reticulata  Japanese Tree Lilac  S  Horizontal  
Sun; large, pyramidal, cream-white flower clusters in 


June; tan fruits.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native   S=Slow   M=Medium   F=Fast  


  


 


 


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Tall Evergreen Trees (40 landscaping points)  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Botanical Name  Common Name  
Growth  


Rate  
Height  Adaptation and Remarks  


Abies concolor  White Fur  M  70'  Dry soil; heat; gray-green foliage.  


Picea abies  Norway Spruce  F  75'  Deep soil; dark green foliage; long cones; pendulous branchlets.  


*Picea glauca RF  White Spruce  M  50'  Moist soil; sun; light green needles.  


Picea omorika  Serbian Spruce  S  50'  Sun; narrow habit; pendulous branchlets.  


Picea pungens 


glauca  


Blue Colorado 


Spruce  
S  60'  Sun; urban; blue needles; stiff, formal habit.  


Pinus cembra  Swiss Stone Pine  S  50'  Sun; narrow habit.  


Pinus nigra  Austrian pine  M  50'  Sun; urban; stout, dark green needles, pest or disease problem.  


*Pinus resinosa RF  Red Pine  F  50'  Dry soil; sun; reddish bark; yellow-green winter color.  


*Pinus strobus RF  Eastern White Pine  M  75'  
Moist soil; sun; picturesque; soft, green foliage, pest or disease 


problem.  


Pinus sylvestris  Scots Pine  F  50'  Dry soil; sun; orange bark; bluish needles.  


Pseudotsuga 


menziesii  
Douglas Fir  M  70'  Half-shade; flat, dark green needles.  


*Tsuga  


Canadensis RF  
Canada Hemlock  M  75'  Moist soil; soft, feathery foliage.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  S=Slow  M=Medium  F=Fast  


    


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Medium Evergreen Trees (20 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  
Growth  


Rate  
Height  Adaptation and Remarks  


*Thuja  


occidentalis RF  
American Arborvitae  M  40'  Wet soil; half-shade; light green, soft, scale-like foliage.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  S=Slow   M=Medium   F=Fast  


    


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Low Evergreen Trees (12 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  
Growth  


Rate  
Height  Adaptation and Remarks  


Juniperus chinnensis 


"Keteleeri"  
Keteleer Juniper  S  20'  Dry soil; sun; green foliage; large fruits.  


Juniperus chinnensis 


"Mountbatten  
Mountbatten Juniper  S  20'  Dry soil; sun; narrow, columnar form; large fruits.  


* Juniperus virginiana RF  Eastern Red Cedar  


S  20'  


Dry soil; sun; brownish winter color.  


"Burkii"  
Burke Eastern Red 


Cedar  
Fine-textured, gray-green foliage.  


"Canaertii"  
Canaert Eastern Red 


Cedar  
Dark green, tufted foliage.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


"Glauca"  
Silver Eastern Red 


Cedar  
Silver-gray foliage; informal habit.  


"Hillii"  
Hill Dundee Eastern Red 


Cedar  
Gray-green foliage turns purple in winter, no fruits.  


*Picea glauca RF  


"Densata"  
Black Hills Spruce  S  20'  Dry soil; sun; narrow, dense habit.  


Taxus cuspidata  Japanese Yew  S  20'  
Shade; urban, deep green needles; often sold as 


Taxus cuspidata "Capitata"  


*Thuja occidentalis RF  


"Fastigiata"  
Pyramidal Arborvitae  M  25'  Narrow columnar form.  


*Thuja occidentalis RF  


"Techny"  
Techny Arborvitae  S  20'  Deep green foliage, year round.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  S=Slow  M=Medium  F=Fast  


  


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Tall Deciduous Shrubs (5 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


*Amelanchier sp.  


(See also low trees)  
Serviceberry  Upright  


Shade; alkaline soil; white flowers; edible purple fruits; 


smooth, gray bark; yellow to orange fall color; fireblight a 


problem.  


Caragana arborescens  Siberian Peashrub  Erect, Oval  Dry, alkaline soils; yellow flowers; green twig.  


Chionanthus virginicus  Fringetree  Spreading  Moist soil; shade; white flowers; blue fruits; coarse.  


*Cornus alternifolia  Pagoda Dogwood  Spreading  
Moist soil; shade; white flowers; blue fruits; horizontal 


branches; early, maroon fall color.  


Cornus mas  
Corneliancherry 


Dogwood  
Oval  


Shade; urban; yellow flowers in April; flower buds may be 


injured or killed during some winters; edible red fruits.  


*Cornus racemosa  Gray Dogwood  Erect  
Dry or wet soils; shade; white flowers; white fruits; purple 


fall color.  


Cornus sericea  Redosier Dogwood  Spreading  
Wet, moist soils; tolerates poor drainage; white flowers; 


white fruits; red twigs; often sold a C. stolonifera.  Cornus sericea baileyi  
Bailey Redosier 


Dogwood  
Erect  


Cotoneaster multiflora  
Manyflowered 


Cotoneaster  
Mounded  


Sun; well-drained soil; white flowers; red fruits; very wide-


spreading; pests/diseases.  


Elaeagnus umbellata  Autumnolive  Spreading  
Poor, dry soil; sun; fragrant flowers; edible, red fruits; 


twiggy.  


Euonymus alata  Winged Euonymus  Spreading  
Sun or shade; well-drained soil; corky, winged twigs; pink 


to rose fall color.  


*Euonymus 


atropurpurea  
Eastern Wahoo  Tree-like  


Moist soil; shade; tiny, purplish flowers; orange to purple 


fall color.  


Euonymus europaea  
Spindletree of European 


Euonymus  
Tree-like  


Dry-soil; urban; striped bark; persistent pink fruit; orange to 


purple fall color.  


"Aldenhamensis"  
Aldenham European 


Euonymus  
 Bright pink fruit; shrubby form  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


"Redcap"  
Redcap European 


Euonymus  
 Bright red fruit.  


Exochorda racemosa  Pearlbush  Leggy  Sun; pearl-like flower buds; tan fruit capsules.  


*Hamamelis virginiana  Common Witchhazel  Spreading  Shade; yellow October flowers.  


Hydrangea paniculata  


"Grandiflora"  
Peegee Hydrangea  Upright  


Moist soil; white to pink flowers in August; persistent, tan 


flower clusters.  


Kolkwitzia amabilis  Beautybush  Upright  
Alkaline soil; sun; pink flowers in June; shredded bark; 


leggy.  


Ligustrum amurense  Amur Privet  Erect  Dry soil; white flowers; black fruits; hedge plant.  


Ligustrum vulgare  


"Cheyenne"  
Cheyenne Privet  Erect  Dry soil; urban; white flowers; black fruits; hedge plant.  


Lonicera x bella  


"Candida"  


White Belle 


Honeysuckle  


Upright-


mounded  


Dry soil; white flowers; red fruits; may become weedy, pest 


problem.  


Lonicera tatarica 


zabelii  
Zabel Honeysuckle  Rounded  


Dry soil; urban; red flowers; dense, red fruits; may become 


weedy, pest or disease problem, may be sold as L. 


korolkowii zabelii.  


Magnolia stellata  Star Magnolia  Rounded  
Rich soil; white flowers; orange fruits; finest textured 


magnolia.  


*Physocarpus 


opulifolius  
Eastern Ninebark  Vase  


Dry soil; semi-shade; white flowers; red, capsular fruit; 


shredded bark; course.  


Prunus tomentosa  Manchu Cherry  Rounded  Dry soil; sun; white flowers; edible, red fruits.  


Prunus triloba  Double Flowering Plum  Rounded  Sun; double, pink flowers; no fruit.  


Rhamnus frangula 


"Columnaris"  


Tallhedge Glossy 


Buckthorn  
Columnar  Moist soil; shade; red to black fruits; holds leaves late.  


*Rhus glabra  Smooth Sumac  Suckering  
Dry soil; sun; persistent red fruits; smooth stems; scarlet fall 


color.  


Rhus typhina  Staghorn Sumac  Suckering  
Dry soil; sun; persistent red fruits; felty stems; orange to red 


fall color.  


Rhus typhina 


"Dissecta"  


Shredleaf Staghorn 


Sumac  
Picturesque  


Dry soil; sun; red fruits; dissected leaves, orange to red in 


fall.  


Salix caprea  
Goat Willow or French 


Pussy Willow  
Oval  Wet or dry soil; sun; large silver catkins in early spring.  


Shepherdia argentea  Buffaloberry  Irregular  
Dry soil; sun; yellowish flowers; dioecious; edible red 


fruits; silvery foliage.  


*Staphylea trifolia  American Bladdernut  Upright  
Moist soil; shade; whitish flowers; green to brown, bladder-


like fruits; white-striped bark.  


Syringa x chinensis  Chinese Lilac  Vase  Dry, alkaline soil; purple-lilac flowers; fine texture.  


Syringa x 


hyacinthiflora cvs.  
Hyacinth Lilacs  Upright  Sun; white, pink, lilac, purple flowers; early blooming.  


Syringa x prestoniae 


cvs.  
Preston Lilacs  Rounded  Sun; pink to purple flowers; late-blooming; coarse textured.  


Syringa reticulata  Japanese Tree Lilac  Tree-like  
Sun; white flowers in June; tan fruits; cherry-like bark; 


often sold as S. amurensis japonica.  


Syringa vulgaris cvs  Common Lilac  Upright  
Well-drained soil; sun; white, pink, lilac, purple, fragrant 


flowers; pest or disease problem may limit use.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


Tamarix ramosissima  Tamarisk  Irregular  
Dry soil; sun; tiny, pink flowers; very fine texture; often 


sold as T. pentandra.  


Viburnum dentatum  Arrowwood Viburnum  Vase  
Moist soil; shade; white flowers in June; blue fruits; maroon 


fall color.  


Viburnum lantana  
Wayfaringtree 


Viburnum  
Upright  


Dry soil; shade; white flowers; red to black fruits; late 


maroon fall color.  


*Viburnum lentago  Nannyberry Viburnum  Upright  
Moist or dry soil; sun or shade; white flowers; black fruits; 


leggy; maroon fall color; pest or disease problem.  


*Viburnum 


prunifolium  
Blackhaw Viburnum  Spreading  


Dry soil; shade; white flowers; black fruits; single or multi-


trunked; maroon fall color.  


Viburnum sieboldii  Siebold Vibernum  Tree-like  
Rich soil; white flowers; red to black fruits; large, coarse 


leaves.  


Vibernum trilobum  


American 


Cranberrybush 


Vibernum  


Upright  
Moist soil; shade; lacy, white flowers; persistent, edible 


fruits.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  


  


   


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Medium Deciduous Shrubs (3 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


Aronia arbutifolia  Red Chokeberry  Erect  
Wet soil; shade; tolerates poor drainage; white flowers; red 


fruits; red fall color.  


Cornus alba 


"Argenteomarginata"  


Creamedge 


Dogwood  
Mounded  Moist soil; white flowers; white fruit; variegated foliage.  


*Corylus americana  
American Filbert 


or Hazelnut  
Rounded  Dry soil; shade; catkins in March; orange fall color.  


Cotoneaster divaricatus  
Spreading 


Cotoneaster  
Mounded  


Dry alkaline soil; red fruits; fine texture; late maroon fall 


color; not fully hardy in zone indicated-needs a special site or 


ideal conditions.  


Cotoneaster lucidus  Hedge Cotoneaster  Upright  
Dry soil; shade; black fruits; orange to maroon fall color; 


good hedge plant; C. acutifolius is similar.  


Euonymus alatus 


"Compacta"  


Dwarf Winged 


Euonymus  
Spreading  Sun or shade; pink and orange fruits; red fall color.  


Forsynthia x intermedia 


cvs.  
Border Forsythia  Vase  


Sun; urban; large, pale to yellow flowers; flower buds may 


be injured or killed at temperatures lower than -14°F.  


Forsythia ovata  Early Forsythia  Mounded  
Sun; urban; smaller, earlier, yellow flowers; flower buds may 


be injured or killed at temperatures lower than -25°F.  


Forsythia suspensa  Weeping Forsythia  Mounded  


Sun; urban; yellow flowers; slender, drooping twigs; flower 


buds may be injured or killed at temperatures lower than -


15°F.  


*Ilex verticillata  Winterberry  Upright  Wet, acid soil; tolerates poor drainage; dioecious; red fruits.  


Ligustrum obtusifolium 


regelianum  


Regel's Border 


Privet  
Spreading  


Dry soil; shade; white flowers; blue-black fruits; late, purple 


fall color.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Malus sargentii "Tina"  Sargent Crabapple  Spreading  Disease resistant; 5' mature height.  


Myrica pensylvanica  Bayberry  Upright  
Dry soil; sun; gray, fragrant fruits; dioecious; semi-


evergreen; suckering.  


Philadelphus x virginalis 


"Glacier"  


Glacier 


Mockorange  
Rounded  Sun; double, white, fragrant flowers.  


Prunus x cistena  
Purple-leaved Sand 


Cherry  
Rounded  Dry soil; sun; white flowers; purple foliage all season.  


Rhodotypos scandens  Jetbead  Spreading  Dry soil; shade; white flowers; sparse red fruits; fine texture.  


Rosa hugonis  Father Hugo Rose  Vase  Poor soil; sun; yellow flowers; sparse red fruits; fine texture.  


Rosa rugosa cvs.  Rugosa Rose  Rounded  
Dry soil; sun; white, yellow, pink, or red flowers; large 


edible red fruits; fall color; wrinkled leaves; tolerant of salt.  


*Rosa setigera  Prairie Rose  
Sprawling-


mounded  


Sun; pink flowers in July; red fruits; orange fall color; can be 


used as a climber.  


Spiraea prunifolia  
Bridalwreath 


Spirea  
Upright  Sun; double, white flowers; orange to red fall color.  


Spiraea thunbergii  Thunberg Spirea  Vase  Sun; white flowers; yellow to orange fall color; fine-textured.  


Spiraea x vanhouttei  Vanhoutte Spirea  Vase  Sun; white flowers; arching branches.  


Syringa meyeri "Palibin"  Palibin Lilac  Rounded  
Sun; purple flowers; dense; fine-textured; good informal 


hedge plant often sold as S. palibiniana.  


Viburnum carlesii.  
Koreanspice 


Viburnum  
Rounded  


Shade; urban; pink to white, fragrant flowers; blue-black 


fruits; red fall color.  


*Viburnum cassinoides  
Witherod 


Viburnum  
Rounded  


Wet, acid soil; tolerates poor drainage; white flowers; pink to 


red to blue fruits; red fall color.  


Weigela florida  
Old-fashioned 


Weigela  
Spreading  Well-drained soil; pink, funnel-shaped flowers.  


Weigela x 'Vanicekii'  Vanicek Weigela  Spreading  Well-drained soil; red flowers.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  


  


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Low Deciduous Shrubs (1 landscaping point)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


Acanthopanax 


sieboldianus  
Fiveleaf Aralia  Upright  


Dry soil; shade; urban; leaves palmately compound; 


thorny.  


*Amelanchier stolonifera  Running Serviceberry  Suckering  
Dry soil; shade; white flowers; edible fruits; orange fall 


color.  


*Aronia melanocarpa  Black Chokeberry  Suckering  
Wet soil; shade; white flowers; black fruits; red fall 


color.  


Berberis thunbergii  Japanese Barberry  Mounded  
Dry soil; shade; red fruits; orange fall color; thorns; good 


hedge plant.  


"Atropurpurea"  Redleaf Japanese Barberry   Sun; red summer foliage.  


"Crimson Pygmy"  Crimson Japanese Barberry  
Low-


mound  
Sun; red summer foliage; 2' tall.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


Buxus microphylla 


koreana  
Korean Littleaf Box  Rounded  Shade; broadleaf evergreen; good hedge plant.  


Chaenomeles japonica 


alpina  


Dwarf Japanese 


Floweringquince  
Spreading  


Dry soil; urban; orange flowers; yellow, edible fruits; 


dense; 1' tall; flower buds may be injured or killed during 


some winters.  


Cotoneaster apiculatus  Cranberry Cotoneaster  Mounded  Dry soil; red fruits; red fall color.  


Deutzia x lemoinei 


"Compacta"  
Compact Lemoine Deutzia  Rounded  Well-drained soil; white flowers.  


*Diervilla lonicera  Dwarf Bushhoneysuckle  Mounded  Dry soil; shade; yellow flowers; good bank cover.  


Forsythia viridissima 


"Bronxensis"  
Bronx Forsythia  


Low-


mound  
Sun; small yellow flowers; fine texture; purple fall color.  


Hydrangea arborescens 


"Annabelle"  
Annabelle Hydrangea  Mounded  


Moist soil; shade; white, clustered flowers; dense; 


blooms on new wood.  


Hydrangea arborescens 


"Grandiflora"  
Snowhill Hydrangea  Mounded  


Smaller flower clusters and less dense than Hydrangea 


arborescens "Annabelle."  


*Hypericum kalmianum  Kalm's St. Johnswort  Rounded  Dry soil; sun; yellow flowers; shiny brown twigs.  


Lonicera x xylosteoides 


"Clavey's Dwarf"  


Clavey's Dwarf 


Honeysuckle  
Rounded  Dense growth; good hedge or screening plant.  


Lonicera xylosteum 


"Nanum"  


Emerald Mound 


Honeysuckle  
Mounded  Lower growing than preceding; 2'-3'.  


Mahonia aquifolium 


"Mayhan"  
Mayhan Oregongrape  Suckering  


Shade; urban; yellow flowers; blue fruits; holly-like 


evergreen foliage; not fully hardy in zone - need special 


site or ideal conditions.  


Philadelphus coronarius 


"Aureus"  
Golden Mockorange  Rounded  Sun; white flowers; yellow summer foliage.  


Philadelphus x lemoinei 


"Mont Blanc"  
Mont Blanc Mockorange  Mounded  Sun; single; white, fragrant flowers; dense.  


Physocarpus opulifolius 


"Nanus"  
Dwarf Common Ninebark  Rounded  


Dry soil; shade; creamy-white flowers; red capsular 


fruits; shredded bark.  


*Potentilla fruticosa cvs.  Bush Cinquefoil  Mounded  
Dry soil; sun; yellow and white flowers; blooms all 


summer.  


Prunus glandulosa 


"Sinensis"  


Pink Dwarf 


Floweringalmond  
Rounded  


Sun; light soil; double, pink flowers; no fruits; narrow 


leaves.  


Rhododendron x 


kosteranum  
Mollis Hybrid Azaleas  Spreading  Moist, acid soil; pink flowers; red fall color.  


Rhododendron x "PJM 


Hybrid"  
PJM Hybrid Rhododendron  Rounded  


Moist, acid soil; shade; lavender flowers; evergreen 


leaves turn purple in autumn.  


*Rhus aromatica  Fragrant Sumac  
Mounded  


Dry soil; sun; red fruits; fragrant foliage; turns orange-


maroon in fall.  


"Gro-Low"  Gro-low Fragrant Sumac  Uniform 2½' height; glossy leaves.  


Ribes alpinum  Alpine Currant  Rounded  Shade; urban; good hedge plant.  


Rosa virginiana  Virginia Rose  Suckering  
Dry soil; pink flowers; red fruits; red stems; good bank 


cover.  


Salix repens argentea  Silver Creeping Willow  Spreading  Moist soil; sun; silvery foliage.  


Spiraea x arguta 


"Compacta"  
Compact Garland Spirea  Mounded  Sun; white flowers; fine texture.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Spiraea x billiardii  Billiard Spirea  Upright  Sun; pink flowers, in July and August.  


Spiraea x bumalda 


"Anthony Waterer"  
Anthony Waterer Spirea  Rounded  Dry soil; sun; raspberry red flowers; unattractive fruits.  


Spiraea x bumalda 


"Froebelii"  
Froebel Spirea  Rounded  


Dry soil; sun; raspberry red flowers; orange to maroon 


fall color.  


Spiraea japonica alpina  Daphne Spirea  
Low-


mound  
Sun; pale pink flowers in July; 10" height.  


Spiraea nipponica 


"Snowmound"  
Snowmound Spirea  Mounded  


Sun; white flowers; blue-green foliage; possible disease 


problem.  


Symphoricarpos rivularis  Snowberry  Vase  
Dry soil; shade; tiny pink flowers; showy white fruits; 


often sold as S. albus laevigatus.  


Symphoricarpos 


orbiculatus  
Indiancurrant Coralberry  Suckering  Dry soil; shade; pink fruits; good bank cover.  


Viburnum opulus 


"Compactum"  


Compact European 


Cranberrybush Viburnum  
Rounded  Shade; white flowers; persistent, red fruit; dense habit.  


Viburnum opulus 


"Nanum"  


Dwarf European 


Cranberrybush Viburnum  
Globe  Shade; no flowers or fruits; twiggy.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  


  


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Tall to Medium Evergreen Shrubs (5 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  Height  Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


Juniperus chinensis      


 "Ames"  Ames Juniper  9'  Broad pyramid  Sun; bluish green foliage.  


 "Blaauw"  Blaauw Juniper  4'  Upright-vase  Sun; grayish blue foliage.  


 "Herzii"  Herz Blue Juniper  15'  
Ascending-


Spreading  
Sun; silvery blue foliage.  


 "Maney"  Maney Juniper  6'  Upright, bushy  Sun; bluish green foliage.  


 "Old Gold"  Old Gold Juniper  4'  Spreading  Sun; green with gold tips.  


 "Pfitzerana"  Pfitzer Juniper  6'  Wide-spreading  Sun; green foliage; no fruits.  


 "Pfitzerana Glauca"  Blue Pfitzer Juniper  5'  Spreading  Sun; blue-gray foliage.  


*Juniperus communis 


depressa  
Oldfield Common Juniper  4'  Spreading  


Dry soil; sun; light green; brownish in 


winter.  


Juniperus sabina "Von 


Ehren"  
Von Ehren Savin Juniper  4'  Spreading  


Dry soil; sun; light green; brownish in 


winter.  


Juniperus squamata 


"Meyeri"  
Meyer Singleseed Juniper  5'  Picturesque  Sun; blue foliage.  


Picea glauca RF "Conica"  Dwarf Alberta Spruce  7'  Pyramidal  
Shelter from winter sun; light green 


foliage.  


Pinus mugo  Mugo Pine  4'  Mounded  Dry soil; sun; green foliage.  


Taxus cuspidata 


"Expansa"  
Spreading Japanese Yew  6'  Spreading  


Shade; urban; dark green foliage; needs 


ideal conditions.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


Taxus cuspidata "Nana"  Dwarf Japanese Yew  4'  Mounded  
Shade; urban very dark green foliage; 


needs ideal conditions.  


Taxus x hunnewelliana  Hunnewell Yew  6'  Spreading  Shade; green  


Taxus x media cvs.  Anglojapanese Yew  1-10'  
Round or 


upright  


Shade; very dark green; needs ideal 


conditions.  


Thuja occidentalis RF 


"Robusta"  
Ware American Arborvitae  8'  Broad Pyramid  


Wet soil; half-shade; dark green foliage. 


Often sold as T.o. "Wareana"  


Thuja occidentalis RF 


"Woodwardii"  


Woodward Globe 


American Arborvitae  
6'  Globe  Wet soil; half-shade; bright green.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  


  


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Low Evergreen Shrubs (3 landscaping points)  


Botanical Name  Common Name  Height  Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


Juniperus chinensis 


procumbens  


Japanese Garden 


Juniper  
2'  Creeping  Sun; blue-green, year-round foliage.  


Juniperus chinensis sargentii  Sargent Juniper  1'  Creeping  Sun; green; or blue-green in cv. "Glauca"  


*Juniperus horizontalis  Creeping Juniper  1'  Creeping  
Dry soil; sun; variable color-brown in 


winter.  


 "Bar Harbor"  Bar Harbor Juniper  8"  Creeping  
Dry soil; sun; bluish green foliage; salty in 


winter.  


 "Douglasii"  Waukegan Juniper  18"  Creeping  Dry soil; sun; steel blue; purplish in winter.  


 "Plumosa"  Andorra Juniper  18"  Radial-creeping  
Dry soil; sun; gray-green; purplish in 


winter.  


 "Prince of Wales"  
Prince of Wales 


Juniper  
4—6"  Prostrate  


Dry soil; sun; bright green; bronzed in 


winter.  


 "Wiltonii"  Blue Rug Juniper  4—6"  Flat-trailing  Dry soil; sun; silvery blue.  


 "Youngstown"  Youngstown Juniper  18"  Radial-creeping  
Dry soil; sun; gray-green; purplish in 


winter.  


Juniperus sabina      


 "Arcadia"  Arcadia Savin Juniper  18"  Low-spreading  Sun; green.  


 "Broadmoor"  
Broadmoor Savin 


Juniper  
2'  Mounded  Sun; soft grayish green; fine textured.  


 "Skandia"  Skandia Savin Juniper  12"  Low-spreading  Sun; grayish blue.  


"Tamariscifolia"  Tamarix Savin Juniper  2'  
Dense, 


spreading  
Sun; bluish green; pest or disease problem.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  


   


Detailed Classification of Plant Species: Non-Contributing Species (0 points)  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Botanical 


Name  
Common Name  


Growth  


Rate  
Form  Adaptation and Remarks  


Acer negundo  Boxelder    Weed tree.  


 Buckthorn    Invasive  


 Crown Vetch    Invasive ground cover; aggressive.  


Crataegus crus-


galli  


Cockspur 


Hawthorn  
S  Spreading  


Urban; sun; persistent, brick red fruits; orange to red fall color; evil 


thorns.  


*Gleditsia 


triacanthos RF  


Common 


Honeylocust  
F  Vase  


Urban; tolerates poor drainage; salt tolerant; dioecious, females 


produce pods; fine-textured foliage; wicked thorns; yellow fall color; 


pest or disease problems may limit use.  


Lonicera x 


bella  


Belle 


Honeysuckle  
  Dry soil, white flowers; red fruits; may become weedy, pest problem.  


Lonicera 


tatarica  


Tatarian 


Honeysuckle  
  


Dry soil; urban, pink to white flowers; dense, red fruits; may become 


weedy, pest or disease problem.  


Lonicera 


morrowi  


Morrow 


Honeysuckle  
  Urban, dense, white flowers, pest and disease problem, weedy.  


 
Purple 


Loosestrife  
  Perennial, common marsh plant, may choke out native plants.  


Rhamnus 


cathartica  


Common 


Buckthorn  
  Becomes weak.  


Rhamnus 


frangula  


Glossy 


Buckthorn  
  Becomes weak.  


KEY: *Wisconsin native  


 RF refers to reforestation. Marked species are native to Wisconsin, and recommended for 


reforestation efforts by the Wisconsin DNR. (See section 78-609.)  


The following sources were used in compiling the preceding lists of plant species:  


Department of Natural Resources. Forest Trees of Wisconsin: How to Know Them. Madison, 
Wisconsin: Department of Natural Resources, 1987.  


Hasselkus, E.R. A Guide to Selecting Landscape Plants for Wisconsin. Madison, Wisconsin: College 
of Agricultural and Life Sciences University of Wisconsin - Extension, Cooperative Extension 
Programs, 1982.  


Hightshoe, Gary L. Native Trees, Shrubs, and Vines for Urban and Rural America: A Planting Design 
Manual for Environmental Designers. New York: Van Nostrand Reinhold, 1988.  


Iowa State University. Landscape Plants for Iowa. Ames, Iowa: Iowa State University 


Cooperative 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


APPENDIX B  LANDSCAPING CHARTS AND CHECKLISTS 


Species suitable for landscaping use and compatible with Dane County climate and soil factors  
 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Betula lutea RF yellow birch Climax Tree 75 


Carya ovata RF shagbark hickory Climax Tree 75 


Catalpa speciosa northern catalpa Climax Tree 75 


Celtis occidentalis RF common hackberry Climax Tree 75 


Ginkgo biloba ginkgo Climax Tree 75 


Larix decidua European larch Climax Tree 75 


Larix kaempferi Japanese larch Climax Tree 75 


Larix laricina RF tamarack Climax Tree 75 


Liriodendron tulipifera tulip tree Climax Tree 75 


Metasequoia glyptostroboides dawn redwood Climax Tree 75 


Platanus occidentalis American sycamore Climax Tree 75 


Platanus x acerfolia London planetree Climax Tree 75 


Taxodium distichum bald cypress Climax Tree 75 


Ulmus hybrids hybrid elm Climax Tree 75 


Ulmus japonica 'Discovery' Discovery Japanese elm Climax Tree 75 


Ulmus wilsoniana 'Prospector' Prospector elm Climax Tree 75 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Aesculus flava yellow buckeye Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Aesculus glabra Ohio buckeye Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Aesculus hippocastanum horse chestnut Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Carya cordiformis RF bitternut hickory Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Carya illinoinensis pecan Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Fagus grandiflora RF american beech Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Fagus sylvatica european beech Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Gleditsia triacanthos f. inermis thornless honey locust Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Gymnocladus diocus Kentucky coffeetree Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Juglans nigra RF black walnut Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Liquidambar styraciflua sweetgum Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Prunus serotina RF black cherry Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Populus deltoides RF Eastern cottonwood Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Populus grandidenta RF big-tooth aspen Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus alba RF white oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus bicolor RF swamp white oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus ellipsoidalis RF northern pin oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus imbricaria shingle oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus macrocarpa RF bur oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus muehlenbergii chinkapin oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus palustris pin oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus robur English oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus rubra RF red oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus x macdenielli Heritage oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Quercus x schuettei swamp-bur hybrid oak Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Styphnolobium japonicum Japanese pagoda-tree Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Tilia americana RF American basswood Tall Deciduous Tree 30 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Aesculus x carnea red horse chestnut Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Betula nigra RF river birch Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Betula papyifera RF white birch Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Betula populifolia grey birch Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Carpinus betulus European hornbeam Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Cercidiphyllum japonicum Katsuratree Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Cladrastis kentukea American yellowwood Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Corylus colurna Turkish filbert Medium Deciduous Tree 15 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Maclura pomifera 'White Shield' osage-orange Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Magnolia acuminata cucumbertree Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Nyssa sylvatica black tupelo Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Ostrya virginiana RF ironwood Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Prunus americana RF Amur chokecherry Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Prunus pennsylvanica RF pin cherry Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Quercus x warei Regal Prince oak Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Salix alba tristis weeping willow Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Tilia cordata littleleaf linden Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Ulmus parvifolia lacebark elm Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Zelkova serrata Japanese zelkova Medium Deciduous Tree 15 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Alnus incana speckled alder Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Amelanchier arborea RF downy serviceberry Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Amelanchier canedensis shadblow serviceberry Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Amelanchier leavis Allegheny serviceberry Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Amelanchier x grandiflora apple serviceberry Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Carpinus caroliniana RF musclewood Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Cersis canadensis eastern redbud Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Cornus alternifolia pagoda dogwood Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Cotinus obovatus American smoketree Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Crataegus crus-galli var. inermis thornless cockspur hawthorn Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Crataegus phaenopyrum Washington hawthorn Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Crataegus viridis Winter King hawthorn Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Maackia amurensis Amur maackia Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Magnolia x loebneri "Merrill" Dr. Merrill magnolia Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Magnolia x soulangiana saucer magnolia Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Malus spp. crabapple and apple Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Parrotia persica Persian parrotia Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Prunus americana RF American plum Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Prunus sargentii Sargent chokecherry Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Prunus virginiana RF chokecherry Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Ptelea trifoliata wafer ash Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Syringa pekinensis Peking lilac Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Syringa reticulata Japanese tree lilac Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Viburnum prunifolium blackhaw viburnum Low Deciduous Tree 10 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Abies balsamea balsam fir Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Abies concolor white fir Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Picea abies Norway spruce Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Picea glauca RF white spruce Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Picea omorika Serbian spruce Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Pinus resinosa RF red pine Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Pinus strobus RF eastern white pine Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Thuja plicata western red cedar Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Tsuga canadensis RF eastern hemlock Tall Evergreen Tree 40 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Juniperus virgiana RF eastern red cedar Medium Evergreen Tree 20 


Pinus bungeana lacebark pine Medium Evergreen Tree 20 


Pinus cembra Swiss stone pine Medium Evergreen Tree 20 


Pinus heldreichii Bosnian pine Medium Evergreen Tree 20 


Pinus koraiensis Korean pine Medium Evergreen Tree 20 


Pinus sylvestris Scotch pine Medium Evergreen Tree 20 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Juniperus chinensis Chinese juniper Low Evergreen Tree 12 


Picea glauca var. "Densata" Black Hills spruce Low Evergreen Tree 12 


Taxus cuspidata Japanese yew Low Evergreen Tree 12 


Thuja occidentalis RF white cedar Low Evergreen Tree 12 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Caragana arborescens Siberian peashrub Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Cephalanthus occidentalis buttonbush Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Chionanthus virginicus fringetree Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Cornus mas Cornelian-cherry dogwood Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Cornus racemosa gray dogwood Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Cornus sericea red osier dogwood Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Cotoneaster multiflora manyflowered cotoneaster Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Euonymus atropurpurea eastern wahoo Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Exochorda racemosa pearlbush Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Hamamelis virginiana common witchhazel Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Hydrangea paniculata panicled hydrangea Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Kolkwitzia amabilis beautybush Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Ligustrum amurense Amur privet Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Ligustrum vulgare Cheyenne privet Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Magnolia stellata star magnolia Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Physocarpus opulifolius eastern ninebark Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Prunus tomentosa Manchu cherry Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Prunus triloba double flowering plum Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Rhus glabra smooth sumac Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Rhus typhina staghorn sumac Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Salix caprea goat willow Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Shepherdia argentea buffaloberry Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Staphylea trifolia American bladdernut Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Syringa vulgaris common lilac Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Vibernum opulus var. americana American cranberrybush Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Viburnum dentatum arrowwood viburnum Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Viburnum lantana wayfaringtree viburnum Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Viburnum lentago nannyberry Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Viburnum sieboldii Siebold vibernum Tall Deciduous Shrub 5 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Aronia arbutifolia red chokeberry Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Aronia melanocarpa black chokeberry Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Cornus alba Tartarian dogwood Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Corylus americana American hazelnut Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Cotoneaster divaricatus spreading cotoneaster Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Cotoneaster lucidus hedge cotoneaster Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Forsynthia spp. forsythia species Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Ilex verticillata winterberry Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Ligustrum obtusifolium regelianum Regel's Border privet Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Myrica pensylvanica bayberry Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Philadelphus x virginalis mockorange Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Rhodotypos scandens jetbead Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Rosa hugonis Father Hugo rose Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Rosa rugosa cvs. rugosa rose Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Rosa setigera prairie rose Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Syringa meyeri Korean lilac Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Viburnum carlesii Koreanspice viburnum Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Viburnum cassinoides witherod viburnum Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Weigela florida old-fashioned weigela Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Aronia melanocarpa black chokeberry Medium Deciduous Shrub 3 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Amelanchier stolonifera running serviceberry Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Buxus microphylla koreana Korean littleaf boxwood Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Chaenomeles japonica alpina dwarf Japanese flowering quince Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Cotoneaster apiculatus cranberry cotoneaster Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Deutzia x lemoinei Lemoine's deutzia Low Deciduous Shrub 1 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


Diervilla lonicera bush honeysuckle Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Hydrangea arborescens snowball hydrangea Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Hypericum kalmianum Kalm's St. John's wort Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Mahonia aquifolium oregongrape holly Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Philadelphus coronarius golden mockorange Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Philadelphus x lemoinei Mont Blanc mockorange Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Potentilla fruticosa bush cinquefoil Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Prunus glandulosa dwarf flowering almond Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Rhus aromatica fragrant sumac Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Ribes alpinum alpine currant Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Rosa virginiana Virginia rose Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Salix repens argentea silver creeping willow Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Spiraea spp spirea Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Symphoricarpos rivularis snowberry Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Symphoricarpos orbiculatus coralberry Low Deciduous Shrub 1 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Juniperus chinensis Chinese juniper Medium Evergreen Shrub 5 


Juniperus communis depressa old field juniper Medium Evergreen Shrub 5 


Juniperus squamata singleseed juniper Medium Evergreen Shrub 5 


Pinus mugo mugo pine Medium Evergreen Shrub 5 


Taxus cuspidata Japanese yew Medium Evergreen Shrub 5 


Taxus x media Anglojapanese yew Medium Evergreen Shrub 5 


Thuja occidentalis shrub arborvitae Medium Evergreen Shrub 5 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Juniperus horizontalis creeping juniper Low Evergreen Shrub 3 


Juniperus sabina savin juniper Low Evergreen Shrub 3 


Rhododendron x kosteranum Mollis hybrid azaleas Low Evergreen Shrub 3 


Rhododendron x "PJM Hybrid" PJM hybrid rhododendron Low Evergreen Shrub 3 


Botanical Name Common Name Classification Landscaping Points 


Acer spp. maple tree species Non-contributory Plants 0 


Fraxinus spp. ash species Non-contributory Plants 0 


Pinus nigra Austrian pine Non-contributory Plants 0 


Picea pungens Colorado blue spruce Non-contributory Plants 0 
 


RF refers to reforestation. Marked species are native to Wisconsin, and recommended for reforestation efforts by 


the Wisconsin DNR. (See 


The following sources were used in compiling the preceding lists of plant species:   


 Department of Natural Resources. Forest Trees of Wisconsin: How to Know Them. Madison, Wisconsin: 


Department of Natural Resources, 1987. 


 Hasselkus, E.R. A Guide to Selecting Landscape Plants for Wisconsin. Madison, Wisconsin: College of 


Agricultural and Life Sciences University of Wisconsin - Extension, Cooperative Extension Programs, 1982. 


 Hightshoe, Gary L. Native Trees, Shrubs, and Vines for Urban and Rural America: A Planting Design Manual 


for Environmental Designers. New York: Van Nostrand Reinhold, 1988. 


 Iowa State University. Landscape Plants for Iowa. Ames, Iowa: Iowa State University Cooperative Extension 


Service, May 1984.  


This list was reviewed and modified by the Stoughton Tree Commission in 2020 referencing the following online 


sources: 


 Missouri Botanical Garden Plant Finder, 


http://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/plantfinder/plantfindersearch.aspx, Accessed Nov-Dec, 2020. 


 Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, Terrestrial Invasive species - Regulated plants, 


https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Invasives/species.asp?filterBy=Terrestrial&filterVal=Y&catVal=PlantsReg, Last revised: 


July 10, 2015. 



http://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/plantfinder/plantfindersearch.aspx

https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Invasives/species.asp?filterBy=Terrestrial&filterVal=Y&catVal=PlantsReg





 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21.docx 


 


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


      Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


       Holly Licht, City Clerk 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2021\030821\Info\Landscaping Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
Date:  March 1, 2021 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the March 8, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meeting of March 23, 2021 
 
Proposed amendments to the zoning code to update the landscaping species list. 
The Stoughton Tree Commission has been working on an updated species list for several years.  See 
provided summary from the Tree Commission.  A public hearing and recommendation to the 
Common Council is necessary.  Staff recommends approval. 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


 


 
Date: January 19, 2021 
 
To: City of Stoughton Planning Department and Plan Commission 
 
From: City of Stoughton Tree Commission 
 
Subject: Proposed modifications of City Landscaping Ordinance 
 
During the Public Works Committee meeting held on August 15th, 2017, City of Stoughton 
Alderperson Majewski requested the “Review and update of the landscape point system for 
commercial development.”  Specifically, “asking if the landscaping planting points are 
current with other communities and <he> feels that the city is lacking in diversity when 
planting.” 
 
During the September 14th, 2017, Tree Commission Meeting, Public Works Director Hebert 
clarified the task to ‘Discuss and Recommend changes to the Stoughton Municipal Zoning 
Ordinance: Appendix B’.  Furthermore, “the Planning Department requested that the Tree 
Commission review the trees in this ordinance for the purpose of making sure the street trees 
planted meet the city standards.”  
 
The City of Stoughton Tree Commission, including the City Forester, reviewed the 
Ordinance (ARTICLE VI. - LANDSCAPING AND BUFFERYARD REGULATIONS) 
including the landscape point system (Sec. 78-603 and Table 78-603), Appendix B 
(LANDSCAPING CHARTS AND CHECKLISTS, Detailed Classification of Plant Species) 
and the associated text which refers to Appendix B (Sec. 78-611. - Classification of plant 
species).  
 
Key decisions and proposed modifications from the review include: 
 


1. The landscaping point system should not be changed.  Modification of the point 
system (Sec. 78-603 and Table 78-603) is beyond the scope of the Tree Commission 
as landscaping points are critical components throughout Article VI.  Changing the 
point system would require rewriting the entire Article VI and would require the City 
Zoning Administrator and City Plan Commission. 


2. The species list (Appendix B) was reviewed and attached draft modified by: 
a. Reflecting current needs of the urban forest by demoting species with 


disproportionate representation in the urban forest (e.g. Acer spp). 
b. Removing invasive species. 
c. Removing disease prone or poor performing species. 
d. Simplifying the interpretation of the list by including landscaping points and 


removing cultivars, growth rate, form and adaptation/remarks fields.  This was 
done in recognition of the knowledge of the landscape contractor conducting 
the planting and the immense breadth of potential information that could be 
included. 


3. Table 78-611 should be removed to reduce redundancy with Appendix B. 
4. The attached draft text for Sec. 78-611, which references Table 78-611 and Appendix 


B was modified to reflect changes above and to direct inquiries to the City Forester 
and/or the City Tree Commission instead of the Zoning Administrator. 


 


2439 County Rd A 
Stoughton, WI 53589 


 





		08a-Amend Landscaping Sections 21

		08b-Proposed Landscaping Zoning Amend

		ADP8A7D.tmp

		Date: January 19, 2021

		To: City of Stoughton Planning Department and Plan Commission

		From: City of Stoughton Tree Commission

		Subject: Proposed modifications of City Landscaping Ordinance

		During the Public Works Committee meeting held on August 15th, 2017, City of Stoughton Alderperson Majewski requested the “Review and update of the landscape point system for commercial development.”  Specifically, “asking if the landscaping planting ...

		During the September 14th, 2017, Tree Commission Meeting, Public Works Director Hebert clarified the task to ‘Discuss and Recommend changes to the Stoughton Municipal Zoning Ordinance: Appendix B’.  Furthermore, “the Planning Department requested that...

		The City of Stoughton Tree Commission, including the City Forester, reviewed the Ordinance (ARTICLE VI. - LANDSCAPING AND BUFFERYARD REGULATIONS) including the landscape point system (Sec. 78-603 and Table 78-603), Appendix B (LANDSCAPING CHARTS AND C...

		Key decisions and proposed modifications from the review include:

		1. The landscaping point system should not be changed.  Modification of the point system (Sec. 78-603 and Table 78-603) is beyond the scope of the Tree Commission as landscaping points are critical components throughout Article VI.  Changing the point...

		2. The species list (Appendix B) was reviewed and attached draft modified by:

		a. Reflecting current needs of the urban forest by demoting species with disproportionate representation in the urban forest (e.g. Acer spp).

		b. Removing invasive species.

		c. Removing disease prone or poor performing species.

		d. Simplifying the interpretation of the list by including landscaping points and removing cultivars, growth rate, form and adaptation/remarks fields.  This was done in recognition of the knowledge of the landscape contractor conducting the planting a...

		3. Table 78-611 should be removed to reduce redundancy with Appendix B.

		4. The attached draft text for Sec. 78-611, which references Table 78-611 and Appendix B was modified to reflect changes above and to direct inquiries to the City Forester and/or the City Tree Commission instead of the Zoning Administrator.

		2439 County Rd A

		Stoughton, WI 53589














CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Danny Senf for Pizza Hut at 1400 US Highway 51-


138, Stoughton, Wisconsin.  (Site plan dated 3/3/21) 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval 6 – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-31-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 23, 2021 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, on March 8, 2021 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and reviewed 


the proposed conditional use permit application by Danny Senf for property at 1400 US Highway 51-138, 


Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested for the following: 


 Indoor Commercial Entertainment (restaurant use) and for In-Vehicle Sales and Service (drive-thru). 


 


WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


 The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 


with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 


Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;  


 The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 


in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 


environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-


way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 


or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 


chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 


consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 


to guide development;   


 The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 


land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


 The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 


impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 


public agencies serving the subject property; 


 The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 


impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 


any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 


will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 


now therefore 


 


 


 







BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request by 


Danny Senf for property at 1400 US Highway 51-138 is hereby approved as presented subject to: 


 Staff review dated March 3, 2021 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


  


 


 


   


  


  


  


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Pizza Hut CUP.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2021\030821\Info\Pizza Hut Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  February 28, 2021 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council  
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the March 8, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting and Common Council 


Meeting of March 23, 2021 
 
Request by Danny Senf representing Pizza Hut for approval of a conditional use permit 
(CUP) for Indoor Commercial Entertainment and In-Vehicle Sales and Service uses including 
site plan approval at 1400 US Highway 51-138. 
This proposal is to renovate a vacant building for a restaurant use with a drive-thru.  The use and 
site appears to meet all necessary Comprehensive Plan and zoning requirements.  A public hearing 
and recommendation to Council is necessary for the CUP.  The site plan may be approved by the 
Plan Commission contingent on the CUP approval.  The resolutions, application information and 
staff review are provided.   
 
 
   
 
 


 











































Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community


1400 US 51 Location Map


Dane County Mask


Dane County Mask


Parcels


February 9, 2021 0 125 25062.5 Feet


¯














Remodeling for
Pizza Hut


One Story
Type VB
Occupancy Group A-2


a r c h i t e c t u r e
3220 syene road, suite 101              608 . 277.0585
madison, wi 53713                     www.gmkarch.com


SHT.


SHEET INDEX
DESCRIPTION


REVIEW 3-3-2021


SITE PLANC1.0
COVER


IEBC 2015
Alteration Level 2


EXTERIOR ELEVATIONSA2.1
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONSA2.2


LANDSCAPE PLANL1.0


SIGNAGE







SITE  PLAN
0 5 10 20 40 80ft


a 
r c


 h
 i 


t e
 c


 t 
u 


r e
32


20
 s


ye
ne


 ro
ad


, s
ui


te
 1


03
   


   
   


   
  6


08
 . 


27
7.


05
85


m
ad


iso
n,


 w
i 5


37
13


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
ww


w.
gm


ka
rc


h.
co


m







LANDSCAPE PLAN
0 5 10 20 40 80ft


EM


EM


EM


DBH(6)
DBH(4)


DBH(4)
TM


TM


MCS(4)WBJ(2)


WBJ


GLS(4)


GFS


GLS(4)


GFS


GFS(2)


WBJ(2)


AVB(3)


AVB(2)


EXISTING
LAWN TO
REMAIN


BARK
MULCH


BARK
MULCH


BARK
MULCH


BARK
MULCH


EXISTING
LAWN TO
REMAIN


a 
r c


 h
 i 


t e
 c


 t 
u 


r e
32


20
 s


ye
ne


 ro
ad


, s
ui


te
 1


03
   


   
   


   
  6


08
 . 


27
7.


05
85


m
ad


iso
n,


 w
i 5


37
13


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
ww


w.
gm


ka
rc


h.
co


m







a 
r c


 h
 i 


t e
 c


 t 
u 


r e
32


20
 s


ye
ne


 ro
ad


, s
ui


te
 1


03
   


   
   


   
  6


08
 . 


27
7.


05
85


m
ad


iso
n,


 w
i 5


37
13


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
ww


w.
gm


ka
rc


h.
co


m


WEST ELEVATION


SOUTH ELEVATION
1 32 FEET80 2 4 16


1 32 FEET80 2 4 16







a 
r c


 h
 i 


t e
 c


 t 
u 


r e
32


20
 s


ye
ne


 ro
ad


, s
ui


te
 1


03
   


   
   


   
  6


08
 . 


27
7.


05
85


m
ad


iso
n,


 w
i 5


37
13


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
ww


w.
gm


ka
rc


h.
co


m


EAST ELEVATION


NORTH ELEVATION


1 32 FEET80 2 4 16


1 32 FEET80 2 4 16











Image capture: Jul 2019 © 2021 Google


Street View


Stoughton, Wisconsin


 Google


1400 US-51







Image capture: Jul 2019 © 2021 Google


Street View


Stoughton, Wisconsin


 Google


1439 US-51







na


1400 US HWY 51


Dane County Mask


Dane County Mask


Parcels


February 9, 2021


 
 


0 100 20050 Feet


¯



































[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


      


March 3, 2021 


Pizza Hut of Southern Wisconsin 
Danny Senf
434 S Yellowstone Dr, Ste 101 
Madison, WI 53719 


Dear Mr. Senf: 


I have completed a final review of the proposed conditional use and site plan for Pizza Hut, 1400 
US Highway 51-138, Stoughton, WI.  (site plan dated 3/3/21)  A conditional use public hearing 
(restaurant and drive-thru uses) and site plan review are planned for the Plan Commission 
meeting of March 8, 2021.  We anticipate Common Council approval of the Conditional Use 
Permit on March 23, 2021. 


1. The property at 1400 US Highway 51-138 is zoned PB - Planned Business.  A scalable or 
fully dimensioned plan including all lot lines has been provided. 
 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment uses such as a restaurant is permitted as a conditional use.  
Conditional use permit application submitted. 


In-Vehicle Sales and Services accessory to the Indoor Commercial Entertainment land use is 
permitted as a conditional accessory use.  Conditional use permit application submitted. 


The site plan may be approved by the Plan Commission contingent on the conditional 
use permit being approved by the Common Council.   


2. Indoor Commercial Entertainment is defined as follows:   
Description: Indoor commercial entertainment land uses include all land uses which provide 
entertainment services primarily within an enclosed building. Outdoor seating or patio areas 
associated with a proposed indoor commercial entertainment land use shall be allowed 
subject to city approval of a site plan showing any such proposed outdoor seating or patio 
area. Such activities often have operating hours which extend significantly later than most 
other commercial land uses. Examples of such land uses include restaurants, taverns, 
theaters, health or fitness centers, all forms of training studios (dance, art, martial arts, etc.), 
bowling alleys, arcades, roller rinks, and pool halls.  The proposed use meets this 
definition.   







[- 2 -] 
 


3. Regulations related to Indoor Commercial Entertainment uses are as follows:  
 If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned property, no 


customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 feet, or as far as possible, 
of a residentially zoned property.  N/A 


 Facility shall provide bufferyard with minimum opacity of .60 along all borders of the 
property abutting residentially zoned property (see section 78-610).  N/A 


 Parking requirements: One space per every three patron seats or lockers (whichever 
is greater); or one space per three persons at the maximum capacity of the 
establishment; (whichever is greater).  23 existing parking stalls will allow a 
maximum capacity of 69 patrons.  30 seats proposed.   


 
4. In-vehicle sales and service uses are defined as follows:   


Description: In-vehicle sales and service land uses include all land uses which perform sales 
and/or services to persons in vehicles, or to vehicles which may or may not be occupied at 
the time of such activity.  Such land uses often have traffic volumes which exhibit their 
highest levels concurrent with peak traffic flows on adjacent roads. Examples of such land 
uses include drive-in, drive-up, and drive-through facilities, vehicular fuel stations, and all 
forms of car washes. If performed in conjunction with a principal land use (for example, a 
convenience store, restaurant or bank), in-vehicle sales and service land uses shall be 
considered an accessory use.  The proposed use meets this definition. 


 
5. Regulations related to In-Vehicle Sales and Service uses per 78-206(8)(g) are as follows: 


A. Clearly marked pedestrian crosswalks shall be provided for each walk-in customer 
access to the facility adjacent to the drive-through lane(s). No customer access 
adjacent to the drive-thru.   


B. The drive-through facility shall be designed so as to not impede or impair vehicular 
and pedestrian traffic movement, or exacerbate the potential for pedestrian/vehicular 
conflicts.  Appropriate signage to direct traffic to and out of the drive-thru is 
provided.  We’ll also need to see any existing or proposed access or parking 
space easement with the adjacent property (Viking Lanes).  Lot line is over 
parking spaces. 


C. In no instance shall a drive-through facility be permitted to operate which endangers 
the public safety, even if such land use has been permitted under the provisions of 
this section.  Expected. 


D. The setback of any overhead canopy or similar structure shall be a minimum of ten 
feet from all street rights-of-way lines, a minimum of 20 feet from all residentially-
zoned property lines, and shall be a minimum of five feet from all other property 
lines. The total height of any overhead canopy or similar structure shall not exceed 
20 feet per the measurement of roof height.  N/A 


E. All vehicular areas of the facility shall provide a surface paved with concrete or 
bituminous material which is designed to meet the requirements of a minimum four-
ton axle load. Expected.   







[- 3 -] 
 


F. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all property 
borders abutting residentially zoned property.  N/A 


G. Interior curbs shall be used to separate driving areas from exterior fixtures such as 
fuel pumps, vacuums, menu boards, canopy supports and landscaped islands. Said 
curbs shall be a minimum of six inches high and be of a non-mountable design. No 
curb protecting an exterior fixture shall be located closer than 25 feet to all property 
lines.  If applicable.  Drive-thru is for pick-up only. 
 


6. The parking requirement for In-Vehicle Sales and Service is as follows:  See parking 
requirement for Indoor Commercial Entertainment (#3 above).  Each drive-up lane shall 
have a minimum stack length of 100 feet behind the pass through window and 40 feet beyond 
the pass through window. The site plan meets these requirements. 
 


7. The property meets all zoning lot width and area requirements. 
 


8. The proposed use and zoning meets the intent of the City Comprehensive Plan. 
 


9. The existing building and proposed addition meets the following height and setback 
requirements:   


 Minimum front yard setback for principal building: 20 feet 
 Minimum rear yard setback for principal building: 20 feet 
 Minimum side yard setback for principal building: 10 feet 
 Maximum building height: 45 feet 


 
10. Public sidewalk is required along all public frontages and shall be delineated on the site plan.  


Existing. 
 


11. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather 
surface and completed prior to building occupancy.  All parking spaces shall be clearly 
marked to indicate required spaces.  Expected.  
 


12. Accessible parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as 
specified by state and federal regulations.  Expected. 


 
13. Except for accessible parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a 


minimum width of 9 feet.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 
14. The parking aisle width for 90-degree parking shall be a minimum of 24 feet.  The plan 


meets this requirement. 
 


15. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 25%.  The site is existing and it appears to 
have approximately 16% coverage. 


 
16. The maximum floor area ratio is 1.  This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all 


buildings by the gross site area.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 







[- 4 -] 
 


17. All access drives shall have a minimum width of 18 feet.  The existing access meets this 
requirement. 
 


21. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-
residential uses, as measured at the right-of-way line.  Access drives may be flared between 
the right-of-way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet and may be 
exceeded with explicit Plan Commission approval.    The access drive is existing. 
 


22. The minimum paved surface setback from a side and rear lot line is 5 feet while the 
minimum is 10 feet from a right-of-way line.  The existing paving does not meet this 
requirement. 


 
23. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile 


parking space requirement.  The plan appears to meet this requirement. 
 


24. Off-street loading stall requirements per section 78-705(11)(b).  One loading berth shall be 
required for each building having a gross floor area of 6,000 square feet to 99,999 square 
feet.  N/A    


 
18. Except for exposed foundations not to exceed three feet in height from adjacent grade, non-


single family development shall employ only high-quality, decorative exterior construction 
materials on the visible exterior of the following portions of all structures: 


 Any portion of the structure within 50 feet of an adjacent residentially zoned 
property; 


 Any portion of the structure located within 50 feet of a public right-of-way; 
 Any other portion of the structure visible from a public street…  The following 


exterior construction materials shall not be considered “high quality, decorative”: 
non-decorative concrete or cinder block, non-decorative concrete foundation walls or 
panels, non-decorative plywood, asphaltic siding, or other materials using exposed 
fastener systems or non-decorative surfaces as determined by the Planning 
Commission.  However, such materials may be allowed by the Planning Commission 
as decorative elements.   


Existing building. 
 


25. Architectural and design elements shall be compatible with the surrounding area and 
community standards and shall minimize user specific elements as determined by the plan 
commission.  Metal panels with exposed exterior fasteners of the same color may be used on 
a maximum of 50 percent of the front side of the building.  This material is not allowed 
within 50 feet of any customer or visitor entrance.   As determined by the Planning 
Commission.  Existing building. 
 


26. The existing landscaping was previously approved.  Provided landscaping plan meets 
necessary requirements. 


 







[- 5 -] 
 


27. We’ll need details for any changes to exterior lighting.  Any changes to outdoor lighting 
shall meet all zoning standards.  No lighting element can be seen from any residentially 
zoned property. 


 
28. A gated trash enclosure with 6-foot fencing shall be delineated on the plan for the handling of 


waste. Chain-link fencing with slats is proposed for screening the trash enclosure.  Since 
the building is more of a stucco exterior and the trash enclosure is located behind the 
building, we believe the screening meets the intent of the ordinance. 


 
29. Any excavation over 4,000 square feet will require an erosion control plan, application and 


fees.  N/A  
 
30. Proposed utilities-including electrical transformers and HVAC locations shall be shown on 


the utility plan.  Utilities are existing.  Contact Stoughton Utilities for electric, water and 
wastewater services.     


 
31. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage.  Expected. 
 
32. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and zoning permit prior to installation.  


Wall and directional signage are shown on the plan.  The existing pole at the front of 
the lot is planned to be removed.   


 
33. State of Wisconsin approved building plans may be necessary prior to issuance of a building 


permit but are not necessary to begin the City review processes. 
 
 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
  
     Michael P. Stacey 
  
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\property log folder\1400 us highway 51 & 138\pizza hut 2.9.21\updated plans 3.3.21\pizza hut final review 3.3.21.doc 





		09a-Pizza Hut CUP

		09b-Pizza Hut - 1400 US Hwy 51-138 CUP






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Annual Report – Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit 


Committee 


Action: 


Public Works Committee recommends Council approval  – 0 with the Mayor 


voting. 
 
Fiscal Impact: $0 


 
File Number: 


 
R-32-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 23, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton operates under the requirements of a State-issued stormwater 


discharge permit, and 


 


WHEREAS, the permit requires an Annual Report that documents relevant stormwater management 


activities in the City, and 


 


WHEREAS, the City has documented activities such as Public Education and Outreach, Illicit Discharge 


Detection and Elimination, Construction Site Pollutant Control, Post-Construction Stormwater 


Management, Pollution Prevention, and Storm Sewer System Mapping, and 


 


WHEREAS, the City maintains the website to inform the community about stormwater issues including 


the Annual Report, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Annual Report has been prepared by City staff for review, discussion and submittal, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee met on March 18, 2021 to discuss and consider the Annual 


Report and recommends approval; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby supports and authorizes 


the submittal of the Annual Report as presented. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R- 2021 - Stormwater Permit Annual Report.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  March 12, 2021 


 


To:  Public Works Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Stormwater Annual Report – DNR General Permit No. WI S058416-4 


 


As an owner/operator of a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4), the City is required 


to submit an annual report to the Department of Natural Resources each year to report on 


activities for the previous calendar year.  The draft document is presented for your review and 


approval for submittal to the DNR.  The complete report can be found near the bottom of this 


webpage: https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/stormwater 


 


 


If you have any questions, please let me know. 


 
 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Stormwater\Permit\2021 Materials\Public Works -2021- Annual Stormwater Report.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/

https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/stormwater





Submittal of Annual Reports and Other Compliance Documents for Municipal 


Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permits


NOTE: Missing or incomplete fields are highlighted at the bottom of each page.  You may save, close and return to your draft permit as often as necessary to complete 


your application.  After 120 days your draft is deleted.


Required Attachments and Supplemental Information 


Please complete the contents of each tab to submit your MS4 permit compliance document. The information 


included in this checklist is necessary for a complete submittal. A complete and detailed submittal will help us 


review about your MS4 permit document. To help us make a decision in the shortest amount of time possible, the 


following information must be submitted:


� Review related web site and instructions for Municipal storm water permit eReporting [Exit Form]


� Complete all required fields on the annual report form and upload required attachments


� Attach the following other supporting documents as appropriate using the attachments tab above


� Public Education and Outreach Annual Report Summary 


� Public Involvement and Participation Annual Report Summary


� Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Annual Report Summary


� Construction Site Pollution Control Annual Report Summary


� Post-Construction Storm Water Management Annual Report Summary


�  Pollution Prevention Annual Report Summary


� Leaf and Yard Waste Management


� Municipal Facility (BMP) Inspection Report


� Municipal Property SWPPP


� Municipally Property Inspection Report


� Winter Road Maintenance


� Storm Sewer Map Annual Report Attachment


� Storm Water Quality Management Annual Report Attachment


� TMDL Attachment


� Storm Water Consortium/Group Report


Reporting Information 


Will you be completing the Annual Report or other submittal type?  Annual Report  Other


Is this submittal also satisfying an Urban Nonpoint Source Grant funded deliverable?    Yes  No


Project Name: Stoughton Annual Storm Water Report


County: Dane


Municipality: Stoughton City


Permit Number: S058416


Facility Number: 30925


Reporting Year: 2020


Annual Report







� Municipal Cooperation Attachment


� Other Annual Report Attachment


� Attach the following permit compliance documents as appropriate using the attachments tab above


� Storm Water Management Program (S050075-03 General Permit and S058416-04 Madison Area Group Permit shall have a 


written storm water management program that describes in detail how the permittee intends to comply with the permit 


requirements for each minimum control measure. Updated programs are due to the department by March 31, 2021.) 


� Public Education and Outreach Program


� Public Involvement and Participation Program


� Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program


� Construction Site Pollutant Control Program


� Post-Construction Storm Water Management Program


� Pollution Prevention Program


� Municipal Storm Water Management Facility (BMP) Inventory (S050075-03 General Permit and S058416-04 


Madison Area Group Permit 2.6.1 - inventory due to the department by March 31, 2021.)


� Municipal Storm Water Management Facility (BMP) Inspection and Maintenance Plan (S050075-03 General 


Permit and S058416-04 Madison Area Group Permit 2.6.2 – document due to the department by March 31, 


2021.)


� Total Maximum Daily Load documents (*If applicable, see permit for due dates.)


� TMDL Mapping*


� TMDL Modeling*


� TMDL Implementation Plan*


� Fecal Coliform Screening Parameter *


� Fecal Coliform Inventory and Map (S050075-03 general permittees Appendix B B.5.2 – document due to the 


department by March 31, 2022)


� Fecal Coliform Source Elimination Plan (S050075-03 general permittees Appendix B - document due to the 


department by October 31,2023)


� Sign and Submit form







Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Note: Compliance items must be submitted using the Attachments tab.


Municipal Contact Information- Complete


Notice: Pursuant to s. NR 216.07(8), Wis. Adm. Code, an owner or operator of a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) is 


required to submit an annual report to the Department of Natural Resources (Department) by March 31 of each year to report on 


activities for the previous calendar year (“reporting year”). This form is being provided by the Department for the user’s convenience for 


reporting on activities undertaken in each reporting year of the permit term. Personal information collected will be used for 


administrative purposes and may be provided to the extent required by Wisconsin’s Open Records Law [ss. 19.31-19.39, Wis. Stats.].


Municipality Information 


Name of Municipality Stoughton City


Facility ID # or (FIN): 30925


Updated Information:
Check to update mailing address information    


Mailing Address: 207 S. Forrest Street


Mailing Address 2:


City: Stoughton


State: Wisconsin


Zip Code:  xxxxx  or xxxxx-xxxx53589


Primary Municipal Contact Person  (Authorized Representative for MS4 Permit)


The “Authorized Representative” or “Authorized Municipal Contact” includes the municipal official that was 


charged with compliance and oversight of the permit conditions, and has signature authority for submitting 


permit documents to the Department (i.e., Mayor, Municipal Administrator, Director of Public Works, City 


Engineer).


Select to create new  primary contact 


First Name: Sue


Last Name: Eddy


Select to update  current contact information  


Title: Engineering Tech


Mailing Address: 207 S Forrest St


Mailing Address 2:


City: Stoughton


State: WI


Zip Code: xxxxx  or xxxxx-xxxx53589


Phone Number: Ext: xxx-xxx-xxxx608-873-8458 152


Email: seddy@ci.stoughton.wi.us


Additional Contacts Information (Optional)  


 I&E Program     







1. Does the municipality rely on another entity to satisfy some of the permit requirements?  


 Yes    No 


2. Has there been any changes to the municipality’s participation in group efforts towards permit compliances (i.e., 


the municipality has added or dropped consortium membership)?


 Yes   No   


Individual with responsibility for:


(Check all that apply)


 IDDE Program   


 IDDE Response Procedure Manual  


 Municipal-wide Water Quality Plan  


 Ordinances


 Pollution Prevention Program  


 Post-Construction Program  


 Winter roadway maintenance


First Name:


Last Name:


Title:


Mailing Address:


Mailing Address 2:


City:


State:


Zip Code: xxxxx  or xxxxx-xxxx


Phone Number: Ext: xxx-xxx-xxxx


Email:


Public Education and Outreach  


Public Involvement and Participation 


Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 


Construction Site Pollutant Control 


Post-Construction Storm Water Management 


Pollution Prevention


 MAMSWaP


 MAMSWap


 Dane County Land and Water Resources


 Dane County Land and Water Resources


Missing Information







Minimum Control Measures- Section 1 : 


a. Complete the following information on Public Education and Outreach Activities related to storm 


water. Select the Delivery Mechanism that best describes how the topics were conveyed to your 


population. Use the Add Event to add additional entries. 


Note: For the minimum control measures, you must fill out all questions in sections 1 through 7.


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Form 3400-224 (08/19)


Complete


1. Public Education and Outreach


Event Start Date 3/1/2020


Project/Event Name Tower Times Newspaper


Delivery Mechanism *ActiveDistribution of print media


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Illicit discharge detection and elimination 


Household hazardous waste disposal/pet 


waste management/vehicle washing


Yard waste management/pesticide and 


fertilizer application


Stream and shoreline management


Residential infiltration


Construction sites and post-construction 


storm water management


Pollution prevention


Green infrastructure/low impact 


development


Other:

















General Public


Public Employees


Residents


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other














101 + Yes No


Event Start Date 1/7/2020


Project/Event Name Facebook


Delivery Mechanism *ActiveSocial media post


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Illicit discharge detection and elimination 


Household hazardous waste disposal/pet 


waste management/vehicle washing


Yard waste management/pesticide and 


fertilizer application


Stream and shoreline management


Residential infiltration


Construction sites and post-construction 


storm water management


Pollution prevention


Green infrastructure/low impact 


development


Other:














General Public


Public Employees


Residents


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other














101 + Yes No







Event Start Date 1/30/2020


Project/Event Name "I'm Un-Salted", Rain Garden Workshop, "Protect Water!", "Winter Salt Training- Parking l...


Delivery Mechanism *ActiveWorkshop*


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Illicit discharge detection and elimination 


Household hazardous waste disposal/pet 


waste management/vehicle washing


Yard waste management/pesticide and 


fertilizer application


Stream and shoreline management


Residential infiltration


Construction sites and post-construction 


storm water management


Pollution prevention


Green infrastructure/low impact 


development


Other:























Salt use


General Public


Public Employees


Residents


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other














51-100 Yes No


Event Start Date 10/1/2020


Project/Event Name Winter Salt Certification Workshops by WI Salt Wise- Salt Training for City Employees


Delivery Mechanism *ActiveTargeted group training*


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Illicit discharge detection and elimination 


Household hazardous waste disposal/pet 


waste management/vehicle washing


Yard waste management/pesticide and 


fertilizer application


Stream and shoreline management


Residential infiltration


Construction sites and post-construction 


storm water management


Pollution prevention


Green infrastructure/low impact 


development


Other:


Reduce use of salt


General Public


Public Employees


Residents


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other





1 - 10 Yes No


Event Start Date 1/1/2020


Project/Event Name City of Stoughton Website


Delivery Mechanism *ActiveWebsite


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Illicit discharge detection and elimination 


Household hazardous waste disposal/pet 


waste management/vehicle washing








General Public


Public Employees


Residents











51-100 Yes No







Yard waste management/pesticide and 


fertilizer application


Stream and shoreline management


Residential infiltration


Construction sites and post-construction 


storm water management


Pollution prevention


Green infrastructure/low impact 


development


Other:














Reduce use of salt


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other








Event Start Date 1/1/2020


Project/Event Name Pamphlets available to the public at City Hall Reception


Delivery Mechanism *ActivePassive print media


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Illicit discharge detection and elimination 


Household hazardous waste disposal/pet 


waste management/vehicle washing


Yard waste management/pesticide and 


fertilizer application


Stream and shoreline management


Residential infiltration


Construction sites and post-construction 


storm water management


Pollution prevention


Green infrastructure/low impact 


development


Other:

















Reduce use of salt


General Public


Public Employees


Residents


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other

















11-50 Yes No


Event Start Date 1/2/2020


Project/Event Name Direct one-on-one communication


Delivery Mechanism *ActiveOther


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Illicit discharge detection and elimination 


Household hazardous waste disposal/pet 


waste management/vehicle washing


Yard waste management/pesticide and 


fertilizer application


Stream and shoreline management


Residential infiltration


Construction sites and post-construction 


storm water management


Pollution prevention


Green infrastructure/low impact 


development


Other:








General Public


Public Employees


Residents


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other














11-50 Yes No







b. Brief explanation on Public Education and Outreach reporting. Limit response to 250 characters 


and/or attach supplemental information on the attachments page.


Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Minimum Control Measures - Section 2 : 


a. Permit Activities. Complete the following information on Public Involvement and Participation 


Activities related to storm water. Select the Delivery Mechanism that best describes how the permit 


activities were conveyed to your population. Use the Add Event to add additional entries.  


See attachments


Missing Information


Note: For the minimum control measures, you must fill out all questions in sections 1 through 7


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Complete


2. Public Involvement and Participation


Event Start Date 1/1/2020


Project/Event Name City of Stoughton Website


Delivery Mechanism Website


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


MS4 Annual Report


Storm Water Management Program


Storm Water related ordinance


Other:











General Public


Public Employees


Residents 


Businesses 


Contractors 


Developers 


Industries 


Other 


 








51-100  Yes  No


Event Start Date 4/14/2020


Project/Event Name Presented to City of Stoughton Public Works Committee and City of Stough...


Delivery Mechanism Government Event (Public Hearing, Council Meeting, etc)


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


MS4 Annual Report


Storm Water Management Program


Storm Water related ordinance


Other:











General Public


Public Employees


Residents 


Businesses 


Contractors 


Developers 


Industries 


Other 


 





11-50  Yes  No







b. Volunteer Activities. Complete the following information on Public Involvement and Participation 


Activities related to storm water. Select the Delivery Mechanism that best describes how volunteer 


activities were conveyed to your population. Use the Add Event to add additional entries.  


Event Start Date 3/19/2020


Project/Event Name Presented to City of Stoughton Public Works Committee and City of Stough...


Delivery Mechanism Citizen committee meeting


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


MS4 Annual Report


Storm Water Management Program


Storm Water related ordinance


Other:








General Public


Public Employees


Residents 


Businesses 


Contractors 


Developers 


Industries 


Other 


 





11-50  Yes  No


Event Start Date 8/4/2020


Project/Event Name Presentation to MAMSWaP Group for City Bioinfiltration Project


Delivery Mechanism Presentation of Storm Water Information


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People 


Reached (Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


MS4 Annual Report


Storm Water Management Program


Storm Water related ordinance


Other:





General Public


Public Employees


Residents 


Businesses 


Contractors 


Developers 


Industries 


Other 


  11-50  Yes  No


Event Start Date 9/19/2020


Project/Event Name "Party for the Planet" region wide clean up event


Delivery Mechanism Clean up event


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People Reached 


(Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Volunteer Opportunity General Public 


Public Employees


Residents


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other














51-100 Yes   No


Event Start Date 6/25/2020







c. Brief explanation on Public Involvement and Participation reporting. Limit response 


to 250 characters and/or attach supplemental information on the attachments page.


Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Minimum Control Measures - Section 3 : 


Project/Event Name City of Stoughton Eastwood pond dredging and maintenance- Director of P...


Delivery Mechanism Group BMP installation/maintenance


Topics Covered Target Audience
Estimated People Reached 


(Optional)


Regional Effort


(Optional)


Volunteer Opportunity General Public 


Public Employees


Residents


Businesses


Contractors


Developers


Industries


Other











1 - 10 Yes   No


See Attachments


Missing Information


Note: For the minimum control measures, you must fill out all questions in sections 1 through 7


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Complete


3. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination


a. How many total outfalls does the municipality have? 81 Unsure


b. How many outfalls did the municipality evaluate as part 


of their routine ongoing field screening program?
29 Unsure


c. From the municipality's routine screening, how many 


were confirmed illicit discharges?
0 Unsure


d. How many illicit discharge complaints did the 


municipality receive?
1 Unsure


e. From the complaints received, how many were 


confirmed illicit discharges?
1 Unsure


f. How many of the identified illicit discharges did the 


municipality eliminate in the reporting year (from both 


routine screening and complaints)? 
(If the sum of 3.c. and 3.e. does not equal 3.f., please explain below.)


1 Unsure


g. How many of the following enforcement mechanisms did the municipality 


use to enforce its illicit discharge ordinance? Check all that apply and 


enter the number of each used in the reporting year.


Unsure


Verbal Warning 1







Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Minimum Control Measures - Section 4 : 


Written Warning (including email) 1


Notice of Violation


Civil Penalty/ Citation


Additional Information: 


h. Brief explanation on Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination reporting.   If you 


marked Unsure for any questions above, justify the reasoning.  Limit response to 


250 characters and/or attach supplemental information on the attachments page.


see attachment


Missing Information


Note: For the minimum control measures, you must fill out all questions in sections 1 through 7


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Complete


4. Construction Site Pollutant Control


a. How many total construction sites with one acre or more 


of land disturbing construction activity were active at any 


point in the reporting year?


26 Unsure


b. How many construction sites with one acre or more of 


land disturbing construction activity did the municipality 


issue permits for in the reporting year?


9 Unsure


c. How many erosion control inspections did the municipality 


complete in the reporting year?
487 Unsure


d. What types of enforcement actions does the municipality have available 


to compel compliance with the regulatory mechanism? Check all that 


apply and enter the number of each used in the reporting year.


Unsure


 No Authority


 Verbal Warning 6


 Written Warning (including email) 0


 Notice of Violation 0


 Civil Penalty/ Citation 0


 Stop Work Order 0


 Forfeiture of Deposit 0


 Other - Describe below


e. Brief explanation on Construction Site Pollutant Control reporting .  If you marked 


Unsure for any questions above, justify the reasoning. Limit response to 250 characters 


and/or attach supplemental information on the attachments page.







Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Minimum Control Measures - Section 5 : 


See Summary on attachment page


Missing Information


Note: For the minimum control measures, you must fill out all questions in sections 1 through 7


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Complete


5. Post-Construction Storm Water Management


a. How many sites with new structural storm water 


management facilities* have received local approval ?  
*Engineered and constructed systems that are designed to provide storm water 


quality control such as wet detention ponds, constructed wetlands, infiltration 


basins, grassed swales, permeable pavement, catch basin sumps, etc.


11 Unsure


b. Does the municipality utilize privately owned storm water 


management facilities in its pollutant reduction analysis?


Yes No Unsure


c. If Yes, How many privately owned storm water 


management facilities were inspected in the reporting year ? 
Inspections completed by private land owners should be included in the reported 


number.


30 Unsure


d. What types of enforcement actions does the municipality have available 


to compel compliance with the regulatory mechanism?  Check all that 


apply and enter the number of each used in the reporting year.


Unsure


 No Authority


 Verbal Warning 0


 Written Warning (including email) 0


 Notice of Violation 0


 Civil Penalty/ Citation 0


 Forfeiture of Deposit 0


 Complete Maintenance 0


 Bill Responsible Party 0


 Other - Describe below


e. Brief explanation on Post-Construction Storm Water Management reporting . If 


marked 'Unsure' on any questions above, justify your reasoning.  Limit  your response to 


250 characters and/or attach supplemental information on the attachments page.


See summary on the attachments page.


Missing Information







Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Note: For the minimum control measures, you must fill out all questions in sections 1 through 7


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Minimum Control Measures - Section 6 : Complete


6. Pollution Prevention


Storm Water Management Facility Inspections    Not Applicable


a. Enter the total number of municipally owned or operated 


structural storm water management facilities ?
31 Unsure


b. How many new municipally owned storm water management 


facilities were installed in the reporting year ?
0 Unsure


c. How many municipally owned storm water management facilities 


were inspected in the reporting year?
31 Unsure


d. What elements are looked at during  inspections (250 character 


limit)? 


Sediment build up, bank erosion, algae growth, infiltration rates, weeds


e. How many of these facilities required maintenance? 1 Unsure


f. Brief explanation on Storm Water Management Facility inspection 


reporting. If you marked Unsure for any questions above, justify the 


reasoning.  Limit response to 250 characters and/or attach supplemental 


information on the attachments page.


See in attachments


Public Works Yards & Other Municipally Owned Properties (SWPPP Plan Review)  Not Applicable


g. How many municipal properties require a SWPPP? 1 Unsure


h. How many inspections of municipal properties have been 


conducted in the reporting year?
1 Unsure


i. Have amendments to the SWPPPs been made?          


Yes No  Unsure
j. If yes, describe what changes have been made. Limit response to 250 characters 


and/or attach supplemental information on the attachment page: 


NA


k. Brief explanation on Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan reporting. If you marked 


Unsure for any questions above, justify the reasoning.  Limit response to 250 


characters and/or attach supplemental information on the attachments page.


see attached


Collection Services - Street Sweeping / Cleaning Program  Not Applicable


l. Did the municipality conduct street sweeping/cleaning during the reporting year?


Yes  No Unsure







m. If known, how many tons of material was removed? 714 Unsure


n. Does the municipality have a low hazard exemption for this 


material?  


Yes No


o. If street cleaning is identified as a storm water best management practice in the 


pollutant loading analysis, was street cleaning completed at the assumed frequency?


Yes - Explain frequency Sweep the entire City twice per month


No - Explain


Not Applicable


Collection Services - Catch Basin Sump Cleaning Program  Not Applicable


p. Did the municipality conduct catch basin sump cleaning during the reporting 


year? Yes  No Unsure


q. How many catch basin sumps were cleaned in the reporting year? Unsure


r. If known, how many tons of material was collected? Unsure


s. Does the municipality have a low hazard exemption for this 


material? 


Yes No 


t. If catch basin sump cleaning is identified as a storm water best management practice 


in the pollutant loading analysis, was cleaning completed at the assumed frequency?


Yes- Explain frequency 


No - Explain  


Not Applicable


Collection Services - Leaf Collection Program  Not Applicable


u. Does the municipality conduct curbside leaf collection? Yes  No Unsure


v. Does the municipality notify homeowners about pickup? Yes  No Unsure


w. Where are the residents directed to store the leaves for collection?


Pile on terrace  Pile in street  Bags on terrace  Unsure


Other - Describe  


x. What is the frequency of collection? 


4 times in the spring and 8 time in the fall


y. Is collection followed by street sweeping/cleaning? Yes  No Unsure


z. Brief explanation on Collection Services reporting. If you 


marked Unsure for any questions above, justify the 


reasoning.  Limit response to 250 characters and/or attach 


supplemental information on the attachments page


Vacuum suction equipment is used for leaf collection. These machines also vacuum 


leaf debris from the roadway and gutter pan. We also sweep using our normal 


permitted frequency through the fall as weather permits.


Winter Road Management  Not Applicable







*Note: We are requesting information that goes beyond the reporting year, answer the best you can.


       Liquids (gallons) (ex. brine)


aa. How many lane-miles of roadway is the municipality 


responsible for doing snow and ice control?
Unsure120


ab. Provide amount of de-icing products used by month last winter season?


Solids (tons) (ex. sand, or salt-sand)


Product Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar


Salt 0 0 97 267 142 0


Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar


Brine 0 0 555 2105 620 0


ac. Was salt applying machinery calibrated in the reporting 


year?


Yes  No Unsure


ad. Have municipal personnel attended salt reduction strategy 


training in the reporting year?


Yes  No Unsure


Training Date Training Name # Attendance


11/18/2020 Winter Operations Training 15


ae. Brief explanation on Winter Road Management reporting. If you marked Unsure for any 


questions above, justify the reasoning.  Limit response to 250 characters and/or attach 


supplemental information on the attachments page


We keep track of the salt and brine usage per event on a spreadsheet. This also helps us to 


monitor our salt usage and make operational adjustments accordingly.


Internal (Staff) Education & Communication


af. Has training or education been held for municipal or other 


personnel involved in implementing each of the pollution 


prevention program elements ?


Yes  No Unsure


If yes, describe what training was provided  (250 character limit):


We held a sweeper operation training for in house operators.


When:  


 How many attended:  


May, 2020


8


ag. Describe how the municipality has kept the following local officials and municipal 


staff aware of the municipal storm water discharge permit programs and its 


requirements. 


Elected Officials


Municipal Officials


Appropriate Staff ( such as operators, Department heads, and those that interact 


Public Meetings, Email Correspondence, Advertisements on Social Media and Local 


Paper as well as Articles in the Tower Times.


Public Meetings, Email Correspondence, Advertisements on Social Media and in 


Local Paper as well as articles in the Tower Times.







Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Minimum Control Measures - Section 7 : 


with public)


Operational Meetings and Trainings with Staff


ah. Brief explanation on Internal Education reporting.  If you marked Unsure for any 


questions above, justify the reasoning. Limit response to 250 characters and/or 


attach supplemental information on the attachments page.


Missing Information


Note: For the minimum control measures, you must fill out all questions in sections 1 through 7


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Complete


7. Storm Sewer System Map


a. Did the municipality update their storm sewer map this year?


Yes No Unsure


If yes, check the areas the map items that got updated or changed:


 Storm water treatment facilities


 Storm pipes


 Vegetated swales


 Outfalls


 Other - Describe below


b. Brief explanation on Storm Sewer System Map reporting. If you marked Unsure for an 


question for any questions above, justify the reasoning. Limit response to 


250  characters and/or attach supplemental information on the attachments page.


Our Storm Water GIS Map is updated periodically throughout the year. The GIS Map is also 


updated after the construction season to capture any changes to our storm water assets. (see 


attached map)







Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Final Evaluation -


Fiscal Analysis


Complete the fiscal analysis table provided below. For municipalities that do not break out funding 


into permit program elements, please enter the monetary amount to your best estimate of what 


funding may be going towards these programs.


Element:  Public Education and Outreach


Element:  Public Involvement and Participation


Element:  Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 


Element:  Construction Site Pollutant Control 


Element:   Post-Construction Storm Water Management


Element:   Pollution Prevention


Missing Information


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Complete


Annual 


Expenditure
Reporting Year


Budget
Reporting Year


Budget
Upcoming 


Year


Source of Funds


14472 16292 16711 Storm water utility


28278 32489 33285 Storm water utility


15623 17942 18422 Storm water utility


27216 26803 27207 Storm water utility


26519 41855 40259 Storm water utility


148335 180884 187106 Storm water utility


Other (describe)


Stormwater Quality


33346 54151 54947 Storm water utility


Other (describe)


Storm Sewer System Map


5524 6346 6511 Storm water utility







Please provide a justification for a "0" entered in the Fiscal Analysis. Limit response to 250 characters.


Water Quality


a: Were there any known water quality improvements in the receiving waters to which the 


municipality’s storm sewer system directly discharges to?   


Yes  No Unsure          If Yes, explain below:


b : Were there any known water quality degradation in the receiving waters to which the 


municipality’s storm sewer system directly discharges to?


Yes  No Unsure          If Yes, explain below:


c: Have any of the receiving waters that the municipality discharges to been added to the impaired 


waters list during the reporting year?


Yes No  Unsure


d: Has the municipality evaluated their storm water practices to reduce the pollutants of concern?


Yes  No  Unsure


Storm Water Quality Management


a. Has the municipality completed or updated modeling in the reporting year (relating to developed 


urban area performance standards of s. NR 151.13(2)(b)1., Wis. Adm. Code)?  Yes    No 


b. If yes, enter percent reduction in the annual average mass discharging from the entire MS4 to 


surface waters of the state as compared to implementing no storm water management controls:


    Total suspended solids (TSS)  


    Total phosphorus (TP) 


Status of Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) Implementation


The permittee Stoughton City is subject to the following approved TMDLs: Rock River Basin and/or 


Beaver Dam Lake


The permittee intends to comply with the following permit requirements to show progress towards 


meeting the TMDL:



Industrial Park South Bio-Swale to Wet Detention Basin, TSS reduction - 18,989 lbs/yr 


[A.3.2] The Permittee is participating in an approved Adaptive Management Project.


Attach a summary of adaptive management implementation actions for the reporting year, including:


� Most recent estimated pollutant of concern percent reduction levels (i.e. total phosphorus and total 


suspended solids/ sediment), as compared to no controls by reachshed, within the permittee’s MS4 


permitted area. 


� Pollutant of concern percent reduction levels, as compared to no controls by reachshed, which the 


permittee intends to ultimately achieve within its own MS4 permitted area (not associated with AM 


buy-in).


� The financial dollar value contributed to an AM program for the reporting year.







Additional Information


Based on the municipality’s storm water program evaluation, describe any proposed changes to the 


municipality’s storm water program. If your response exceeds the 250 character limit, attach 


supplemental information on the attachments page.


� Identify any additional storm water measures that were initially implemented in the reporting year, 


which reduce the discharge of pollutants of concern from its MS4 permitted area (not associated with 


AM buy-in). If available, identify the incremental percent reduction gained by such measures relative 


to the MS4 permitted area.







Form 3400-224 (09/20)


Requests for Assistance on Understanding Permit Programs


Would the municipality like the Department to contact them about providing more information on 


understanding any of the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Permit programs? 


Please select all that apply:


Public Education and Outreach 


Public Involvement and Participation


Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination


Construction Site Pollutant Control


Post-Construction Storm Water Management


Pollution Prevention


Storm Water Quality Management


Storm Sewer System Map


Water Quality Concerns


Compliance Schedule Items Due


MS4 Program Evaluation


Missing Information


Do not close your work until you SAVE.







Required Attachments and Supplemental Information 


Upload Required Attachments (15 MB per file limit) - Help reduce file size and trouble shoot file uploads


*Required Item


Note: To replace an existing file, use the 'Click here to attach file ' link or press the to delete an item.


Storm Sewer System Map


Adaptive Management Summary


Attach - Other Supporting Documents


(To remove items, use your cursor to hover over the attachment section. When the drop down arrow appears, select remove item)


Attach - Permit Compliance Documents


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Any other MS4 program information for inclusion in the Annual Report may be attached on here. Use 


the Add Additional Attachments to add multiple documents.


File Attachment
StormsewerSystemMap-March2021.pdf


Adaptive Management Summary.pdf


PDF File


127 KB


AR_Other


File Attachment
StromwaterManagementProgramPlan.pdf


EO_Program


File Attachment
2020TowerTimesPDFforReport.pdf


EO_Program







File Attachment
2020SocialMediaPDFforReport.pdf


EO_Program


File Attachment
2020WebsiteMaterialsSummary.pdf


IP_Program


File Attachment
2020Workshops-Trainings-VolunteerEvents.pdf


IDDE_Program


File Attachment
MS4Outfallpics-2.pdf


IDDE_Program


File Attachment
Sueinspections.pdf


IP_Program


File Attachment
MAMSWaPAnnualReportDataSheet2020.pdf


CS_Program


File Attachment
2020StormwaterConstructionSitePollutantControl.docx


PCSSW_Program


File Attachment
2020StormwaterPostConstructionSitePollutantControl.docx


PP_BMPInsp


File Attachment
SWPPP.pdf


IP_Program


File Attachment
MAMSWaP-2020-2024-I-E-Plan-FINAL.pdf


IP_Program


File Attachment
2020StormwaterPublicInvolvementandParticipation-


MeasuresSection2.docx


EO_Program


File Attachment
2020StormwaterPublicOutreachSummary.docx







(To remove items, use your cursor to hover over the attachment section. When the drop down arrow appears, select remove item)


IDDE_Program


File Attachment
2020StormwaterIllicitDischargeDetectionandElimination.docx


PP_BMPInsp


File Attachment
MaintenanceandInspectionofStormwaterBMP.pdf


PP_BMPInventory


File Attachment
StormwaterManagementFacilities-UpdatedFeb2021.docx


EO_Program


File Attachment
PublicEducationOutreachPlanMeasurableGoals.pdf


IP_Program


File Attachment
PublicInvolvementandParticipationPlanandMeasurableGoals.pdf


IDDE_Program


File Attachment
IllicitDischargeDetectionandEliminationPlanandMeasurableGoals.pd


f


CS_Program


File Attachment
ConstructionSitePollutionControlPlanandMeasurableGoals.pdf


PCSSW_Program


File Attachment
PostConstructionStormwaterManagementPlanandMeasurableGoals


.pdf


PP_BMPInventory


File Attachment
PollutionPreventionforMunicipalOperationsPlanandMeasurableGoal


s.pdf


PP_BMPInsp


File Attachment
PollutionPreventionMunicipalSWMgmtFacilityInspandMaintPlan.pdf


� Storm Water Management Program (S050075-03 General Permit and S058416-04 Madison Area Group Permit shall 


have a written storm water management program that describes in detail how the permittee intends to comply 


with the permit requirements for each minimum control measure. Updated programs are due to the department by 


March 31, 2021.) 


� Public Education and Outreach Program







Draft and Share PDF Report with the permittee's governing body or delegated representatives. 


Press the button below to create a PDF.  The PDF will be sent to the email address associated with the WAMS ID that is signed in. After 


the annual report has been reviewed by the governing body or delegated representative, return to the MS4 eReporting System to 


submit the final report to the DNR.


� Public Involvement and Participation Program


� Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program


� Construction Site Pollutant Control Program


� Post-Construction Storm Water Management Program


� Pollution Prevention Program


� Municipal Storm Water Management Facility (BMP) Inventory (S050075-03 03 General Permit and 


S058416-04 Madison Area Group Permit 2.6.1 - inventory due to the department by March 31, 


2021.)


� Municipal Storm Water Management Facility (BMP) Inspection and Maintenance Plan (S050075-


03 03 General Permit and S058416-04 Madison Area Group Permit 2.6.2 – document due to the 


department by March 31, 2021.)


� Total Maximum Daily Load documents (*If applicable, see permit for due dates.)


� TMDL Mapping*


� TMDL Modeling*


� TMDL Implementation Plan*


� Fecal Coliform Screening Parameter *


� Fecal Coliform Inventory and Map (S050075-03 general permittees Appendix B B.5.2 – document due to the 


department by March 31, 2022)


� Fecal Coliform Source Elimination Plan (S050075-03 general permittees Appendix B - document due to the 


department by October 31,2023)


Missing Information


Draft and Share PDF Report







Steps to Complete the signature process


1. Read and Accept the Terms and Conditions


2. Press the Submit and Send to the DNR button


NOTE: For security purposes all email correspondence will be sent to the address you used when 


registering your WAMS ID. This may be a different email than that provided in the application. For 


information on your WAMS account click HERE .


Terms and Conditions


Certification: I hereby certify that I am an authorized representative of the municipality covered 


under Stoughton City  MS4 Permit for which this annual report or other compliance document is 


being submitted, and that the information contained in this submittal and all attachments were 


gathered and prepared under my direction or supervision. Based on my inquiry of the person or 


persons under my direction or supervision involved in the preparation of this document, to the best 


of my knowledge, the information is true, accurate, and complete. I further certify that the 


municipality’s governing body or delegated representatives have reviewed or been apprised of the 


contents of this annual report. I understand that Wisconsin law provides severe penalties for 


submitting false information.


Signee (must check current role prior to accepting terms and conditions)


 Authorized municipal contact using WAMS ID.


 Delegation of Signature Authority ( Form  3400-220 ) for agent signing on the behalf of the 


authorized municipal contact.


 Agent seeking to share this item with authorized municipal contact (authorized municipal 


contact must get WAMS id and complete signature).


After providing the final authorized signature, the system will send an email to the authorized party and any agents.  This email will 


include a copy to the final read only version of this application. 


Do not close your work until you SAVE.


Sign and Submit Your Application


Name: 


Title: 


Authorized Signature.


I accept the above


       terms and conditions.





		10a-R- 2021 - Stormwater Permit Annual Report

		10b-Public Works -2021- Annual Stormwater Report

		10c-Draft Annual Permit Report - Public Works 3-16-2021






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Resolution authorizing the City Finance Director to reclassify $70,000 currently Assigned to 


Liability Loss Insurance in the City’s Fund Balance to Unassigned Fund Balance  


  
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee Approved 5-0 on 3/9/21 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


  
File Number: 


 
R-33-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 23, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, the City’s financial statements have been carrying an Assigned Fund Balance amount of 


$70,000 labeled as Liability Insurance Loss since before 2007; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Director confirmed with the City’s Director of Human Resources/Risk 


Management that this amount no longer needs to be considered Assigned in the financial statements for Fund 


Balance purposes; and  


 


WHEREAS, while the City’s Fund Balance Policy does not require governing body approval to adjust 


Assigned Fund Balance amounts, in the interest of transparency, the City’s Finance Department is requesting 


permission to reclassify this amount as Unassigned. 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the City’s Finance Director is 


hereby authorized to reclassify $70,000 currently Assigned to Liability Loss Insurance in the City’s Fund 


Balance to Unassigned Fund Balance. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







GL ACTIVITY REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page: 03/04/2021 09:04 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


FROM 100-00000-34501 TO 100-00000-34501
 TRANSACTIONS FROM 12/01/2007 TO 12/31/2007


Balance Credits Debits Reference #DescriptionTypeJNLDate


Fund 100 GENERAL FUND 
0.00   BEG. BALANCE 100-00000-34501 DESIGNATED-LIABILITY INS  LOSS 12/01/2007


(70,000.00)70,000.00 12/31/2007AUDITED TRIAL BALANCE @ 12/31/07IMPTTB12/31/2007
(70,000.00)70,000.00 0.00 END BALANCE 100-00000-34501 12/31/2007


(70,000.00)70,000.00 TOTAL FOR FUND 100 GENERAL FUND 







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


G. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (cont.)


General Fund
Debt


Service Construction Outlay


TIF
District
No. 7


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


 Assigned to:
Safety camp $ 28,336 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 28,336
Youth gift 19,421 - - - - - 19,421
Bryant grant 101,049 - - - - - 101,049
Pool sinking fund 19,659 - - - - - 19,659
Shop with a cop 6,146 - - - - - 6,146
Tree plantings


developer 24,180 - - - - - 24,180
Police federal


grants 4,299 - - - - - 4,299
Paul Kraby


memorial 652 - - - - - 652
Utility payment in


lieu of taxes 883,974 - - - - - 883,974
Liability insurance


loss 70,000 - - - - - 70,000
Virgin lake


boardwalk 409 - - - - - 409
Buddy bags 46 - - - - - 46
Arts council 1,799 - - - - - 1,799
Buddy benches 625 - - - - - 625
Fire equipment - - - - - 20,783 20,783
Equipment


replacement - - - - - 527,768 527,768
Building


replacement - - - - - 567,713 567,713
Capital Projects - - 1,959,282 - - - 1,959,282
Outlay - - - 1,307,532 - - 1,307,532
Technology - - - - - 100,394 100,394


Sub-total 1,160,595 - 1,959,282 1,307,532 - 1,216,658 5,644,067


  Unassigned
(deficit): 4,248,928 - - - - (1,124,324) 3,124,604


Total Fund
Balances
(Deficit) $ 6,803,581 $ 832,401 $ 2,403,116 $ 1,307,532 $ 438,407 $ 5,592,091 $ 17,377,128


66







     City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Fund Balance Policy 


(REVISED NOVEMBER 13, 2018) 


 
A formal written policy governing the purpose and acceptable range of the City’s various fund 


balances is an effective financial management tool to responsibly utilize the City’s resources, to 


ensure the continued provision of services to residents, and to demonstrate a commitment to long 


term financial planning.   


 


Although fund balance primarily focuses on the City’s general fund, financial resources available 


in other funds should also be considered in assessing the adequacy of unrestricted fund balance 


(i.e. the total of the amounts in the various fund balances reported as committed, assigned, and 


unassigned).  It is essential that the City maintain adequate levels of fund balance in the various 


funds to mitigate current and future risks (e.g., revenue shortfalls and unanticipated 


expenditures). 


 


Credit rating agencies monitor levels of fund balance and unrestricted fund balance in a 


government’s general fund to evaluate continued creditworthiness.  Likewise, laws and 


regulations often govern appropriate levels of fund balance and unrestricted fund balance for 


state and local governments. 


 


Fund balance will be classified into the following five categories depicting the relative strength 


of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used, with the 


highest level of constraint being “nonspendable,” and the lowest being “unassigned.” 


1.   NONSPENDABLE 


Nonspendable fund balance amounts are those not in a spendable form or are required to be 


maintained intact.  Examples are: 


 Assets that will never be converted to cash (i.e. inventories). 


 Assets that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the current period (i.e. long-


term portion of receivables and the nonfinancial assets held for resale such as land). 


 Resources that must be maintained intact based on legal or contractual requirements (i.e. 


principal of an endowment or the capital of a revolving loan fund). 


 


2.  RESTRICTED 


Restricted fund balance amounts are constrained to specific purposes by their providers, through 


constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.  If amounts collected from the long-term 


portion of receivables or from other long-term assets held for sale are also limited externally in 


how they can be spent, they would be shown as restricted instead of nonspendable.  Funds can 


become restricted because of or through: 


 







 Other governments through laws and regulations. 


 Grantors or contributors through agreements. 


 Creditors through debt covenants or other contracts. 


 Enabling legislation that limits how revenue can be used. 


 


3.  COMMITTED 


 


Committed fund balance amounts are constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its 


highest level of decision-making authority.  Committed fund balance amounts cannot be used for 


any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the 


constraint.  (Super Majority Vote) 


 


 The action to commit the resources must be taken by the end of the reporting period. 


 Note that any resources accumulated as “stabilization funds” are sometimes reported as 


“committed.” 


 If amounts collected from the long-term portion of receivables or from other long-term 


assets held for sale are also limited internally, they would be shown as “committed” 


instead of “nonspendable.” 


 


4.  ASSIGNED 


 


Assigned fund balance amounts are funds the City intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent 


can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body 


delegates the authority.  The City Finance Director is authorized to designate funds as “assigned” 


if the governing body does not express the intent of the fund. 


 


 Assigned fund balance does not have to come from the governing body. 


 Assigned fund balance does not have to have formal action to be considered assigned. 


 Amounts in excess of “nonspendable,” “restricted,” and “committed” fund balance in 


funds other than the general fund automatically will be reported as “assigned” fund 


balance. 


 If amounts collected from the long-term portion of receivables or from other long-term 


assets held for sale are limited in this manner, they would be shown as “assigned” instead 


of “nonspendable.” 


 Amounts in “assigned” fund balance can never cause “unassigned” fund balance to be a 


deficit. 


 This is the category used to reflect the portion of existing fund balance that is planned for 


use to eliminate a projected deficit in the subsequent year’s budget. 


 


5.  UNASSIGNED  


 


Unassigned fund balance amounts are available for any purpose.  If the general fund has net 


resources in excess of the other four categories that surplus is considered “unassigned.”  


 “Unassigned” fund balances are typically reported only in the general fund.   


 







The order in which unrestricted resources are to be used when any of these amounts are available 


for expenditure will be “committed,” “assigned,” and then “unassigned.” 


GENERAL FUND BALANCE (RESERVE FUND *) 


 


An adequate general fund (Reserve Fund *) balance provides resources to: 


 Maintain sufficient working capital to finance operating expenditures without short-term 


borrowing for cash flow purposes.   


 Temporarily finance unanticipated expenditures or unusual fluctuation in the City’s 


revenue sources. 


 


In determining the acceptable range of general fund (Reserve Fund *) balance, the City considers 


the following: 


 


 Historical stability of the City’s revenues, expenditures, and mill rate. 


 Timing of revenue collections in relation to payments made for operational expenditures. 


 Anticipated growth in the City’s valuation and/or services and programs to be provided to 


City residents. 


 Perceived exposure to significant one-time outlays (e.g. disasters, immediate capital 


needs, state budget cuts) 


 The potential drain upon general fund resources from other funds as well as the 


availability of resources in other funds (i.e. deficits in other funds may require that a 


higher level of unrestricted fund balance be maintained in the general fund, just as, the 


availability of resources in other funds may reduce the amount of unrestricted fund 


balance needed in the general fund). 


 Liquidity (i.e. a disparity between when financial resources actually become available to 


make payments and the average maturity of related liabilities may require that a higher 


level of resources be maintained). 


 Commitments and assignments (i.e. governments may wish to maintain higher levels of 


unrestricted fund balance to compensate for any portion of unrestricted fund balance 


already committed or assigned by the government for a specific purpose). 


 It is appropriate to exclude from consideration resources that have been committed or 


assigned to some other purpose and focus on unassigned fund balance rather than on 


unrestricted fund balance.   


 


Accordingly, the City seeks to maintain its “unassigned” general fund balance (Reserve Fund *) 


at 20-25% of total general fund annual budgeted expenditures.  In addition, any amount at year 


end in excess of the 25% will be allocated in the following manner: 


  


1.) Funds in excess of the anticipated year end fund balance over the 25% will be 


committed to stabilization of the City’s Maintenance Reserve funds (Equipment 


Maintenance, Building Maintenance and IT Maintenance Funds). 


2.) The remaining balance of the unused excess fund balance (Reserve Fund *) each year 


will be committed to “one-time” equipment purchases, projects, or expenses as 


recommended by the Director of Finance and approved by the Common Council. 







The Finance Committee will review the Reserve Fund * annually following the City’s Annual 


Audit to recommend allocations of excess Reserve Fund * to the Common Council. 


 


A 2/3 vote of the entire Common Council is required to allocate fund balance (Reserve Fund *). 


 


To maintain the City’s general fund balance (Reserve fund *), the City shall: 


 


 Strive to eliminate the budgeted use of fund balance.   


 Allocate any operational surplus at the end of the fiscal year as detailed above, with 


Council consideration given to requested carry over amounts, yet ensuring this policy’s 


requirements are maintained. 


 Caution shall be exercised to ensure the utilization of fund balance (Reserve Fund *) does 


not result in a spike in the required subsequent year tax levy. 


 Annually where the “unassigned” fund balance (Reserve Fund *) is in excess of the 


recommended amount, the allocation of the excess shall be in accordance with the 


previously stated section of this policy. 


 


In addition, the City Council shall establish a contingency reserve account in the annual 


operating budget to provide for unanticipated expenditures of a nonrecurring nature, or to meet 


unexpected small increases in service delivery costs for any budget year.  This account shall be 


funded at a minimum of 0.1% (.001) and a maximum of 1.0% (.01) of the annual general fund 


budgeted expenditures.  The City Council may fund the contingency reserve account at a level 


higher than the maximum 1.0% of the annual general fund budgeted expenditures if it deems the 


action necessary.  


 


It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director to monitor the aforementioned reserve 


balances on a regular basis and report material deviations to the City Council. 


 


* -Defined as General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance less Unassigned Fund Balance amounts 


for any Other Governmental Fund not specifically shown as Nonspendable Fund Balance in the 


General Fund. 


 





		11a-R- -2021 Assigned Fund Balance Adjustment

		11b-Assigned Fund Balance Adjustment










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Resolution to forgive the amounts advanced to the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority 


from the City of Stoughton totaling $66,574  


  
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee Approved 5-0 on 3/9/21 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


  
File Number: 


 
R-34-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 23, 2021 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority (“RDA”) was allowed to accrue a 


payable to the City of Stoughton of approximately $67,000 in 2015; and 


 


WHEREAS, the costs incurred by the RDA that resulted in this payable related mainly to legal and 


professional services required for the purchase of the MilFab property; and  


 


WHEREAS, this payable should never have been allowed to accrue as the RDA’s only source of funding is 


through the City and the RDA has no means of paying this amount back; and 


 


WHEREAS, during the City’s annual bond rating process, Moody’s inquires about the City’s interfund 


advances, including this amount owed by the RDA; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City’s 2020 financial results allow for this amount to be written off and eliminate further 


inquiries by Moody’s during the annual rating process going forward; and 


 


WHEREAS, this is a noncash transaction and will not have any impact on the City’s Unassigned Fund 


Balance. 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the City’s Finance Director is 


hereby authorized to finalize the accounting to forgive the amounts owed by the RDA at December 31, 2020. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:03/04/2021 09:36 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton
                                     Fund 261 REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY


PERIOD ENDED
12/31/2020


PERIOD ENDED
12/31/2019DescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


Unclassified
3,301.57 0.00 PRIMARY CHECKING261-00000-11100


3,301.57 0.00 Unclassified


3,301.57 0.00 Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


Unclassified
3,301.57 341.68 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE261-00000-21100


66,574.30 66,574.30 ADVANCE FROM GEN FUND261-00000-25100


69,875.87 66,915.98 Unclassified


69,875.87 66,915.98 Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


Unclassified
(66,915.98)(67,848.81)FUND BALANCE261-00000-39000


(66,915.98)(67,848.81)Unclassified


(66,915.98)(67,848.81)Total Fund Balance


(66,915.98)(67,848.81)Beginning Fund Balance


341.68 932.83 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
(66,574.30)(66,915.98)Ending Fund Balance


3,301.57 0.00 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance



jfriedl

Highlight



jfriedl

Highlight







City of Stoughton
General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance Analysis
As of December 31, 2020 and previously


Forecasted 2020
After Forecasted


Adjustments 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
General Fund 


Fund Balance
Nonspendable 1,458,338$             1,524,912$             1,394,058$              1,159,444$       1,016,502$       991,095$          1,052,968$       947,919$          
Restricted -$                        -                              -                               -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Committed -$                        -                              -                               -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Assigned 1,090,151$             1,160,151               1,160,595                1,206,970         1,119,700         1,069,756         1,038,261         1,017,182         
Unassigned 4,482,473$             4,412,471               4,248,928                3,884,355         3,743,097         3,364,758         3,231,239         2,930,387         


7,097,534$             7,097,534$             6,803,581$              6,250,769$       5,879,299$       5,425,609$       5,322,468$       4,895,488$       


Adjustments include moving the $70,000 Liability Insurance Loss amount to Unassigned and forgiving the $67,000 advance to the RDA.


Other Governmental Funds
Unassigned Deficit Fund Balances 
 - Potiental funded by General Fund's unassigned category (does not include TIF Deficits the City has already setup Advances between General Fund and TIF's).  
    The amount of advances are shown within Nonspendable Fund Balance in the General Fund.


Opera House (Note A ) (432,723)$               (432,723)$               (361,299)$                (285,304)$         (331,496)$         (247,842)$         (215,827)$         (129,534)$         


(432,723)$               (432,723)$               (361,299)$                (285,304)$         (331,496)$         (247,842)$         (215,827)$         (129,534)$         


General Fund
Available Unassigned Fund Balance 4,049,750$             3,979,748$             3,887,629$              3,599,051$       3,411,601$       3,116,916$       3,015,412$       2,800,853$       
Budgeted Expenditures 13,942,314$           13,942,314$           13,924,094$            13,068,988$     12,826,246$     12,468,698$     12,110,204$     11,665,862$     


Compliance
 with Minimum Fund Balance Policy 29.0% 28.5% 27.9% 27.5% 26.6% 25.0% 24.9% 24.0%


Availability to 25% with unassigned monies 564,172$                494,169$                406,606$                 331,804$          205,040$          (259)$                (12,139)$           (115,613)$         
Availability to 20% with unassigned monies 1,261,287$             1,191,285$             1,102,810$              985,253$          846,352$          623,176$          593,371$          467,681$          


Note A  - Actual Unassigned Fund Balance for the Opera House at 12/31/20 was ($228,519); however, for a more conservative approach we have reduced that value by the amount of
CARES funding received in 2020.


14%


16%


18%


20%


22%


24%


26%


28%


30%


2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020


Unassigned Fund Balance Per Policy





		12a-R- -2021 RDA Receivable Write Off

		12b-RDA Receivable Write Off






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approval of the Fiber Optic Agreement and Grant of Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) Between the City 


of Stoughton and TDS Metrocom 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee to meet on March 22, 2021 


 
Fiscal Impact: $180,000.00 


 
File Number: 


 
R-35-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 23, 2021 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities maintains 17 remote facilities, including electric substation, water production wells and 


storage towers, and sanitary sewer treatment facilities and pumping stations, and each of these facilities contain numerous 


pieces of networked equipment that communicate with our operational control and security systems; and 


WHEREAS, There exists a need for secure dedicated fiber optic communications (dark fiber) between these remote 


facilities and the Stoughton Utilities Administration Office; and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff brought the dark fiber IRU agreement concept to the Stoughton Utilities Committee 


on June 9, 2020 to discuss the concept and determine the feasibility of moving forward with discussions; and   


WHEREAS, Funds were allocated for the dark fiber IRU agreement in the Stoughton Utilities 2021 Budget and Five Year 


(2021 – 2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan; and 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff has negotiated an agreement with TDS Metrocom, whereby four secure dedicated 


and unlit (dark) fiber optic strands will be installed to connect all Stoughton Utilities remote facilities, and provided to 


Stoughton Utilities for their use under an Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) agreement; and 


WHEREAS, on March 22, 2021, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved and recommended to the Stoughton Common 


Council the Fiber Optic Agreement and Grant of Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) Between the City of Stoughton and TDS 


Metrocom; now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Stoughton Common Council that that the proper city official(s) be hereby directed to 


enter into an agreement for the Fiber Optic Agreement and Grant of Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) Between the City of 


Stoughton and TDS Metrocom. 


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  


 







 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    March 18, 2021  


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Approval of the Fiber Optic Agreement and Grant of Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) 


Between the City of Stoughton and TDS Metrocom 


Stoughton Utilities maintains 17 remote facilities, including electric substation, water production wells 


and storage towers, and sanitary sewer treatment facilities and pumping stations.  Each of these facilities 


contain numerous pieces of networked equipment that communicate with our operational control and 


security systems.   


Our electric, water, and wastewater Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems allow 


the utility to operate efficiently 24 hours a day and seven days a week, using system automation to make 


system modifications to provide safe and reliable service to customers without the need for human 


interaction for route adjustments.  In addition, systems are in place for access, intrusion detection, fire, 


and other security requirements. 


The need for secure dedicated fiber optic communications has been known by the utility team for a while, 


but there have not been affordable options available to us to install such systems.  Following the request 


by TDS Metrocom to obtain an easement from the utility for the placement of one of their master control 


nodes, we recognized an opportunity to work with them as they built out their citywide fiber optic system 


to obtain dedicated fiber optic communications (“dark fiber”).   On June 9, 2020, staff brought the dark 


fiber concept to the Stoughton Utilities Committee to discuss the concept and determine the feasibility 


of moving forward with discussions.  Funds were allocated towards the dark fiber build in the Stoughton 


Utilities 2021 Budget and Five Year (2021 – 2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan. 


After many months of discussing the possibility of such a system to connect all Stoughton Utilities 


remote facilities, we came to an agreement that meets the needs of both parties.  Stoughton Utilities staff 


has been working diligently to facilitate and expedite the buildout of the new fiber optic communications 


network, including the pole replacement work to make our distribution system ready for the new 


communications attachments.  In recognition of our efforts, TDS Metrocom has agreed to provide 


Stoughton Utilities with dedicated, unlit strands of fiber optic cable to all Stoughton Utilities facilities 


for a negotiated, reduced up-front cost that would not be obtainable if Stoughton Utilities were to 


complete a similar installation on our own, or if we were lease the facilities as a commercial customer. 


The attached Fiber Optic Agreement and Grant of Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) Between the City of 


Stoughton and TDS Metrocom is the result of many months of negotiation, fiber optic network review, 


site visits, and contract creation and review.   


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the Fiber Optic Agreement and Grant 


of Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) Between the City of Stoughton and TDS Metrocom, and recommend 


approval of the agreement to the Stoughton Common Council. 







Execution Version 


Page 1 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


FIBER OPTIC AGREEMENT AND GRANT OF IRU 


  


 


THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is effective as of the date of the last signature below and is 


made by and between TDS Metrocom, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having an 


office located at 525 Junction Road, Suite 6000, Madison, Wisconsin 53717 (“TDS”) and the 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, operating in its capacity as a municipal electric utility, having a 


place of business at 600 South 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 (“Stoughton Utilities” or “SU”), 


each referred to as a “Party” or jointly referred to as the “Parties.” 


 


BACKGROUND 


 


A. TDS owns, operates, and maintains an optical fiber communication transmission system 


in the City of Stoughton (collectively, “TDS’s Fiber System”). 


 


B. The Parties have agreed that SU shall retain a perpetual right to use four (4) fibers in the 


TDS Fiber System to connect SU buildings and other SU facilities, and not for the 


provision of internet access or resale in any manner. A map of the interconnection points 


contemplated by this Agreement is included as Attachment A. 


 


C. TDS and SU desire to enter into an agreement governing SU’s right to use these fibers, 


upon all the terms and conditions set forth below. 


 


In consideration of their mutual promises, the Parties agree as follows: 


 


ARTICLE 1: DEFINITIONS 


 


The following terms are used in this Agreement: 


 


1.1 “Acceptance” means SU’s issuance of an Acceptance Notice or deemed acceptance of a 


Segment and/or entire route given by SU pursuant to Article 5 of this Agreement after the 


SU IRU Fibers have been tested and found acceptable. 


 


1.2 “Acceptance Notice” means the notice of acceptance or deemed acceptance of a 


Segment and/or entire route given to TDS by SU pursuant to this Agreement. 


 


1.3  “Dark Fiber” means Fiber between two specified locations that has no optronics or 


electronics attached to it. 


 


1.4 “Fiber” means one or more glass strands that are protected by a color-coded buffer tube 


and that are used to transmit a communication signal along the glass strand in the form of 


pulses of light. 


 


1.5 “Fiber Optic Cable” or “Cable” means a collection of Fibers contained in color-coded 


buffer tubes with a protective outer covering, which covering includes stiffening rods and 


filler. 


 







2 
 


 


1.6 “Indefeasible Right of Use” or “IRU” is an exclusive and irrevocable right, for the term 


of this Agreement as set out in Article 3, to use the SU IRU Fibers, provided, however, 


that granting of such IRU does not convey legal title to the Fibers. 


 


1.7  “Initial Segments” means each Segment identified on Exhibit A-1. 


 


1.8 “IRU Effective Date” means the date of Acceptance for a completed Segment.  


  


1.9 “Proportionate Share” means the percentage determined by dividing the number of SU 


IRU Fibers in the TDS Cable by the total number of Fibers in the same TDS Cable. 


 


1.10 “Rejection Notice” means the notice of rejection of a Segment and/or entire route given 


to TDS by SU pursuant to this Agreement.   


 


1.11  “Rights-of-Way “or “Rights” see Article 13 for definition. 


 


1.12  “Segments” are portions of Cable routes specified in Exhibit A-1 of this Agreement (as 


amended or supplemented from time to time), which are capable of being tested and 


accepted.  


 


1.13 “SU IRU Fibers” are the Dark Fibers in the TDS Cable as to which SU obtains an IRU 


pursuant to this Agreement. 


 


1.14 “TDS Cable” means a Cable containing one or more Dark Fibers owned by TDS and in 


which SU has an IRU pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 


 


ARTICLE 2: FIBER OPTIC AGREEMENT 


 


2.1  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, TDS grants SU an IRU in up to 


four (4) Dark Fibers in the TDS Cables as specifically described in Exhibit A-1.  The 


IRU includes a non-exclusive right to use tangible and intangible property owned by TDS 


in order to use the SU IRU Fibers, including but not limited to cable sheathing, troughing, 


pedestals, slack containers, and related equipment necessary for the operation and use of 


the SU IRU Fibers as contemplated herein, but excluding any electronic or optronic 


equipment, which shall be provided by SU at its sole cost. The purpose of the SU IRU 


Fibers is to enable SU to connect the SU sites shown on Attachment A via the Initial 


Segments.  SU shall be entitled to use the SU IRU Fibers solely to connect SU buildings 


and other SU facilities and not to serve any other third party. 


2.2 From time to time after execution of this Agreement, additional Segments may be 


incorporated into this Agreement by both parties executing a supplemental exhibit in the 


form of Exhibit A-x of this Agreement (“Additional Segments”). For all Additional 


Segments in which an IRU is granted to SU, the separate Exhibit A-x, executed by both 


parties, will be attached hereto and titled so as to identify this Agreement, the Additional 


Segment(s) affected, the resulting IRU fee, if any, and any other material terms and 


conditions relating to the Additional Segment(s). Any provision relating to the affected 


Additional Segment contained in a supplemental Exhibit A-x that is more specific than a 







3 
 


comparable or contrary provision contained in this Agreement shall control with respect 


to that Additional Segment. Upon Acceptance of the Additional Segment set forth in a 


supplemental Exhibit A-x, SU shall acquire an IRU for the SU IRU Fibers specified in 


the supplemental Exhibit A-x.  In the event that this Agreement is terminated with 


respect to the Initial Segments, the Agreement shall continue as necessary with respect to 


any Additional Segments.  


2.3 This Agreement does not obligate TDS to supply to SU any optical or electrical 


equipment or other facilities, including without limitation, local distribution facilities, 


collocation space, regeneration facilities, generators, batteries, air conditioners, fire 


protection equipment, monitoring equipment, and testing equipment, all of which are the 


sole responsibility of SU. 


ARTICLE 3: IRU EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM 


 


3.1 SU will be entitled to use the SU IRU Fibers upon Acceptance of an Initial Segment 


containing those Fibers.  The initial IRU term for all Initial Segments shall start on the 


Acceptance date of the first Initial Segment to be constructed and accepted and shall 


terminate after twenty (20) years (“Initial IRU Term”).  For the sake of clarity, all Initial 


Segments shall have the same Initial IRU Term.  Provided that SU is not then in default 


under this Agreement, the IRU term shall automatically renew for four (4) consecutive 


terms of five (5) years each (each a “Renewal Term”), unless either Party shall give 


notice to the other of its intention not to renew 180 days before the end of the Initial IRU 


Term or any Renewal Term, in which case the IRU term and this Agreement with respect 


to the Initial Segments shall terminate at the end of the term in which notice was given.  


However, if at the end of the Initial IRU Term, TDS abandons the Cable entirely, SU will 


have the right to take possession of and maintain the SU IRU Fiber assets without any 


cost to SU.  Moreover, should TDS desire to replace the SU IRU Fibers at any time 


during the Initial IRU Term or any Renewal Term, this Agreement will continue with 


respect to the replaced SU IRU Fibers on the same terms and conditions set forth herein. 


3.2 Expiration or termination of this Agreement shall not affect the rights or obligations of 


any Party with respect to any payments of expenses incurred prior to the date of 


termination or pursuant to Article 10 (Taxes); Article 11 (Liability); and Article 13 


(Permits and Required Rights). 


ARTICLE 4: CONSIDERATION AND PAYMENT 


 


4.1 As consideration for the provision of the SU IRU Fibers described in Exhibit A-1, SU 


shall make a one-time, non-recurring IRU fee payment to TDS in the amount specified in 


Exhibit A-1 (“Payment”).  TDS shall invoice SU for the Payment within 90 days of the 


full execution of this Agreement, which Payment SU shall make within thirty (30) days 


of SU’s receipt of TDS’s invoice.  The invoice will show in detail TDS’s estimated actual 


cost of constructing the SU IRU Fibers described in Exhibit A-1.  If the actual cost of 


construction is less than the Payment SU made, TDS shall refund the difference to SU 


within sixty (60) days after completion of construction. 







4 
 


4.2 For accounting, tax, and state regulatory purposes, SU shall be treated as the beneficial 


owner of the SU IRU Fibers.   


4.3 TDS shall be responsible for splicing and testing to provide the SU IRU Fibers.  After 


Acceptance, any cost for additional splicing and testing for SU to access the SU IRU 


Fibers will be billed to and paid by SU within thirty (30) days after receipt of TDS’s 


invoice. 


4.4 Within sixty (60) days of SU’s Acceptance of the last of the Initial Segments, TDS shall 


invoice SU for the first annual maintenance fee as set forth in Exhibit A-1.  SU shall pay 


such annual invoices within thirty (30) days after receipt of TDS’s invoice. 


4.5 It is understood and acknowledged that TDS shall be deemed the legal owner of the SU 


IRU Fibers.   


ARTICLE 5: ACCEPTANCE AND DOCUMENTATION 


 


5.1 The acceptance procedures set out in this Article 5 apply to each Segment containing the 


SU IRU Fibers once constructed and tested. At the completion of a Segment’s 


construction, TDS shall provide SU the opportunity to perform, subject to the protocols 


of the Rights-of-Way agreements, a physical inspection of SU IRU Fibers and routes.  In 


addition, TDS shall provide the acceptance test plan (“ATP”) and test results for the SU 


IRU Fibers in accordance with the requirements of Exhibit B. 


 


5.2 Within fourteen (14) days after receiving the ATP and test results for a completed 


Segment, SU shall have the option to inspect the SU IRU Fibers in that Segment in 


accordance with the Exhibit B acceptance tests. SU shall then provide TDS with either 


an “Acceptance Notice” or a “Rejection Notice” in the form attached as Exhibit C, with 


an explanation of how the SU IRU Fibers do not meet the specifications set out in 


Exhibit B in the case of a Rejection.  TDS will cooperate with SU to provide additional 


Documentation (as defined below) that would reasonably allow SU to evaluate the 


acceptability of the SU IRU Fibers. In addition, SU shall be allowed, subject to the 


protocols of the Rights-of-Way agreements, to conduct its own tests, at SU’s expense, to 


determine acceptability of the SU IRU Fibers.  Issuance of an Acceptance Notice or 


failure to issue a Rejection Notice during the time period indicated above shall constitute 


Acceptance of the SU IRU Fibers by SU, but such Acceptance shall not invalidate the 


warranties described in this Agreement.   


 


5.3 Should SU reject the SU IRU Fibers by providing a Rejection Notice within the 


applicable 14-day period (“Rejection”), TDS shall use commercially reasonable efforts, 


including retesting the SU IRU Fibers, to substantially cure the material defective 


conditions identified in the Rejection Notice within sixty (60) days and to ensure the SU 


IRU Fibers conform to the specifications in Exhibit B.  The 60-day cure period shall be 


extended if the material defective conditions cannot be reasonably remedied within such 


time period and if TDS proceeds diligently to cure the material defective conditions after 


receipt of the Rejection Notice.  Upon substantial cure, the additional SU IRU Fibers 


shall be deemed accepted by SU.   


 







5 
 


5.4 Any disputes as to Acceptance or Rejection of any SU IRU Fibers shall be resolved in 


accordance with Article 22. 


5.5 Within ninety (90) days after Acceptance of any SU IRU Fibers, TDS shall provide 


general, non-proprietary documentation regarding the Cable, which shall consist of the 


following:  (i) a route diagram that illustrates the location of the end, mid span splice, and 


mid span repeater locations; (ii) a summary of distances between such locations; (iii) the 


type of Cable construction between locations; and (iv) any geographical information 


deemed necessary to further clarify the route (“Documentation”).  Documentation may 


be provided or obtained from a third party through which TDS has obtained an IRU. 


ARTICLE 6: FRANCHISE/LICENSE/PERMIT FEES 


 


6.1 Each Party will be responsible for the appropriate government filings, licenses, or other 


requirements to place its Fibers into operation, including, but not limited to, applicable 


municipal licenses and/or franchise agreements. 


 


6.2 Pole attachment, permit, or easement fees or any other fees related to the construction of 


a Segment will be the responsibility of and paid for by TDS.   


 


ARTICLE 7: MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR  


 


7.1 TDS warrants that it will use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain the TDS 


Cables in accordance with prevailing telecommunications industry standards and with the 


standards contained in Exhibit D. 


 


7.2 All routine maintenance and repair functions and emergency maintenance and repair 


functions, including “one-call” responses, and conduit locate services shall be performed 


by TDS or its designee for a period coterminous with the term of this Agreement at 


TDS’s expense, subject to reimbursement for emergency maintenance as provided below. 


 


7.2.1 Emergency Maintenance. TDS shall respond to any failure, interruption, or 


impairment in the operation of the SU IRU Fibers within four (4) hours after 


receiving a report of any such failure, interruption, or impairment.  TDS shall use 


commercially reasonable efforts to perform maintenance and repair to correct any 


failure, interruption or impairment in the operation of the SU IRU Fibers within 


eight (8) hours in accordance with the procedures set forth in Exhibit D.  Except 


as contemplated in Section 7.3 below, SU shall not pay for any emergency 


maintenance.  SU may assist with emergency maintenance if approved by TDS. 


 


7.2.2 Routine Maintenance. TDS shall schedule and perform specific periodic 


maintenance and repair checks and services, as set forth in standards attached as 


Exhibit D.  Additional maintenance can be performed from time to time on the 


SU IRU Fibers at TDS’s reasonable discretion or upon SU’s reasonable request 


with reasonable advance notice to TDS.  The annual maintenance fee described in 


this Article 7 covers all routine maintenance. 


 







6 
 


7.3 SU will reimburse one hundred percent of all costs associated with damage to the SU 


IRU Fibers, or any Segment thereof, caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of 


SU, its employees, agents, or contractors. 


 


7.4 TDS shall repair, at its sole expense and without reimbursement from SU, any damage to 


the SU IRU Fibers, or any Segment thereof, caused by neglect or willful misconduct of 


TDS, its affiliates, employees, contractors or agents. 


 


7.5 TDS will, upon SU’s request, perform maintenance, restoration, or relocation of fiber 


laterals outside of the right-of-way and shall charge SU on a time and materials basis. 


 


7.6 TDS shall provide reasonable advance notice to SU of maintenance or repairs that may 


affect the SU IRU Fibers.  SU shall have the right, subject to the protocols of the Right-


of-Way agreements, to have a representative present any time maintenance or repairs are 


performed that may affect the SU IRU Fibers. 


 


ARTICLE 8: SPLICING 


 


8.1 It may be necessary to splice SU IRU Fibers into the TDS Cable.  In order to maintain the 


integrity of the TDS Cable after Acceptance, TDS, or a contractor operating under TDS’s 


direction, must perform all splicing performed on the TDS Cable. 


 


8.2 For future expansion at existing splice points, TDS will perform the necessary splicing 


upon written or email request by SU.  Normal requests for splicing shall be submitted at 


least thirty (30) business days prior to the requested splicing date, and expedited requests 


shall be submitted at least fifteen (15) business days prior to the requested splicing date.  


TDS shall obtain any and all permits necessary for such splicing.  SU agrees that it will 


not perform any splicing or interfere in any manner with the TDS Cable.   


 


8.3 After Acceptance, the cost of splicing Fibers into the TDS Cable will be borne by SU.  


The optical splice points for each route shall be mutually agreed upon in writing by the 


Parties.  TDS shall provide SU with a splicing and splice testing schedule(s) so SU’s 


representative may be present, subject to protocols of Rights-of-Way agreements.  


Splicing documentation (ATP and test results) will be provided by TDS within ninety 


(90) days after splicing is completed. 


 


8.4 SU shall provide thirty (30) business days’ written notification to TDS if a new splice 


point is needed after initial Acceptance of a Segment.  Approval of new splice points will 


be at the sole discretion of TDS, and such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 


 


8.5 All splicing will be performed by the fusion splicing method or by any other method that 


is mutually agreeable to the Parties. 


 


ARTICLE 9: WARRANTIES 


 


9.1 TDS represents and warrants, at the time of Acceptance, its constructed Cable(s) to be of 


good workmanship and materials, except any materials that are separately warranted by 







7 
 


the manufacturer, and further warrants the SU IRU Fibers to perform and operate in 


accordance with the manufacturer’s specifications and industry standards. 


 


9.2 TDS represents and warrants that all equipment and materials to be used in the 


construction of the SU IRU Fibers covered by this Agreement (other than those in TDS’s 


Fiber System) will be new, of good quality, properly constructed and/or installed, free of 


defects, and in conformity with the requirements of this Agreement. Such warranty shall 


be effective, with respect to each specific Segment for the same period of warranty 


provided to TDS by its contractors (normally a one (1) year period from date of 


acceptance by TDS).  All work not conforming to the standards may be considered 


defective by SU, and TDS shall immediately replace any damaged or defective work at 


its own expense. TDS shall use reasonable efforts to promptly repair or replace all such 


defective work, provided that TDS shall repair or replace such defective work within 


thirty (30) days following its confirmation of the defect, unless reasonable circumstances 


dictate a shorter or longer period, in which event the Parties shall in good faith mutually 


agree upon such period.  All replaced defective equipment or items shall become the sole 


property of TDS. 


 


9.3 SU’s sole and exclusive remedy and TDS’s sole and exclusive maximum liability under 


the warranties contained in this Article 9 shall be, at the sole option of TDS, to repair 


(with new or functionally operative parts) or replace any defective portion of the TDS 


Cable of which TDS receives notice during the warranty period, provided that TDS is 


promptly notified in writing upon discovery by SU that any portion of the SU IRU Fibers 


has failed to conform with the terms of this Agreement, such writing to include an 


explanation of alleged defects. 


 


9.4 In addition to the foregoing warranties, TDS hereby assigns to SU, and SU shall have the 


benefit of, any and all contractors’ and suppliers’ warranties with respect to the TDS 


Cable and material contained therein.  


 


9.5 TDS’s warranty does not extend to defects caused by acts of nature, accident, fire or 


other hazard, nor resulting from SU’s, its designees’ or third Parties’ misuse, neglect, 


alterations, storage, attempts to repair, or use of other supplies not meeting specifications. 


 


9.6 THE FOREGOING WARRANTIES AND REMEDIES CONSTITUTE THE ONLY 


WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE TDS CABLE AND ARE EXCLUSIVE 


REMEDIES IN THE EVENT OF BREACH OF SUCH WARRANTIES. SUCH 


WARRANTIES ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WRITTEN OR 


ORAL, STATUTORY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT 


LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A 


PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  NEITHER PARTY SHALL IN ANY EVENT BE LIABLE 


FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY 


NATURE WHATSOEVER FOR ANY REASON. 


 







8 
 


ARTICLE 10: TAXES 


 


10.1 As used in this Article 10, “Tax” shall mean any tax, assessment, charge, or levy 


imposed by any authority having the power to tax, including any city, county, state, or 


federal government or quasi-governmental agency or taxing authority.  


 


10.2. Upon SU’s Acceptance of the SU IRU Fibers, it shall be responsible for any and all sales, 


use, income, gross receipts, or other Tax assessed on the basis of SU’s use of the SU IRU 


Fibers.  Upon SU’s Acceptance of the SU IRU Fibers, it shall be solely responsible for 


any real or personal property Taxes relating in any way to the SU IRU Fibers, and SU 


shall reimburse TDS for SU’s Proportionate Share of any such Tax TDS is assessed and 


pays.  The Parties shall cooperate to minimize adverse tax consequences and may 


mutually amend this Agreement to improve their respective tax positions. 


 


ARTICLE 11: LIABILITY 


 


11.1 Each Party shall be responsible its own acts, errors, or omissions and for the acts, errors, 


or omissions of its employees, officers, officials, agents, boards, committees, and 


commissions, and shall be responsible for any losses, claims, and liabilities (including 


providing its own defense) that are attributable to such acts, errors, or omissions arising 


out of this Agreement. In situations involving joint liability, each Party shall only be 


responsible for such losses, claims, and liabilities that are attributable to its own acts, 


errors, or omissions and the acts, errors or omissions of its employees, officers, officials, 


agents, boards, committees, and commissions.  


 


11.2 Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any indirect, special, punitive, or 


consequential damages (including, but not limited to, any claim for loss of services) 


arising under this Agreement or from any breach or partial breach of the provisions of 


this Agreement or arising out of any act or omission of either Party, its departments, 


elected officials, board members, commissioners, directors, officers, employees, servants, 


contractors, and/or agents.   


 


11.3 No provision of this Agreement is intended, or shall be construed, to be a waiver for any 


purpose by SU of any provision of Wis. Stat. § 893.80 or § 345.05 or any other notice 


requirements, governmental immunities, or damages limitations that may apply to SU or 


any of its utilities, departments, employees, officers, elected officials, board members, 


commissioners, or agents.   


 


11.4 Nothing contained herein shall operate as a limitation on the right of either Party to bring 


an action for damages, including consequential damages, against any third party based on 


any acts or omissions of such third party as such acts or omissions may affect the 


operation or use of the TDS Cable or any SU IRU Fibers; provided, however, that each 


Party shall assign such rights or claims, execute such documents and do whatever else 


may be reasonably necessary to enable the injured Party to pursue any such action against 


such third party. 


 







9 
 


ARTICLE 12: FORCE MAJEURE 


 


12.1 The obligations of the Parties (except for the payment of money hereunder) are subject to 


force majeure, and neither Party shall be in default under this Agreement if any failure or 


delay in performance is caused by strike or other labor dispute; accidents; acts of God; 


fire; flood; earthquake; lightning; unusually severe weather; material or facility shortages 


or unavailability not resulting from such Party’s failure to timely place orders therefor; 


lack of transportation; legal inability to access property; acts of any governmental 


authority; government codes, ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations or restrictions 


(collectively “Regulations”) (but not to the extent the delay caused by such could be 


avoided by rerouting the Cable if such a reroute was commercially reasonable); 


condemnation or the exercise of rights of eminent domain; war or civil disorder; or any 


other cause beyond the reasonable control of either Party.  The excused Party shall use 


reasonable efforts under the circumstances to avoid or remove such causes of non-


performance and shall proceed to perform with reasonable dispatch whenever such 


causes are removed or ceased.  Notification shall be given by the excused Party of the 


cause and of the estimated duration of the delay, when possible. 


 


ARTICLE 13: PERMITS AND REQUIRED RIGHTS-OF-WAY 


 


13.1 TDS shall obtain, on or before Acceptance with respect to each Segment to be added 


hereunder, any and all right-of-way agreements, easements, licenses, rights, or other 


agreement necessary for the use of poles, conduit, cable, wire, physical plant facilities, 


and/or access to real property underlying the TDS Cable (“Rights-of-Way” or “Rights”).  


Further, as of Acceptance, TDS shall obtain any and all rights, licenses, franchises, 


authorizations, agreements, permits, and approvals (including without limitation, any 


necessary local, state, federal or tribal authorizations and environmental permits) and 


collectively referred to as “Permits,” that are necessary for the operation of the TDS 


Cable.  TDS shall obtain all Rights and Permits in the name of TDS.   


 


13.2 It is expressly understood that TDS’s and SU’s obligations under this Agreement are 


conditioned upon and shall in all respects be subject to the continuation or acquisition of 


such Rights and Permits.  TDS hall use its best efforts to obtain or to cause such Rights 


and Permits to remain effective throughout the duration of this Agreement, and any 


extension thereof.  Copies of any and all agreements with respect to Rights and Permits 


shall be made available to the other Party upon request.  If confidentiality obligations 


under such agreements preclude provision of the entire document, summaries of the 


substantive provisions thereof will be provided.  In the event TDS is unable to resolve 


any issue with respect to its Rights or Permits in a manner reasonably acceptable to SU, 


SU may, after providing TDS thirty (30) days prior written notice, attempt to resolve the 


issue directly with the granter of such Rights. 


 


ARTICLE 14: RELOCATION OF CABLE  


 


14.1 If TDS is required to relocate or replace the TDS’s Cable (shown on Attachment A in 


red) or any of the appurtenant facilities used or required in providing the SU IRU Fibers, 


and the gross cost (excluding reimbursements) of TDS’s relocation or replacement 


exceeds $10,000 per occurrence, then, so long as such work is not necessitated by a 







10 
 


breach of TDS’s obligations, SU shall reimburse TDS for SU’s Proportionate Share of 


such relocation or replacement costs in excess of $10,000, including, without limitation, 


placement or relocation labor, fiber acquisition, splicing, and testing.  In the event that a 


third party reimbursed TDS for all or a portion of the cost to perform such relocation 


work, then this reimbursement amount shall reduce on a dollar-for-dollar basis the 


aggregate amount of costs deemed to have been spent by TDS.  TDS shall deliver to SU 


updated as-built drawings and Documentation with respect to any relocated portion of the 


Cable not later than ninety (90) days following such relocation. 


 


14.2 If TDS is required to relocate the TDS Cable or any of the appurtenant facilities used or 


required in providing the SU IRU Fibers in any of the utility-specific Segments that 


would not have been built but for the SU’s request (shown on Attachment A in blue), 


SU shall reimburse TDS for all relocation costs TDS incurs if, at the time of the 


relocation, SU is the only user of the specific Segment.  If however, at the time of 


relocation, SU is not the only user of the specific Segment, SU shall pay its Proportionate 


Share of any relocation costs in excess of $10,000, including, without limitation, 


placement or relocation labor, fiber acquisition, splicing, and testing.  In the event that a 


third party reimbursed TDS for all or a portion of the cost to perform such relocation 


work, this reimbursement amount shall reduce on a dollar-for-dollar basis the aggregate 


amount of costs deemed to have been spent by TDS.   TDS shall deliver to SU updated 


as-built drawings and Documentation with respect to any relocated portion of the Cable 


not later than ninety (90) days following such relocation. 


 


14.3 TDS shall give SU sixty (60) days’ prior notice of any such relocation, if possible, and 


shall have the obligation to proceed with such relocation, including, but not limited to, 


the right to determine the extent of, the timing of, and methods to use for such relocation; 


provided that any such relocated Cable and Fibers shall be constructed and tested in 


accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth in this Agreement.  


Acceptance of the relocated SU IRU Fibers shall be in accordance with Article 5 of this 


Agreement.  In addition, TDS shall use reasonable efforts to ensure relocation shall not 


result in an adverse change to the operations, performance, or connection points with 


SU’s facilities, or end points of the applicable Cable. 


 


14.4 SU has the right to review TDS’s relocation plans (14) days prior to any relocation and 


has the right to have, subject to the protocols of the Rights-of-Way agreements, a 


representative present at the time TDS relocates the Cable that contains the SU IRU 


Fibers. 


 


ARTICLE 15: CONDEMNATION 


 


15.1 In the event any portion of the TDS Cable or the Rights-of-Way in or upon which it has 


been installed, become the subject of a condemnation proceeding by any governmental 


agency or other party cloaked with the power of eminent domain for public purpose or 


use, then and in such event, it is agreed that TDS shall be entitled to pursue an award in 


such proceedings and shall be solely entitled to any award arising therefrom. 


 


15.2 Upon its receipt of a formal notice of condemnation or taking, TDS shall notify SU 


immediately of any condemnation proceeding filed against the TDS Cable, including the 







11 
 


SU IRU Fibers, or the Rights-of-Way in or upon which the SU IRU Fibers have been 


installed.  TDS shall also notify SU of any similar threatened condemnation proceeding 


and agrees not to sell the Cable or release Rights-of-Way to such acquiring agency, 


authority or other party in lieu of condemnation without the prior written consent of SU, 


which consent shall not be unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or denied. 


 


15.3 It is expressly recognized and understood by SU that relocation costs resulting from any 


such condemnation proceeding may not be reimbursed by the condemning authority and 


SU shall pay its Proportionate Share of all costs associated with the relocation of the SU 


IRU Fibers in excess of such costs which were reimbursed by the condemning authority.   


 


ARTICLE 16: ABANDONMENT 


 


16.1 Should SU decide to abandon all or part of the SU IRU Fibers, it may do so by informing 


TDS in writing, such abandonment being made at no cost to either Party.  SU shall 


remove its equipment and electronics within thirty (30) days of such notification of 


abandonment by SU, failing which TDS may remove same at SU’s cost payable within 


thirty (30) days of SU’s receipt of an invoice therefor.  At the time of abandonment, SU 


shall have no further rights or obligations with respect to the SU IRU Fibers, except as 


specifically set forth in this Agreement. 


 


ARTICLE 17: DEFAULT 


 


17.1 Neither Party shall be in default under this Agreement unless and until the other Party 


shall have given the defaulting Party written notice of such default and the defaulting 


Party shall have failed to cure the default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such 


notice; provided, however, that where a default cannot be reasonably cured within the 30-


day period and where the defaulting Party shall promptly proceed to cure the default with 


due diligence, the time for curing the default shall be extended for a period of up to 


ninety (90) days from the date of receipt of the default notice.  


 


17.2 Upon the failure of the defaulting Party to timely cure any default after notice thereof 


from the non-defaulting Party, the non-defaulting Party may take any action it 


determines, in its reasonable discretion, to be necessary to correct the default, and/or 


pursue any legal remedies it may have under applicable law or principles of equity 


relating to the breach. 


 


17.3 The Parties acknowledge and agree that irreparable damage may occur in the event that 


any of the provisions of this Agreement are not performed in accordance with their 


specific terms or are otherwise breached.  It is accordingly agreed that each Party shall be 


entitled to seek injunctive or similar preliminary relief to prevent breaches or cure 


defaults of the provisions of this Agreement by the other and to enforce specifically the 


terms and provisions hereof, this being in addition to any other remedy to which the Party 


may be entitled by law or equity. 


 







12 
 


ARTICLE 18: NOTICES 


 


18.1 Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and communications concerning this 


Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as follows: 


 


If to TDS: 


TDS Metrocom, LLC 


Attention: Vice President Field Services 


525 Junction Road 


Madison, WI  53717 


 


WITH A COPY TO: 


TDS TELECOMMUNICATIONS LLC 


525 Junction Road 


Madison, WI 53717 


Attention:  Legal Department 


 


WITH A COPY TO: 


Sidley Austin 


Attn: Stephen P. Fitzell 


One South Dearborn 


Chicago, IL 60603 


 


If to Stoughton Utilities: 


Utility Director 


Stoughton Utilities 


600 South Fourth Street 


Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


WITH A COPY TO: 


Anita T. Gallucci 


Boardman & Clark LLP 


1 South Pinckney Street 


P.O. Box 0927 


Madison, WI  53701-0927 


 


18.2 Unless otherwise provided herein, notices shall be sent by certified U.S. Mail, return 


receipt requested, or by commercial overnight delivery service which provides 


acknowledgement of delivery, and shall be deemed delivered: if sent by U.S. Mail, five 


(5) days after deposit; if sent by commercial overnight delivery service, upon verification 


of receipt. 


 


ARTICLE 19: ASSIGNMENT, SUCCESSION 


 


19.1 SU shall not assign this Agreement to any other party without the prior written consent of 


TDS. 


 







13 
 


19.2 Except as provided in this Article 19, TDS shall not assign this Agreement to any other 


party without the prior written consent of SU, provided, however, that without such 


consent, TDS shall have the right to assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement, in whole 


or in part, to any parent, subsidiary, or affiliate of TDS or to any person, firm or 


corporation which shall control, be under the control of, or be under common control 


with TDS, or any corporation or entity into which TDS, or a subsidiary of TDS, may be 


merged or consolidated or which purchases all or substantially all of the assets of TDS or 


a subsidiary of TDS. 


 


19.3 Subject to the provisions of this Article 19, each of the Parties’ respective rights and 


obligations hereunder shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties 


and each of their respective permitted successors and assigns. 


 


ARTICLE 20: GOVERNING LAW 


 


20.1 This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the 


state of Wisconsin, without regard to its conflict of laws principles. 


 


ARTICLE 21: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 


 


21.1 The performance by TDS and/or SU of all duties and obligations under this Agreement 


shall be as independent contractors and not as agents of the other Party, and no persons 


employed or utilized by a performing Party shall be considered the employees or agents 


of the other. Neither Party shall have the authority to enter into any agreement purporting 


to bind the other without its specific written authorization.  The Parties agree that this 


Agreement does not create a partnership between, or a joint venture of, TDS and SU. 


 


ARTICLE 22: DISPUTE RESOLUTION 


 


22.1 It is the intent of SU and TDS that any disputes which may arise between them, or 


between the employees of each of them, be resolved as quickly as possible.  Quick 


resolution may, in certain circumstances, involve immediate decisions made by the 


Parties’ representatives. For that purpose, TDS and SU shall each designate, by separate 


letter, representatives as points of contact and decision making with respect to the 


obligations and rights of the Parties, such letters to be furnished by each Party to the other 


within thirty (30) days from the date of the last signature on this Agreement. Any 


disputed issues arising during the term of this Agreement shall in all instances be initially 


referred to the Parties’ designated representatives. The Parties’ designated representatives 


shall use reasonable efforts to reach a mutually agreeable resolution of the disputed issue, 


in writing, within two (2) weeks of such referral, or whatever longer or shorter period to 


which the Parties may agree.  Either Party may modify the designated representative 


upon written notice to the other Party. 


 


22.2 In the event the Parties’ representatives are unable to resolve any claims or disputes 


arising under this Agreement within the applicable time period, either Party is free to 


pursue any remedies available to it in law or equity. 


 







14 
 


ARTICLE 23: LIENS 


 


23.1 In the event the SU IRU Fibers become subject to any mechanics’, artisans’, or 


materialmen’s lien, or other encumbrance chargeable to or through TDS that interferes 


with the SU IRU Fibers or jeopardizes SU’s use of the SU IRU Fibers, TDS shall 


promptly cause such lien or encumbrance to be discharged and released of record (by 


payment, posting of bond, court deposit, or other means) without cost to SU and shall 


indemnify SU against all costs and expenses (including attorney’s fees) incurred in 


discharging and releasing such lien or encumbrance; provided, however, that if any such 


lien or encumbrance is not so discharged and released within thirty (30) days after written 


notice by SU to TDS, then SU may pay or secure the release or discharge thereof at the 


expense of TDS.  TDS shall reimburse SU for such payments within thirty (30) days of 


its receipt of an invoice therefor. 


 


23.2 TDS agrees and acknowledges that it has no right to use any of the SU IRU Fibers 


included in the TDS Cable.  TDS shall obtain from any entity in favor of which TDS, in 


its discretion, grants after the date of this Agreement a security interest or lien on all or 


part of the TDS Cable, a written nondisturbance and subordination agreement in form and 


substance reasonably satisfactory to SU.  The nondisturbance and subordination 


agreement shall be written to the effect that such lienholder acknowledges SU’s interest 


and rights in the SU IRU Fibers and the IRU granted by this Agreement and agrees that 


the same shall not be diminished, disturbed, impaired, or interfered with in any adverse 


respect by such lienholder. 


 


23.3 SU agrees and acknowledges that it has no right to use any of the Fibers, other than the 


SU IRU Fibers, included in the TDS Cable or otherwise incorporated in TDS’s Fiber 


System and that SU shall keep any and all of TDS’s Fiber System free from any liens, 


rights, or claims of any third party attributable to SU.   


 


ARTICLE 24: MISCELLANEOUS 


 


24.1 The headings contained in this Agreement are strictly for convenience and shall not in 


any way be construed as amplifying or limiting any of the terms, provisions, or 


conditions of this Agreement. 


 


24.2 In construction of this Agreement, words used in the singular shall include the plural and 


the plural the singular, and “or” is used in the inclusive sense, in all cases where such 


meanings would be appropriate. 


 


24.3 No provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted to require any unlawful action by 


either Party.  If any section or clause of this Agreement is held to be invalid or 


unenforceable, then the meaning of that section or clause shall be construed so as to 


render it enforceable to the extent feasible.  If no feasible interpretation would save the 


section or clause, it shall be severed from this Agreement with respect to the matter in 


question, and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  


However, in the event such a section or clause is an essential element of the Agreement, 


the Parties shall promptly negotiate a replacement section or clause that will achieve the 


intent of such unenforceable section or clause to the extent permitted by law. 







15 
 


 


24.4 This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument executed by the Party 


against whom enforcement of the modification is sought. 


 


24.5 No failure to exercise and no delay in exercising, on the part of either Party, any right, 


power, or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, except as expressly 


provided in this Agreement.  Any waiver by either Party of a breach of any provision of 


this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach and 


shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless and 


until agreed to in writing by both Parties. 


 


24.6 In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and those of Exhibit 


A-1, the provisions of Exhibit A-1 shall prevail and the Agreement will be corrected 


accordingly.  If there is a conflict or difference between this Agreement and other 


exhibits, this Agreement shall prevail. 


 


24.7 This Agreement has been fully negotiated between and jointly drafted by the Parties. 


 


24.8 All actions, activities, consents, approvals, and other undertakings of the Parties in this 


Agreement shall be performed in a reasonable and timely manner. 


 


24.9 Unless expressly defined herein, words having well known technical or trade meanings 


shall be so construed. 


 


ARTICLE 25: COUNTERPARTS 


 


25.1 This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of 


which shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute one 


and the same instrument. 


 


ARTICLE 26: ENTIRE AGREEMENT 


 


26.1 This Agreement, and any exhibits or attachments referenced in and attached hereto or to 


be attached hereto, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the 


subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior negotiations, understandings and 


agreements with respect hereto, whether oral or written.  For the sake of clarity, the 


exhibits and attachments hereto are incorporated into and form part of this Agreement. 


 


 


 


 


 


[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 







16 
 


 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, 


acting through Stoughton 


Utilities 


 


 


Signed:__________________


    


By:     Jill Weiss 


 


Its:      Utility Director  


  


Date:____________________


    


 


 


 


 


TDS Metrocom, LLC 


 


 


 


 


Signed:_____________________ 


   
By:_  


 


            Its: Vice President of Field Services 


 


            Date:____________________ 


  


 


 


ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 


 


Attachment A:  Stoughton Utility Locations - Ring 


Exhibit A-1: SU IRU Fibers in TDS Cable: Description of Initial Segments  


Exhibit B: Acceptance Test Plan 


Exhibit C:  Form of Acceptance/Rejection Notice 


Exhibit D: Maintenance and Repair Procedures 


 
\\msnfs2\share\DOCS\WD\23434\12\IRU\A4048514.DOC 


 


  


 


 







ATTACHMENT A 


 







 
 


EXHIBIT A-1 
 


SU IRU FIBERS IN TDS CABLE: 


DESCRIPTION OF INITIAL SEGMENTS 


      
 


SegmentI
D # FROM TO 


ROUTE LENGTH IN 
FEET 


# FIBER 
STRANDS 


 
1 Administration Office - 600 S 4th St  Well #5 - 1320 South St 7,037' 4 


 
2 Well #5 - 1320 South St  Well #7 - 2001 Roby Rd  13,538' 4 


 
3 Well #7 - 2001 Roby Rd    Tower II - 1430 Furseth Rd 3024' 4 


 
4 Tower II - 1430 Furseth Rd Well #4 - 921 N Van Buren St  4,304' 4 


 
5 Well #4 - 921 N Van Buren St  Tower III - 1273 Racetrack Rd  14,794’ 4 


 
6 Tower III - 1273 Racetrack Rd  Well #6 - 1215 E Academy St  5,036' 4 


 
7 Well #6 - 1215 E Academy St  Wastewater Facility - 700 Mandt Pkwy  7,785' 4 


 
8 Wastewater Facility - 700 Mandt Pkwy  Administration Office - 600 S 4th St  2,858' 4 


 
9 West Substation - 3221 McComb Rd  Well #5 - 1320 South St  7,743' 2 


 
10 North Substation - 302 County Hwy B Well #4 - 921 N Van Buren St  7,964' 2 


 
11 East Substation - 1200 E South St  Well #6 - 1215 E Academy St  2,078' 2 


 
12 South Substation - 1067 Taylor Ln  Administration Office - 600 S 4th St 5,744' 2 


 
13 


Nordic Ridge Lift Station - 2015 Korgen 
Dr  Well #5 - 1320 South St  5,688' 2 


 
14 


Oakridge Lift Station - 1608 Oakridge 
Way  Well #7 - 2001 Roby Rd  3,620' 2 


 
15 


Vennevoll Lift Station - 501 Amundson 
Pkwy  Tower III - 1273 Racetrack Rd  6,832' 2 


 
16 


Eastwood Lift Station - 1701 Eastwood 
Dr  Tower III - 1273 Racetrack Rd  4,580’ 2 


 
17 Stonecrest Lift Station - 816 Haskell Ct  Tower III - 1273 Racetrack Rd  3,241' 2 


 
18 Eight Street Lift Station - 624 S 8th St  Administration Office - 600 S 4th St  2,316' 2 


                                                                                                                  


         Total Footage = 108,182 


Estimated Completion Date: October 1, 2021 


Initial Term:  20 years beginning on the IRU Effective Date (see Article 3 of the Agreement) 


Number of SU IRU Fibers per Segment:  2 to 4 (as indicated above) 


IRU Fee Payment:  One-time payment of up to $180,000 or actual cost of construction, 


whichever is less (see Section 1.4 of the Agreement) 


Annual Rights-of-Way Fees:  None. 


Annual Maintenance Fee:  $8,000 (see Section 4.4 of the Agreement) 







 
 


 


City of Stoughton, acting through 


Stoughton Utilities 


 


 


Signed:_____________________ 


   


By: Jill Weiss 


 


Its: Utility Director 


 


Date:_____________________ 


   


 


 


 


 


TDS Metrocom, LLC 


 


 


 


Signed:_____________________  


  


By:_______________________ 


 


Its: Vice President of Field Services 


 


Date:________________________ 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 







 
    


 


 


EXHIBIT B 


 


 ACCEPTANCE TEST PLAN 


 


1.0 TDS will prepare and provide SU with an Acceptance Test Plan (“ATP”), prior to 


conducting actual field tests of the SU IRU Fibers. 


 


2.0 Testing will include, but not be limited to, the following:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      


 


(a) Bi-directional OTDR tests for 1550nm wavelength 


Acceptance criteria: bi-directional splice test average not-to-exceed 0.15 dB 


with no single direction test greater than 0.25 dB 


 


(b) Span tests with a power meter at 1550 nm wavelength 


Acceptance criteria: The span test shall not exceed the following calculated loss 


for any given span: 


 


(0.3 dB/km)(d) + (0.15 dB)(n) = Total Allowable Span Attenuation Loss 


 


d = Fiber distance in kilometers 


n = total number of splices in the span, including pigtails 


 


3.0 TDS will submit a tentative schedule for the ATP to SU at least thirty (30) days prior to 


completion of construction and installation of any Cable which contains SU IRU Fibers.  The 


ATP will be performed on the entire Cable Segment upon completion of construction and 


installation. 


 


4.0 SU shall have the option to have one or more representatives present to observe the 


testing undertaken by TDS as part of the ATP. 







 
    


 


 


 


 EXHIBIT C 


 


 FORM OF ACCEPTANCE/REJECTION NOTICE 


 


Check one box: 


 


 Fiber Accepted (fill in acceptance statement below): 


 


Pursuant to Article 5 of the Fiber Optic Agreement and Grant of IRU between City of Stoughton, 


Wisconsin (“SU”) and TDS Metrocom LLC, (“TDS”) dated March ___, 2021, delivery of 


______ () Fibers was made by TDS to SU for the following Segment(s) listed on Exhibit A-


__:  Segment ID Numbers:   


 


 Fiber Rejected (fill in reason statement below): 
 


Reason for Rejection: 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Signature: _______________________ 


 


Name:  __________________________  


 


Title:  ___________________________  


 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, 


acting through Stoughton Utilities  


 


Date: ________  


 







1 
 


 EXHIBIT D 


 


 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR PROCEDURES 


 


1.0 TROUBLE REPORTING 


 


Prior to calling a trouble ticket, the SU must first: 


 


 Verify electric power to each site  


 Verify power to the individual equipment (optical switch) at each site for the link in 


question (power cord, power supply, battery backup / UPS Rack Power Distribution Unit) 


if applicable 


 Visually verify the link is actually down (no link light on SFP’s / optics)  


 Properly clean fiber optic connectors and ports by utilizing appropriate fiber optic 


connector/port cleaning tools   


 Reseat the associated fiber optic jumper connectors and fiber optic ports on either end of 


the circuit to try and re-establish the link 


 Reseat SFP optics / swap SFP optics with new spare SFP’s on either end of the circuit to 


verify that it’s not a failed customer-owned SFP 


 Verify the switch ports configuration through Command Line Interface (CLI) 


 Determine if switch ports are Up/Down or Down/Down. If Down/Down, re-enable the 


switch port using the CLI 


 


Upon TDS’s Network Management Center receiving a trouble report from SU, TDS will 


dispatch qualified personnel to the location of the outage within 4 hours.  At the same time the 


call will be escalated to TDS’s Field Operations Manager.  TDS’s Field Operations Manager will 


respond with on call qualified personnel to isolate the problem.  The problem may then be 


escalated as necessary for notification. 


 


2.0 ESCALATION LISTS 


 


SU Escalation List 


 


Jill Weiss 


Utility Director 


608-877-7423 


JWeiss@stoughtonutilities.com 


 


Brian Hoops 


Asst. Utility Director 


608-877-7412 


BHoops@stoughtonutilities.com 







2 
 


TDS Escalation List 


 


TDS Network Management Center                                             


888-790-1216 


 


Glen Campbell 


(608) 848-2586 


Glen.Campbell@tdstelecom.com 


 


Michael Schneider  


(608) 828-9451 


Michael.Schneider@tdstelecom.com 


 


  


3.0 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE STANDARDS 


 


Maintenance of the fiber plant should be completed on a regular recurring basis and documented.  


Properly installed fiber plant normally needs minimal routine maintenance. Most hazards to fiber 


plant are external in nature, such as dig ups, pole hits, gun shots, etc. Most destructive events are 


detected immediately and corrected with plant restoration.  A well implemented maintenance 


plan will permit correction of marginal plant conditions that might otherwise become restoration 


events.  TDS’s Network Management Center should be notified in advance of any scheduled 


Outside Plant facilities (OSP) maintenance activity reported or planned: 


 


TDS Network Management Center                                             


888-790-1216 


 


 


4.0 CABLE ROUTE SURVEILLANCE 


 


OSP are periodically inspected by field personnel.  During this periodic inspection the Cable 


route is driven/walked to inspect for discrepancies that may affect cable integrity. Any 


discrepancies found are documented and forwarded into the Outside Plant Maintenance desk for 


correction and repair as necessary. The following are some of the OSP items that will be 


inspected: 


 


 Cable route integrity (e.g.: erosion) 


 Condition of poles, pedestals, risers, lashing wire, route markers, and signs 


 Clearance of aerial facilities 


 Construction activity in the area near the cable 


 



mailto:Glen.Campbell@tdstelecom.com

mailto:Michael.Schneider@tdstelecom.com





3 
 


5.0 PLANT LOCATION REQUESTS 


 


All facilities associated with this agreement are located in Wisconsin, which has a statewide “one 


call” agency for excavators to request and notify utilities of digging in the vicinity of TDS’s 


facilities.  TDS will subscribe to these services and follow the guidelines and laws applicable to 


that state including the marking of their facilities within the required time of receipt of request.  


TDS will also take action to ensure that the excavator is aware of and protects the facility during 


the excavation as required. 


 


6.0 PLANT RELOCATION REQUESTS 


 


Plant relocation requests will be submitted to the manager of field operations to be reviewed for 


applicable resolution.  Requests should be responded to and scheduled as required taking into 


consideration the scope of work and the urgency of the activity. 


  


 





		13a- TDS Fiber IRU - Resolution - Council Packet

		13b- TDS Fiber IRU - Memo

		13c- TDS Fiber IRU - Agreement - With Redaction






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the write-off of Stoughton Utilities 


delinquent account balances and invoices deemed uncollectible as of December 31, 2020. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee to meet on March 22, 2021. 


 
Fiscal Impact: $14,950.54 


 
File Number:  


 
R-36 -2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 23, 2021 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff attempted all possible collection efforts, or received notification of 


discharge of debt from bankruptcy, for customer’s account balances and invoices totaling $14,950.54, and 


WHEREAS, these delinquencies have been determined to be uncollectible, and should be written off as 


such, and 


WHEREAS, delinquent accounts and their associated balances will remain listed within a bad debt file 


and collection attempts resumed if a customer returns to the Stoughton Utilities service territory, and  


WHEREAS, any listed debt that has been submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue (DOR) for 


collection through their programs will remain until the DOR removes the submission, and 


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on March 22, 2021 to consider this request, 


approved the request, and recommends approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution, now 


therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed to write off uncollectible customer account balances and invoices totaling $14,950.54 and 


record the amount as a 2021 operating expense. 


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    March 18, 2021 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jamin T. Friedl, CPA 


City of Stoughton Finance Director 


Brian R. Hoops 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 


Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Bad Debt Account Write-Offs through December 31, 2020 


Staff is requesting that the following Stoughton Utilities customer account balances and invoices totaling 


$14,950.54 be written off as uncollectible as of December 31, 2020. 


The delinquent balances on the enclosed list remain after collection efforts of at least six months in 


duration have proven to be unsuccessful, or when collection efforts are not possible due to bankruptcy 


or the death of the responsible party.  These delinquencies have been determined to be uncollectible, and 


should be written off as such. 


Delinquent customer accounts and their associated balances will remain listed within our bad debt file.  


If a customer returns to our service territory and has previously incurred a bad debt on their account, we 


require a deposit to insure payment for future service.  In addition, if the write-off did not result from a 


bankruptcy filing, we will attempt collection of the debt as a condition of new service. 


Any listed debt that has been submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue (DOR) for collection 


through their Tax Refund Intercept Program (TRIP) and/or State Debt Collection (SDC) Initiatives will 


remain until the DOR removes the submission. 


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the Bad Debt Account Write-offs 


through December 31, 2020, and recommend the Stoughton Common Council approve the write-offs 


and adopt the accompanying resolution. 


 







Date Issued: Reference: Description: Electric: Stormwater: Water: Wastewater: Total:


08/20/2015 11722 Developer Planning/Engineering Reimbursement 586.11$            586.11$            


02/02/2016 11861 Developer Planning/Engineering Reimbursement 58.97$              58.97$              


02/02/2016 11862 Developer Planning/Engineering Reimbursement 42.69$              42.69$              


05/25/2016 11948 Developer Planning/Engineering Reimbursement 61.41$              61.41$              


07/18/2016 11987 Developer Planning/Engineering Reimbursement 95.80$              95.80$              


09/30/2016 12027 Developer Planning/Engineering Reimbursement 314.22$            314.22$            


03/07/2018 12439 Developer Planning/Engineering Reimbursement 211.23$            211.23$            


03/21/2019 12730 Uncollectable construction invoice 475.00$            475.00$            


03/21/2019 12731 Callout - Customer's Own Equipment 254.03$            254.03$            


04/04/2019 12746 Vehicle Accident - Car vs. Pole 157.84$            157.84$            


05/08/2019 12753 Damaged Utility Infrastructure/Meters 409.34$            409.34$            


05/16/2019 12772 Damaged Utility Infrastructure/Meters 202.26$            202.26$            


10/07/2019 12868 Callout - Customer's Own Equipment 134.11$            134.11$            


12/18/2019 12945 Uncollectable construction invoice 136.57$            136.57$            


12/26/2019 12946 Callout - Customer's Own Equipment 146.82$            146.82$            


12/31/2019 12960 Vehicle Accident - Car vs. Pole 3,865.56$         3,865.56$         


12/31/2019 12961 Vehicle Accident - Car vs. Pole 3,387.49$         3,387.49$         


01/14/2020 12976 Uncollectable construction invoice 1,116.81$         1,116.81$         


06/16/2020 13030 Callout - Customer's Own Equipment 178.96$            178.96$            


06/16/2020 13042 Reimbusement from former employee 12.07$              12.07$              


06/16/2020 13044 Damaged Utility Infrastructure/Meters 609.53$            609.53$            


06/17/2020 13057 Vehicle Accident - Truck vs. Pole 360.63$            360.63$            


11/04/2020 7314-13 Uncollectable Customer Balance 158.46$            158.46$            


09/08/2016 7413-18 Uncollectable Customer Balance 411.67$            411.67$            


05/31/2018 7415-18 Uncollectable Customer Balance 102.24$            102.24$            


10/03/2017 7523-14 Uncollectable Customer Balance 144.83$            144.83$            


09/05/2018 8482-10 Uncollectable Customer Balance 420.97$            420.97$            


09/18/2017 8638-12 Uncollectable Customer Balance 152.12$            152.12$            


06/06/2018 8666-11 Uncollectable Customer Balance 182.68$            182.68$            


02/26/2018 8747-13 Uncollectable Customer Balance 52.27$              52.27$              


08/30/2018 8772-10 Uncollectable Customer Balance 84.78$              84.78$              


05/11/2018 8841-17 Uncollectable Customer Balance 51.58$              51.58$              


06/28/2017 9367-36 Uncollectable Customer Balance 230.04$            230.04$            


06/01/2017 9493-10 Uncollectable Customer Balance 141.45$            141.45$            


Total to be Written Off: 14,288.39$       -$                  662.15$            -$                  14,950.54$       


Bad Debt Account Write-Off List
Uncollectable as of December 31, 2020





		14a- Write Off - Resolution - Council Packet

		14b- Write Off - Memo

		14c- Write Off - List






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Five Star Energy 


Services, LLC for the 2021 Lead Water Service Replacements Contract 4-2021. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee to meet on March 22, 2021. 


Finance Committee to meet on March 23, 2021. 
 
Fiscal Impact: $4,615,800.00 


 
File Number:  


 
R-37-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 23, 2021 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, the bid for the 2021 Lead Water Service Replacements Contract 4-2021includes the 


replacement of approximately 660 lead water services including the following approximate quantities: 


29,000 linear feet of 1-inch copper water service installation using trenchless methods on public and 


private property, interior plumbing reconnections, pavement restoration, curb and gutter and sidewalk 


replacement, turf restoration, tree removal, and related miscellaneous work, and  


WHEREAS, the project is expected to be funded in part by a loan from the Wisconsin Safe Drinking 


Water Loan Program, and 


WHEREAS, bids for Contract 4-2021 were opened on March 18, 2021 with three competitive bids being 


received, and 


WHEREAS, Five Star Energy Services, LLC of Big Bend, Wisconsin, was the apparent low bidder, with 


a total bid of $4,615,800.00, and 


WHEREAS, Strand Associates, Inc., Stoughton Utilities’ contracted engineering consultant, has 


reviewed the bids and supports awarding the contract to the low responsible bidder, Five Star Energy 


Services, LLC, and 


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on March 22, 2021 to consider this request, 


approved the request, and recommends approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution, and 


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Finance Committee met on March 23, 2021 to consider this request, 


approved the request, and recommends approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution, now 


therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed to enter into an agreement with Five Star Energy Services, LLC for the 2021 Lead Water 


Service Replacements Contract 4-2021 for the bid amount of $4,615,800.00, conditioned upon approval 


as to form by the Stoughton City Attorney. 


 







Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Tim Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    March 19, 2021 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Bid Award of 2021 Lead Water Service Replacements Contract 4-2021 to Five Star 


Energy Services, LLC  


Bids for the 2021 Lead Water Service Replacements construction project were opened on March 


18, 2021. Four bids were received with the resulting bid tabulation attached. 


The bid for Contract 4-2021 includes the replacement of approximately 660 lead water services 


including the following approximate quantities: 29,000 linear feet of 1-inch copper water service 


installation using trenchless methods on public and private property, interior plumbing 


reconnections, pavement restoration, curb and gutter and sidewalk replacement, turf restoration, 


tree removal, and related miscellaneous work. The project is expected to be funded in part by a 


loan from the Wisconsin Safe Drinking Water Loan Program. 


Bids received for Contract 4-2021 ranged from $4,615,800.00 to $6,087,625.00.  


Five Star Energy Services, LLC of Big Bend, Wisconsin, was the apparent low bidder for the base 


bid with a bid of $4,615,800.00.  The bid was deemed to be responsive. 


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the award of 2021 Lead Water 


Service Replacements contract 4-2021 to Five Star Energy Services, LLC, and recommend 


approval of the bid award to the Stoughton Finance Committee and the Stoughton Common 


Council. 


 







 
Section 00 11 13-1 


1040.131/4-2021 


 
SECTION 00 11 13 


 
ADVERTISEMENT TO BID 


 
STOUGHTON UTILITIES 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
2021 LEAD WATER SERVICE REPLACEMENTS 


CONTRACT 4-2021 
 
 


Stoughton Utilities (OWNER) is requesting Bids for the construction of the following Project: 
 


2021 Lead Water Service Replacements 
Contract 4-2021 


 
Bids for the construction of the Project will be received at Stoughton Utilities located at  
600 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 53589, until March 18, 2021, at 11 A.M., local time. At that time 
the Bids received will be publicly downloaded and read aloud publicly via teleconference. The login 
information for the teleconference is as follows:  (608) 571-7149, Conference ID 282506203#. 
 
The Project includes the following Work:  Replacement of approximately 660 lead water services 
including the following approximate quantities:  29,000 linear feet of 1-inch copper water service 
installation using trenchless methods on public and private property; interior plumbing reconnections; 
pavement restoration; curb and gutter and sidewalk replacement; turf restoration; tree removal; and 
related miscellaneous work. 
 
Complete digital Project Bidding Documents are available at www.strand.com or at www.questcdn.com. 
Download the digital Bidding Documents for $30 by inputting Quest project number 7624600 on the 
website’s Project Search page. Please contact QuestCDN.com at (952) 233-1632 or info@questcdn.com 
for assistance with free membership registration, downloading, and working with this digital project 
information. 
 
For this project, bids will ONLY be received and accepted via the online electronic bid service through 
QuestCDN.com. To access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and click the online 
bidding button at the top of the advertisement. 
 
The Issuing Office is Strand Associates, Inc.®, 910 West Wingra Drive, Madison, WI 53715. 
 
All Bidders submitting a sealed Bid shall obtain the Bidding Documents from QuestCDN.com. 
 
Bidders who submit a Bid must be a Plan Holder of record at the Issuing Office. Bids from Bidders who 
are not on the Plan Holders List may be returned as not being responsive. 
 
The Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to OWNER in an amount of 10% of the 
Bidder’s maximum Bid price. 
 
Bidders shall comply with federal wage rates. 
 
Bidders shall comply with the President’s Executive Order No. 11246, Equal Employment Opportunity as 
amended. 



http://www.strand.com/

http://www.questcdn.com/

mailto:info@questcdn.com





 
Section 00 11 13-2 


1040.131/4-2021 


Stoughton Utilities reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, to waive any technicality, and to accept any 
Bid which it deems advantageous. All Bids shall remain subject to acceptance for 85 days after the time 
set for receiving Bids. 
 
Contract award shall be made based on the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder. 
 
Any Contract or Contracts to be awarded are expected to be funded in part by a loan from the Wisconsin 
Safe Drinking Water Loan Program. This procurement will be subject to regulations contained in Chapter 
NR 166, Wisconsin Administrative Code and appropriate State Statutes and 40 CFR Parts 31, 33 and 35 
of the Federal Statutes. 
 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), including Women’s and Minority-owned businesses, are 
encouraged to submit Bids for this Project. 
 
Bidders must demonstrate positive efforts to utilize DBEs. This procurement will be subject to regulations 
contained in NR 166.12(4) and 40 CFR 35.3145(d), and P.L. 102-389 and 100-590. In addition, Bidder 
shall comply with Executive Orders 11625, 12138 and 12432. Failure to comply could result in 
disqualification of Bidder and termination of financial assistance or other sanctions identified in NR 166.21 
and NR 166.22. 
 
The Strand Associates, Inc.® project manager is Mark A. Fisher, P.E. and can be contacted at Strand 
Associates, Inc.®, 910 West Wingra Drive, Madison, WI 53715, (608) 251-4843, regarding the project. 
 
For all further requirements regarding bid submittal, qualifications, procedures, and contract award, refer 
to the Instructions to Bidders that are included in the Bidding Documents. 
 
 
Published by the authority of the Stoughton Utilities 
 Jill Weiss, P.E., Utilities Director 
 
 
Dated at City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
March 4, 2021 and March 11, 2021 
 
 


END OF SECTION 







 


MAF:ler\R:\MAD\Documents\Specifications\Archive\2021\Stoughton, WI\1040.131.4-2021.maf\(16) Specification Letters\(a) Resulting Bid 


Tabulation\031821.docx 


 
 
 
March 18, 2021  
 
 
Ms. Jill Weiss, P.E., Utilities Director 
Stoughton Utilities 
600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
Re: 2021 Lead Water Service Replacements 


Contract No. 4-2021 
Stoughton Utilities, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
Dear Jill, 
 
Bids for the above-referenced project were opened on March 18, 2021. A tabulation of the four bids 
received is enclosed.  
 
Five Star Energy Services, LLC of Big Bend, Wisconsin was the apparent low bidder with a bid of 
$4,615,800. The bid included a bid bond for 10 percent. The bid is deemed to be responsive. 
 


Strand Associates, Inc. has not had previous experience with Five Star Energy Services, LLC. 
 
If you determine that Five Star Energy Services, LLC is a responsible bidder after your evaluation of its 
qualifications, we recommend proceeding with award of the Contract in accordance with Article 18 of 
the Instructions to Bidders. 
 
Please contact me at 608-251-4843 with any questions regarding this project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
STRAND ASSOCIATES, INC.® 


 
Mark A. Fisher, P.E. 
 
Enclosure 







Section Title Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension


$2,281,210.00 $2,766,362.00 $2,981,964.00 $3,160,110.00


1 LD-1


Locate Existing Sanitary Sewer Lateral Prior to Construction and Televise 


Existing Sanitary Sewer Lateral Before and After Water Service Installation EA 309 $600.00 $185,400.00 $431.00 $133,179.00 $500.00 $154,500.00 $880.00 $271,920.00


2 LD-2 1-IN PRIVATE Water Service-Trenchless Installation LF 7200 $60.00 $432,000.00 $97.90 $704,880.00 $6.00 $43,200.00 $45.00 $324,000.00


3 LD-3 1-IN PRIVATE Water Service-Open Cut Installation LF 2400 $80.00 $192,000.00 $117.20 $281,280.00 $10.00 $24,000.00 $40.00 $96,000.00


4 LD-4 1-IN PUBLIC Water Service-Trenchless Installation LF 5500 $60.00 $330,000.00 $23.20 $127,600.00 $6.00 $33,000.00 $45.00 $247,500.00


5 LD-5 1-IN PUBLIC Water Service-Open Cut Installation LF 1800 $80.00 $144,000.00 $35.70 $64,260.00 $10.00 $18,000.00 $40.00 $72,000.00


6 LD-6


Connect New PUBLIC Water Service to Existing Water Main and Abandon 


Existing PUBLIC Water Service at Main EA 309 $350.00 $108,150.00 $1,105.00 $341,445.00 $4,000.00 $1,236,000.00 $2,135.00 $659,715.00


7 LD-7 1-IN Curb Stop and Curb Box EA 309 $400.00 $123,600.00 $602.00 $186,018.00 $2,800.00 $865,200.00 $1,375.00 $424,875.00


8 LD-8 Connect to Existing PRIVATE Water Service in Building Interior EA 309 $1,350.00 $417,150.00 $1,605.00 $495,945.00 $1,200.00 $370,800.00 $1,250.00 $386,250.00


9 LD-9 Additional PRIVATE Interior Water Service Piping LF 100 $25.00 $2,500.00 $24.00 $2,400.00 $50.00 $5,000.00 $45.00 $4,500.00


10 LD-10 5-IN Sidewalk Removal and Replacement SF 13200 $4.00 $52,800.00 $4.10 $54,120.00 $3.50 $46,200.00 $9.50 $125,400.00


11 LD-11 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk/Driveway Apron Removal and Replacement SF 4200 $4.25 $17,850.00 $4.95 $20,790.00 $3.50 $14,700.00 $10.25 $43,050.00


12 LD-12 6-IN Gravel Driveway Restoration SF 500 $5.00 $2,500.00 $0.75 $375.00 $1.00 $500.00 $1.50 $750.00


13 LD-13 Curb and Gutter Removal and Replacement LF 2600 $40.00 $104,000.00 $30.75 $79,950.00 $25.00 $65,000.00 $60.00 $156,000.00


14 LD-14 4-IN Asphalt Pavement Restoration SY 3600 $40.00 $144,000.00 $55.00 $198,000.00 $28.15 $101,340.00 $65.00 $234,000.00


15 LD-15 Concrete Stairs Removal and Replacement SF 120 $50.00 $6,000.00 $17.00 $2,040.00 $10.00 $1,200.00 $115.00 $13,800.00


16 LD-16 Concrete Retaining Wall Removel and Replacement VSF 30 $65.00 $1,950.00 $106.00 $3,180.00 $1.00 $30.00 $125.00 $3,750.00


17 LD-17 Field Stone Retaining Wall Removal and Replacement VSF 100 $60.00 $6,000.00 $46.00 $4,600.00 $1.00 $100.00 $70.00 $7,000.00


18 LD-18 Modular Concrete Block Retaining Wall Removal and Replacement VSF 100 $40.00 $4,000.00 $46.00 $4,600.00 $1.00 $100.00 $65.00 $6,500.00


19 LD-19 Chain Link Fence Removal and Reinstallation LF 30 $50.00 $1,500.00 $66.00 $1,980.00 $1.00 $30.00 $80.00 $2,400.00


20 LD-20 Wood Fence Removal and Reinstallation LF 20 $65.00 $1,300.00 $46.00 $920.00 $1.00 $20.00 $150.00 $3,000.00


21 LD-21 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 1-IN to 10-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 30 $50.00 $1,500.00 $280.00 $8,400.00 $100.00 $3,000.00 $400.00 $12,000.00


22 LD-22 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 11-IN to 18-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 12 $60.00 $720.00 $640.00 $7,680.00 $1.00 $12.00 $1,100.00 $13,200.00


23 LD-23 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 19-IN to 30-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 12 $70.00 $840.00 $1,560.00 $18,720.00 $1.00 $12.00 $1,300.00 $15,600.00


24 LD-24 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 31-IN or Greater DIA at Breast Height EA 4 $100.00 $400.00 $2,320.00 $9,280.00 $1.00 $4.00 $2,600.00 $10,400.00


25 LD-25 Private Tree and Stump Removal 1-IN to 10-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 5 $50.00 $250.00 $280.00 $1,400.00 $1.00 $5.00 $700.00 $3,500.00


26 LD-26 Private Tree and Stump Removal 1-IN to 18-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 5 $60.00 $300.00 $640.00 $3,200.00 $1.00 $5.00 $1,800.00 $9,000.00


27 LD-27 Private Tree and Stump Removal 19-IN to 30-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 5 $70.00 $350.00 $1,560.00 $7,800.00 $1.00 $5.00 $2,200.00 $11,000.00


28 LD-28 Private Tree and Stump Removal 31-IN or greater DIA at Breast Height EA 1 $150.00 $150.00 $2,320.00 $2,320.00 $1.00 $1.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00


$1,755,175.00 $2,036,383.00 $1,881,403.00 $2,015,650.00


29 LD-29


Locate Existing Sanitary Sewer Lateral Prior to Construction and Televise 


Existing Sanitary Sewer Lateral Before and After Water Service Installation EA 290 $600.00 $174,000.00 $431.00 $124,990.00 $500.00 $145,000.00 $880.00 $255,200.00


30 LDPV-1 1-IN PRIVATE Water Service-Trenchless Installation LF 7600 $86.00 $653,600.00 $101.43 $770,868.00 $6.00 $45,600.00 $45.00 $342,000.00


Lead Service Line Replacement Both Public Portion and Private Portion


Lead Service Line Replacement-Private Only


2021 Lead Water Service Replacements


Contract 4-2021


Stoughton Utilities, City of Stoughton, Wisconsin


Solicitor: Strand Associates, Inc.


March 18, 2021,  11 AM CDT


Five Star Energy Services, LLC Speedway Sand & Gravel Inc. Mid City Corporation Maddrell Excavating, LLC







31 LDPV-2 1-IN PRIVATE Water Service-Open Cut Installation LF 2500 $95.00 $237,500.00 $125.30 $313,250.00 $10.00 $25,000.00 $40.00 $100,000.00


32 LDPV-3


Connect New Private Water Service to Existing Private Water Service or 


Existing Curb Stop EA 290 $350.00 $101,500.00 $458.00 $132,820.00 $3,905.00 $1,132,450.00 $1,650.00 $478,500.00


33 LDPV-4 Curb Stop and Curb Box Replacement  (If Authorized by OWNER) EA 30 $400.00 $12,000.00 $602.00 $18,060.00 $500.00 $15,000.00 $900.00 $27,000.00


34 LDPV-5


Install New 1-IN Water Service at 132 Forton Street. INCL Connection to 


Existing Curb Stop/Curb Box on Forton Street. Turn Off Existing Curb Stop 


at Prospect Street and Disconnect Private Water Servic LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $14,500.00 $14,500.00 $14,500.00 $14,500.00 $6,250.00 $6,250.00


35 LDPV-6


Install New 1-IN Water Service at 225 South Fifth Street INCL Connection 


to Existing Curb Stop/Curb Box on East Main Street (Connection to Water 


Service Inside Building Paid Separately) LS 1 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $7,125.00 $7,125.00


36 LDPV-7 Connect to Existing PRIVATE Water Service in Building Interior EA 290 $1,350.00 $391,500.00 $1,516.00 $439,640.00 $1,250.00 $362,500.00 $1,250.00 $362,500.00


37 LDPV-8 Additional PRIVATE Interior Water Service Piping LF 100 $25.00 $2,500.00 $24.00 $2,400.00 $50.00 $5,000.00 $38.00 $3,800.00


38 LDPV-9 5-IN Sidewalk Removal and Replacement SF 26300 $4.00 $105,200.00 $4.10 $107,830.00 $3.50 $92,050.00 $9.50 $249,850.00


39 LDPV-10 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk/Driveway Apron Removal and Replacement SF 6700 $4.25 $28,475.00 $4.95 $33,165.00 $3.50 $23,450.00 $10.25 $68,675.00


40 LDPV-11 6-IN Gravel Driveway Restoration SF 500 $5.00 $2,500.00 $0.75 $375.00 $1.00 $500.00 $1.50 $750.00


41 LDPV-12 Curb and Gutter Removal and Replacement LF 100 $40.00 $4,000.00 $30.75 $3,075.00 $25.00 $2,500.00 $60.00 $6,000.00


42 LDPV-13 4-IN Asphalt Pavement Restoration SY 50 $40.00 $2,000.00 $55.00 $2,750.00 $66.70 $3,335.00 $65.00 $3,250.00


43 LDPV-14 Concrete Stairs Removal and Replacement SF 120 $50.00 $6,000.00 $17.00 $2,040.00 $10.00 $1,200.00 $115.00 $13,800.00


44 LDPV-15 Concrete Retaining Wall Removal and Replacement VSF 30 $65.00 $1,950.00 $106.00 $3,180.00 $1.00 $30.00 $125.00 $3,750.00


45 LDPV-16 Field Stone Retaining Wall Removal and Replacement VSF 100 $60.00 $6,000.00 $46.00 $4,600.00 $1.00 $100.00 $70.00 $7,000.00


46 LDPV-17 Modular Concrete Block Retaining Wall Removal and Replacement VSF 100 $40.00 $4,000.00 $46.00 $4,600.00 $1.00 $100.00 $65.00 $6,500.00


47 LDPV-18 Chain Link Fence Removal and Reinstallation LF 30 $50.00 $1,500.00 $66.00 $1,980.00 $1.00 $30.00 $80.00 $2,400.00


48 LDPV-19 Wood Fence Removal and Reinstallation LF 20 $65.00 $1,300.00 $46.00 $920.00 $1.00 $20.00 $150.00 $3,000.00


49 LDPV-20 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 1-IN to 10-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 30 $50.00 $1,500.00 $280.00 $8,400.00 $100.00 $3,000.00 $400.00 $12,000.00


50 LDPV-21 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 11-IN to 18-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 12 $60.00 $720.00 $640.00 $7,680.00 $1.00 $12.00 $1,100.00 $13,200.00


51 LDPV-22 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 19-IN to 30-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 12 $70.00 $840.00 $1,560.00 $18,720.00 $1.00 $12.00 $1,300.00 $15,600.00


52 LDPV-23 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 31-IN or greater DIA at Breast Height EA 4 $100.00 $400.00 $2,320.00 $9,280.00 $1.00 $4.00 $2,600.00 $10,400.00


53 LDPV-24 Private Tree and Stump Removal 1-IN to 10-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 3 $50.00 $150.00 $280.00 $840.00 $1.00 $3.00 $700.00 $2,100.00


54 LDPV-25 Private Tree and Stump Removal 11-IN to 18-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 3 $60.00 $180.00 $640.00 $1,920.00 $1.00 $3.00 $1,800.00 $5,400.00


55 LDPV-26 Private Tree and Stump Removal 19-IN to 30-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 3 $70.00 $210.00 $1,560.00 $4,680.00 $1.00 $3.00 $2,200.00 $6,600.00


56 LDPV-27 Private Tree and Stump Removal 31-IN or Greater DIA at Breast Height EA 1 $150.00 $150.00 $2,320.00 $2,320.00 $1.00 $1.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00


$459,915.00 $496,224.30 $473,022.00 $648,065.00


57 LDPB-1


Locate Existing Sanitary Sewer Lateral Prior to Construction and Televise 


Existing Sanitary Sewer Lateral Before and After Water Service Installation EA 61 $600.00 $36,600.00 $431.00 $26,291.00 $500.00 $30,500.00 $880.00 $53,680.00


58 LDPB-2


Locate Existing PRIVATE Water Service to Determine Location of 


Connection and New Curb Stop to Avoid Tree Removal and/or 


Restorations Beyond Turf Restoration EA 61 $1,000.00 $61,000.00 $620.00 $37,820.00 $60.00 $3,660.00 $225.00 $13,725.00


59 LDPB-3


1-IN PRIVATE Water Service-Trenchless Installation (Curb Stop to 


Connection Point) LF 150 $110.00 $16,500.00 $58.20 $8,730.00 $6.00 $900.00 $95.00 $14,250.00


60 LDPB-4


1-IN PRIVATE Water Service-Open Cut Installation (Curb Stop to 


Connection Point) LF 150 $110.00 $16,500.00 $64.80 $9,720.00 $10.00 $1,500.00 $80.00 $12,000.00


61 LDPB-5 1-IN PUBLIC Water Service-Trenchless Installation LF 1400 $100.00 $140,000.00 $68.20 $95,480.00 $6.00 $8,400.00 $45.00 $63,000.00


62 LDPB-6 1-IN PUBLIC Water Service-Open Cut Installation LF 400 $105.00 $42,000.00 $82.00 $32,800.00 $10.00 $4,000.00 $40.00 $16,000.00


63 LDPB-7


Connect New PUBLIC Water Service to Existing Water Main and Abandon 


Existing PUBLIC Water Service at Main EA 61 $350.00 $21,350.00 $1,367.30 $83,405.30 $3,500.00 $213,500.00 $2,135.00 $130,235.00


64 LDPB-8 1-IN Curb Stop and Curb Box EA 61 $400.00 $24,400.00 $602.00 $36,722.00 $1,500.00 $91,500.00 $1,375.00 $83,875.00


Lead Service Line Replacement-Public Only







65 LDPB-9


Connect Existing PRIVATE Water Service to Curb Stop or New 1-IN Water 


Service Extended to Connection Point EA 61 $250.00 $15,250.00 $461.00 $28,121.00 $1,000.00 $61,000.00 $875.00 $53,375.00


66 LDPB-10 5-IN Sidewalk Removal and Replacement SF 2300 $4.00 $9,200.00 $4.10 $9,430.00 $3.50 $8,050.00 $9.50 $21,850.00


67 LDPB-11 6-IN Concrete Sidewalk/Driveway Apron Removal and Replacement SF 1500 $4.25 $6,375.00 $4.95 $7,425.00 $3.50 $5,250.00 $10.25 $15,375.00


68 LDPB-12 6-IN Gravel Driveway Restoration SF 200 $5.00 $1,000.00 $0.75 $150.00 $1.00 $200.00 $1.50 $300.00


69 LDPB-13 Curb and Gutter Removal and Replacement LF 600 $40.00 $24,000.00 $30.75 $18,450.00 $25.00 $15,000.00 $60.00 $36,000.00


70 LDPB-14 4-IN Asphalt Pavement Restoration SY 800 $40.00 $32,000.00 $55.00 $44,000.00 $32.25 $25,800.00 $65.00 $52,000.00


71 LDPB-15 Concrete Stairs Removal and Replacement SF 60 $50.00 $3,000.00 $17.00 $1,020.00 $10.00 $600.00 $115.00 $6,900.00


72 LDPB-16 Concrete Retaining Wall Removal and Replacement VSF 30 $65.00 $1,950.00 $106.00 $3,180.00 $1.00 $30.00 $125.00 $3,750.00


73 LDPB-17 Field Stone Retaining Wall Removal and Replacement SF 50 $60.00 $3,000.00 $46.00 $2,300.00 $1.00 $50.00 $70.00 $3,500.00


74 LDPB-18 Modular Concrete Block Retaining Wall Removal and Replacement SF 50 $40.00 $2,000.00 $46.00 $2,300.00 $1.00 $50.00 $65.00 $3,250.00


75 LDPB-19 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 1-IN to 10-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 30 $50.00 $1,500.00 $280.00 $8,400.00 $100.00 $3,000.00 $400.00 $12,000.00


76 LDPB-20 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 11-IN to 18-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 12 $60.00 $720.00 $640.00 $7,680.00 $1.00 $12.00 $1,100.00 $13,200.00


77 LDPB-21 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 19-IN to 30-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 12 $70.00 $840.00 $1,560.00 $18,720.00 $1.00 $12.00 $1,800.00 $21,600.00


78 LDPB-22 Terrace Tree and Stump Removal 31-IN or Greater DIA at Breast Height EA 4 $100.00 $400.00 $2,320.00 $9,280.00 $1.00 $4.00 $2,600.00 $10,400.00


79 LDPB-23 Private Tree and Stump Removal 1-IN to 10-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 1 $50.00 $50.00 $280.00 $280.00 $1.00 $1.00 $700.00 $700.00


80 LDPB-24 Private Tree and Stump Removal 11-IN to 18-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 1 $60.00 $60.00 $640.00 $640.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00


81 LDPB-25 Private Tree and Stump Removal 19-IN to 30-IN DIA at Breast Height EA 1 $70.00 $70.00 $1,560.00 $1,560.00 $1.00 $1.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00


82 LDPB-26 Private Tree and Stump Removal 31-IN or Greater DIA at Breast Height EA 1 $150.00 $150.00 $2,320.00 $2,320.00 $1.00 $1.00 $2,800.00 $2,800.00


$119,500.00 $142,435.00 $154,850.00 $263,800.00


83 MISC-1


Hydro-Excavation / Pothole Within City Street, Driveway, or Driveway 


Apron (For Existing Water Service Material Determination) EA 75 $400.00 $30,000.00 $410.00 $30,750.00 $575.00 $43,125.00 $1,100.00 $82,500.00


84 MISC-2


Hydro-Excavation / Pothole at Curb Stop (For Existing Water Service 


Material Determination) EA 215 $200.00 $43,000.00 $220.00 $47,300.00 $325.00 $69,875.00 $400.00 $86,000.00


85 MISC-3


Hydro-Excavation / Pothole-Private Property Between Building 


Foundation and Right-of-Way (For Existing Water Service Material 


Determination) EA 50 $250.00 $12,500.00 $330.00 $16,500.00 $350.00 $17,500.00 $550.00 $27,500.00


86 MISC-4


Install Repair Clamp on 4-IN Water Main to Address Existing Corporation 


Stop Leaking at Main EA 10 $1,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,819.00 $18,190.00 $500.00 $5,000.00 $2,600.00 $26,000.00


87 MISC-5


Install Repair Clamp on 6-IN Water Main to Address Existing Corporation 


Stop Leaking at Main EA 10 $1,250.00 $12,500.00 $1,840.00 $18,400.00 $525.00 $5,250.00 $2,800.00 $28,000.00


88 MISC-6


Install Repair Clamp on 8-IN Water Main to Address Existing Corporation 


Stop Leaking at Main EA 2 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $1,860.00 $3,720.00 $550.00 $1,100.00 $2,900.00 $5,800.00


89 MISC-7


Abandon Existing PUBLIC Water Service at Main If New Connection 


Location is Different Than Existing Connection Location (If Authorized by 


OWNER) EA 5 $1,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,240.00 $6,200.00 $2,500.00 $12,500.00 $800.00 $4,000.00


90 MISC-8 Utility Insulation SF 500 $7.00 $3,500.00 $2.75 $1,375.00 $1.00 $500.00 $8.00 $4,000.00


Base Bid Total: $4,615,800.00 $5,441,404.30 $5,491,239.00 $6,087,625.00


Lead Service Line Replacement-Miscellaneous Items





		15a- Bid Award - Resolution - Council Packet

		15b- Bid Award - Memo

		15c- Bid Award - Advertisement

		15d- Bid Award - Bid Summary

		031821

		Stoughton.4-2021.BidTab








 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to execute the Wisconsin Department of Natural 


Resources Principal Forgiven Financial Assistance Agreement. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee to meet on March 22, 2021. 


Finance Committee to meet on March 23, 2021 
 
Fiscal Impact: Up to $3,796,901.00 


 
File Number:  


 
R-37-2021 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
March 23, 2021 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton (the “Municipality“) wishes to undertake a project to replace private 


lead service lines at residences, pre-k–12 schools and licensed and/or certified daycare centers, identified 


as DNR No. 5403-02 (the “Project”), and  


WHEREAS, the Municipality has applied to the Safe Drinking Water Loan Program (the “SDWLP”) for 


financial assistance in the form of a loan made by the SDWLP to the Municipality of which all the principal 


will be forgiven at the time that loan disbursements are made to the Municipality, pursuant to the DNR 


Financial Assistance Agreement, and 


WHEREAS, the SDWLP has determined that it can provide a loan with principal forgiveness in an 


amount up to $3,796,901.00 that it has identified as being eligible for SDWLP funding, now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) are 


authorized by and on behalf of the Municipality to execute the Principal Forgiven Financial Assistance 


Agreement that contains the terms and conditions of the SDWLP award for the Project.  The Principal 


Forgiven Financial Assistance Agreement is incorporated herein by this reference. 


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Tim  Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    March 19, 2021 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jamin T. Friedl, CPA 


City of Stoughton Finance Director  


Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Execution of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Principal 


Forgiven Financial Assistance Agreement  


As part of Stoughton Utilities 2021 Lead Service Line (LSL) Replacement Project, we will be 


replacing private lead service lines at residential properties, schools, and licensed daycare centers, 


with the costs associated with the private replacements to be paid for using funding provided by 


the State of Wisconsin Safe Drinking Water Loan Program (SDWLP).   


As part of the SDWLP, the principal loan amount will be forgiven at the time that loan 


disbursements are made to the municipality, pursuant to the DNR Financial Assistance Agreement.  


The SDWLP has determined that it can provide a loan with principal forgiveness in an amount up 


to $3,796,901.00. 


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the execution of the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources Principal Forgiven Financial Assistance Agreement that 


contains the terms and conditions of the SDWLP award for the project, and recommend execution 


of the agreement to the Stoughton Finance Committee and Stoughton Common Council. 


 





		16a- DNR Award - Resolution - Council Packet

		16b- DNR Award - Memo






Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, March 23, 2021 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/404893157. You can also dial in 


using your phone: +1 (646) 749-3129 . Access Code: 404-893-157.    


The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and 


Spectrum Channel 981. 


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please  notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call:  


 


2. Minutes and Reports: 


Landmarks (2/11/21): Plan Commission (2/8/21, 2/24/21); Parks & Rec (1/19/21); Rivers & Trails 


Task Force (11/2/20); Tree Commission (2/11/21); Finance (2/23/21)  


 


3. Public Comment Period: 


 If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 


submit it by 6:30 p.m. on March 23, 2021. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4. Communications and Presentations  
 $550,000 KPW Phase I Municipal Revenue Obligation Release 


 


5. Consent Agenda 


A. March 9, 2021 Council Minutes 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


6. O-7-2021- Amending Sections 66-904 (8) of the Stoughton Municipal Code (Public Works 


recommended approval 4-0 on February 18, 2021)     SECOND READING 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/404893157

tel:+16467493129,,404893157

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 


7. O-8-2021- Amending Sec. 2-67 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; Appointments (CACP 


recommended approval 5-0 on March 2, 2021)     SECOND READING 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


8. O- 9-2021- Amending Chapter 78, Zoning Code as follows:  Amend Section 78-611, Repeal and 


Remove Table 78-611 and Repeal and Recreate Appendix B of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


(Plan Commission recommended approval 7-0 on March 8, 2021)   FIRST READING 


 


9. R-31-2021-  Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Danny Senf for Pizza Hut at 1400 US 


Highway 51-138, Stoughton, Wisconsin.  (Site plan dated 3/3/21) (Plan Commission recommended 


approval 7-0 on March 8, 2021) 


 


10. R-32-2021- Review and Approval of the City’s Annual Storm Water Permit Report – WPDES 


Permit No. WI-S058416-4 (Public Works recommended approval on March 18, 2021)  


 


11. R-33-2021- Resolution authorizing the City Finance Director to reclassify $70,000 currently 


Assigned to Liability Loss Insurance in the City’s Fund Balance to Unassigned Fund Balance 


(Finance recommended approval 5-0 on March 9, 2021)  


 


12. R-34-2021- Resolution to forgive the amounts advanced to the City of Stoughton 


Redevelopment Authority from the City of Stoughton totaling $66,574 (Finance 


recommended approval 5-0 on March 9, 2021) 


 


13. R-35-2021- Approval of the Fiber Optic Agreement and Grant of Indefeasible Right of Use 


(IRU) Between the City of Stoughton and TDS Metrocom (Utilities meets March 22, 2021)  


 


14. R-36-2021- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the write-off of 


Stoughton Utilities delinquent account balances and invoices deemed uncollectible as of 


December 31, 2020. (Utilities meets March 22, 2021) 


 


15. R-37-2021- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement 


with Five Star Energy Services, LLC for the 2021 Lead Water Service Replacements 


Contract 4-2021. (Utilities meets March 22, 2021)  


 


16. R-38-2021-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to execute the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources Principal Forgiven Financial Assistance Agreement. 


(Utilities meets March 22, 2021)  


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\01-Landmarks Minutes 2-11-21.docx 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday February 11, 2021 – 6:30 pm 


Virtual 
 


Members Present:  Todd Hubing; Greg Pigarelli, Secretary; Kimberly Cook; Jean Ligocki and 


Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair; Peggy Veregin, Chair and Kristi Panthofer 


Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 


Absent: None  


Guests: Jordan Tilleson; Kathleen Kelly; Joanne Grassman; Mayor Tim Swadley; Michael Collins; 


Sid Boersma; Lisa Reeves; Dale Otradovec and Kristen Zoerner. 


Press: None 


 


1. Call to order.  Veregin called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 
 


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of January 14, 2021.   


Motion by Pigarelli to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Hubing.  Motion carried 6 - 0. 
 
Hedstrom arrived at 6:32 pm. 
 


3. Local Downtown District. 


Veregin explained the intent of the public hearing which is not required and indicated where the 


Commission is at in the Local Downtown District planning process.   


 


Veregin stated we have become aware that the survey used to gather information has been deem 


worthless because it was determined that numerous responses were submitted by one person.  


Stacey stated out of 200 responses at least 105 were from one IP address or one person.  There is 


also indication that the same person used other computers to submit additional negative 


responses. 


 


Veregin opened the public hearing. 


 


Kathleen Kelly spoke in favor of creating the Local Downtown District. 


 


Veregin closed the public hearing. 


 


The Commission will continue with the Local Downtown District planning process. 


 


4. Depot Hill Historic District. 


Veregin explained the intent and process to approve the Depot Hill Historic District.  The initial 


plan is to have a meeting with property owners within the district and discuss what the district 


will mean for them.  


 


Stacey will assist in getting notices out to property owners. 


 


Sid Boersma questioned what the hashed buildings mean.  Veregin stated those were deemed 


non-contributing buildings when the district was first planned.  All buildings would be evaluated 


again to determine which are contributing or non-contributing to the district.  Non-contributing 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


2/11/21 


Page 2 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\01-Landmarks Minutes 2-11-21.docx  


means either the building was altered from its original state or the building was built after the 


historic period that the district represents. 


 


Joanne Grassman, who is interested in purchasing a property within the proposed district spoke 


in favor of creating the district because it may allow her to gain tax credits to update the building. 


 


Veregin stated the plan is to move quickly on this project and we’ll keep Joanne Grassman 


informed of the progress. 


 


5. Discuss creating a new Landmarks Commission website. 


Veregin stated there is a need to get moving on this project. 


 


Stacey stated the City is looking to hire back Derek Westby on a temporary basis and he could 


assist the Commission in creating a website using Squarespace. 


 


The Commission discussed websites such as the RDA and Opera House as examples of the 


direction they could go. 


 


Stacey stated the Commission should have an outline of what they would like so if Derek 


Westby becomes available we’ll be ready. 


 


Ligocki questioned if Derek was involved in creating the RDA website.  Mayor Swadley stated 


he believe he was involved. 


 


6. Historic Preservation Awards. 
Veregin plans to provide a letter to Stacey to mail out to the award recipients.  Veregin would 


like a virtual presentation before a Common Council meeting.  Stacey stated that can be 


achieved.  Ligocki agreed. 


 


7. CLG grant. 


Veregin stated the Commission should find out by Friday Feb 19th if we got the grant. 


 


8. Mini-Grants 2020 and 2021. 
Stacey provided a spreadsheet of the 2020 and 2021 mini-grants.  Ligocki noted $9,000 is slated 


for 2021. 


 


Mayor Swadley suggested providing a summary and pictures for a presentation to Council.  


Veregin agreed. 


 


Veregin to provide Stacey with the 2021 mini-grant letter to be sent to Local Landmark property 


owners. 


 


9. Commission Reports/Calendar.   
Mayor Swadley stated there may be some grant funding available for downtown properties and 


to contact Gary Becker for more information.  Mayor Swadley sent an email to Veregin and 


Stacey with more info. 


 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


2/11/21 


Page 3 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\01-Landmarks Minutes 2-11-21.docx  


10. Future agenda items.   
Depot Hill Historic District; Downtown Local District; Mini-Grants. 


 


11. Adjournment. Motion by Hubing to adjourn at 7:20 pm, 2nd by Hedstrom.  Motion carried  


7– 0. 


 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\02-Plan Minutes  2-8-21.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, February 8, 2021 at 6:00 pm 


Virtual Meeting 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Tom Majewski; Tom 


Robinson; Tom Selsor; and Brett Schumacher 


Members Absent: None 


Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 


Press: None 


Guests: Jim Bricker; Dennis Steinkraus; Kirk Biodrowski; Attorney Rachel Snyder; Attorney Matt 


Dregne; Mackenzie Krumme; Peter Sveum; Rachel Venegas; C. Perret 


 


1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of January 11, 2021. 


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


Caravello stated on January 26th the Common Council approved ordinances 1, 2, and 3 and 


resolutions 7 and 8. 


 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials.  


There were no questions. 


 


5. Request by James and Michelle Gerber for Certified Survey Map (CSM) approval to 


combine the parcels at 404 W. Wilson Street and 900 Bickley Court. 


Scheel explained the request.   


 


Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM resolution as 


presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


6. Request by Kirk Biodrowski for approval of a conditional use permit (CUP) to allow an 


Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (restaurant type use) and for an In-Vehicle Sales and 


Service use (drive-thru) at 1720 US Highway 51-138. 


Scheel introduced the request. 


 


Robinson has concerns about traffic safety and conflicts with the mobile vending use. 


 


Rachel Venegas questioned the ownership of the lots.  Kirk Biodrowski stated the same entity 


owns the Pick and Save lot and the proposed Starbucks lot.  Starbucks will lease the property as 


outlined in the application and packet of materials. 


 


Attorney Dregne gave an overview of the requirements to review/approve a conditional use permit 


application. 


 


Barman stated there is nothing in the ordinance that allows review of a local vs national business 


rather this request is for the evaluation of the coffee use.  Attorney Dregne agrees. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


02/8/21 


Page 2 of 4 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\02-Plan Minutes  2-8-21.docx 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


 Rachel Venegas is in favor of mobile vending for more than 180 days per year. 


 


 Phil Harrison is not opposed to Starbucks if they meet all requirements. 


 


 Kirk Biodrowski is in favor of the request and can answer questions if necessary. 


 


 Rachel Venegas questioned access to the site and how traffic would flow.  Kirk Biodrowski 


explained the route of the drive-thru and the exiting toward the south. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


 


Majewski is concerned about traffic flow and exiting for traffic wishing to head east on Hwy 51. 


 


Kirk Biodrowski stated the previous bank had the same configuration. 


 


The group discussed safety and traffic flow concerns on the adjacent Pick and Save site. 


 


Caravello stated increasing bike parking spots would be a good idea. 


 


The group discussed conditional use vs site plan review and it was determined the site plan is part 


of the conditional use review according to the conditional use requirements within the zoning code 


and as outlined in the resolution. 


 


Attorney Dregne questioned if the Commissioners have enough information from the application to 


make a decision. 


 


Robinson there are not enough signs or arrows directing traffic out of the site. 


 


Barman stated there is not enough evidence to show how traffic would flow out of the site. 


 


Kirk Biodrowski is concerned about what is being required. 


 


Attorney Dregne stated it sounds like a site plan needs to be provided that demonstrates appropriate 


traffic flow.  Attorney Dregne stated the application and CUP packet materials are part of the 


record for the CUP application. 


 


Motion by Majewski to postpone the conditional use request until an updated site plan is provided 


to show the appropriate traffic flow, 2nd by Selsor. 


 


A discussion took place about what the easement allows.  Kirk Biodrowski stated the easement 


agreement gives the right to use any part of the parking lot for access. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


02/8/21 


Page 3 of 4 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\02-Plan Minutes  2-8-21.docx 


 


Mayor Swadley stated the Plan Commission could have a special meeting if necessary to review an 


updated site plan. 


 


Barman stated he would like to see traffic circulation off the Starbucks site including signage and 


potentially striping. 


 


Schumacher stated if available he’d like to see incident rates of accidents on the site and average 


volume of traffic. 


 


Dregne stated the resubmittal should speak to the easement for ingress and egress. 


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


Motion by Barman to postpone the site plan review until the site plan resubmittal for the 


conditional use review, 2nd by Majewski.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


7. Request by KPW LLC for Preliminary Plat approval to re-plat Outlot 1, Block 1 of the KPW 


Meadows Addition.   


Scheel gave an overview of the request. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Majewski stated cul-du-sac’s are discourage by Public Works due to the difficulty to remove snow. 


 


Scheel stated cul-du-sac’s were anticipated within this development and is allowable by ordinance. 


 


Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the preliminary plat resolution as 


presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


8. Request by KPW LLC for rezoning approval of the parcels within the re-plat to Outlot 1, 


Block 1 of the KPW Meadows Addition. 


Scheel gave an overview of the request. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning ordinance as 


presented, 2nd by Barman.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


02/8/21 


Page 4 of 4 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\02-Plan Minutes  2-8-21.docx 


 


 


9. Future agenda items. 


Mobile vending ordinance; Kettle Park West final plat; Starbucks CUP and site plan. 


 


10. Adjournment.  Motion by Majewski to adjourn at 7:23 pm, seconded by Schumacher.  Motion 


carried unanimously. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  Michael P. Stacey 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\03-Plan Minutes  2-24-21-rjs.docx 


Plan Commission Special Meeting Minutes 


Wednesday, February 24, 2021 at 6:00 pm 


Virtual Meeting 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; Tom 


Selsor; and Brett Schumacher 


Members Absent: Tom Majewski 


Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 


Press: None 


Guests: Steve Shulfer; Phil Harrison; C. Perret 


 


1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Request by Kirk Biodrowski for approval of a conditional use permit (CUP) to allow an 


Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (restaurant type use) and for an In-Vehicle Sales and 


Service use (drive-thru) at 1720 US Highway 51-138. 


Mayor Swadley introduced the request. 


 


The following additional items have been provided for consideration: 


 Traffic Review Plan sheet provided on behalf of the applicant that illustrates their 


anticipated traffic flow along with anticipated traffic metrics 


 Existing Cross-Easement Agreement with Covenants and restrictions provided on behalf of 


the applicant 


 Traffic Accident Exhibit provided by Stoughton Police Department 


 A draft Easement Agreement that has been provided on behalf of the applicant 


 Traffic circulation concept provided by Commissioner Barman  


 


Steve Shulfer, representing Starbucks, referenced the provided Traffic Review plan and explained 


how traffic could flow through the site. 


 


Barman provided a traffic circulation plan to explain how he thought traffic could best flow 


through the site including an entrance only in the northeast corner of the Starbucks site.  Barman is 


not in favor of an exit only at the northeast corner because the angle parking for Pick and Save will 


have traffic heading south to that entrance. 


 


Steve Shulfer stated they don’t have a preference and just want the site to be safe for everyone. 


 


Robinson arrived at 6:09 pm 


 


The Commission discussed having an entrance only, exit only or completely closing the access at 


the northeast corner. 


 


Selsor stated he believes the Starbuck proposed traffic flow with the exit only at the northeast 


access point is a good start. 


 


Scheel noted the existing site (proposed Starbucks site) does have enough width between parking 


stalls to allow for two-way traffic. 


 


Robinson stated he drove through the site and found it easy to navigate out to the north from the 


northeast access. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


02/24/21 


Page 2 of 2 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-23-2021\Minutes\03-Plan Minutes  2-24-21-rjs.docx 


 


 


Barman is in favor of the northeast access being either entrance only or closing it off altogether due 


to the Pick and Save parking lot layout. 


 


Caravello stated he is in favor of leaving it exit only and see how it works. 


 


Selsor believes the Starbucks plan is a good plan and Schumacher agrees. 


 


Mayor Swadley likes the Starbucks proposal as presented and believes traffic flow can be revisited 


in the future if necessary. 


 


The Commission discussed the few traffic incidents in that area of US Highway 51 as provided by 


Stoughton Police Department. 


 


The Commission briefly discussed the provided new easement agreement. 


 


Scheel stated any conditional use recommendation should list the reasons for the recommended 


approval. 


 


Motion by Barman to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use resolution 


and to require the northeast access be an entrance only based on Commission deliberation of the 


application, Starbucks Traffic Review plan, traffic accident statistics, the new access easement 


agreement and Commissioner Barman’s traffic circulation concept.  Motion failed for lack of a 


second. 


 


Motion by Selsor to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use resolution as 


presented using the Traffic Review Plan submitted by Starbucks with traffic flow adjustments as 


needed based on Commission deliberation of the application, Starbucks Traffic Review plan, traffic 


accident statistics, the new access easement agreement and Commissioner Barman’s traffic 


circulation concept, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried 6 – 0.  


 


Motion by Barman to approve the site plan resolution as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion 


carried 6 – 0. 


 


3. Adjournment.  Motion by Robinson to adjourn at 6:44 pm, seconded by Caravello.  Motion 


carried unanimously. 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


 


Michael P. Stacey 







 
 
 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Joyce Tikalsky, Mayor Tim 
Swadley and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guests: Dan Schmidt 
 
Meeting called to order at 6:11 pm.  
 


Approval of Minutes from December 15, 2020; 
Motion to approve the Minutes from December 15, 2020 by Hirsch seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Communication; Committee of the Whole meeting February 4th at 6:30.  


Dunkirk Dam District meeting January 20th at 6:00 


 


Directors Report-Director Glynn highlighted updates on High School Baseball light removal and 


potential Osprey nest relocation and the Stoughton Area Youth Center programming  


 
ADA Transition Plan; Dan Schmidt from MSA presented the plan and answered questions. 
Motion by Tikalsky, seconded by Heili to recommend city council accept the plan 
Motion carried unanimously 
 


Rotary Park Project Bids; Director Glynn reviewed the project and bids  
Motion by Hirsch, seconded by Heili to recommend Finance Committee accept the bid and alternative bid 
from Speedway Sand and Gravel and use Park Development Funds to cover the budget gap 
Motion carried unanimously 
 


Yahara Riverfront Project-Riverwalk Design Review; Director Glynn provided an overview of the trail 


system progress on the RDA property 
 


Future Agenda Items  


 
Virgin Lake Trail Designing and Engineering 


Park Design Guidelines/ Acquisition 


Park Impact Fee & Fee in Lieu of Study  


Future Parkland Dedication money uses 


Council Goals 
 
Motion to adjourn by Hirsch seconded by Tikalsky  
Motion carried unanimously at 7:47 pm 







River and Trails Task Force Minutes 
Monday, November 2, 2020 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Present:  Jon Lewis, Jim Wilcox, Sandra Black, Bob Diebel, Joni Dean, Jim Killian, Andrew 
Hoffman, Council Person Phil Caravello, Parks and Recreation Director Dan Glynn. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 


1.  Call to order:  Sandra called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
2. September 14 2020 Minutes: Approved by Jon with a second by Andrew.  Carried. 
3. Communications:  


(a) Single Track Mountain Bike Trail at Lowell Park:  The Capital Off Road Pathfinders is 
asking for help from the River Task Force to create the trail.  Phil stated he may have 
a contact who could help.  This trail would need approval with Parks and Recreation.  
Dan estimates about ½ mile of area for the trail.   


(b) Division Street Park Shoreline Vegetation:  It was assumed someone sprayed Round-
Up in the middle of the shoreline.  Dan did send a letter to the neighbors in the area.  
Discussed using signage or public education about the area for preservation 
including a future article in the Stoughton Hub.  Dan will check with the staff about 
cleaning up the planters in the park for the winter season.   


(c) 51 West Development Park and Trails: Dan shared a map of the Dvorak 
development.  The trail east of Hwy 51 shoud be developed by the end of next year.  
The Task Force discussed the link across Hwy 51 to the west development, which is 
not shown in the plan.   


4.  Yahara Riverfront Project Phase 1 Prelim Design Review-Bridge and Trail:  Dan 
confirmed the DNR grant approval which covers 80% of the bridge cost.  There are two 
separate grants; one for the bridge and one for the trail.  Dan shared a map of the 
proposed trail along the river. If Stoughton Trailers provides an easement, the trail can 
be extended.   


5. Bike Transportation Plan & Map Update Projects;  Dan shared the current map and 
asked for any recommendations for changes which was discussed.  Motion by Phil with a 
second by Sandra to amend our bike route to the changes recommended by the 
Department of Transportation.  Phil has 7 more bike signs to place. 


6. 2021 Committee Goals:   
(a) Nancy asked Sandra to make sure to stay on top of the bike plan and wants signage 


on trails and Division Street Park. 
(b) Andrew agreed to continue working on the Single Track Mountain Bike Trail. 
(c) Bob discussed the trail from Skaalen to Cooper’s Causeway and asked for an update 


on the two homeowners.  Discussed the right of way of the two landowners and 
possibly offering money.  The City Attorney will get involved if the Mill Pond recedes 
and the land opens up.  IKI has agreed to give up land for the trail.  Dan reported 
trying for a county or DNR grant to try and get boardwalk money for that part of the 
trail.   


 







7.   Future Agenda Items:  None. 
 


ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:42 pm by Jim, with a second by Phil. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Joni Dean 







 


 


Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday February 11, 2021 @ 5:00 PM 


Virtual Meeting -  Stoughton, WI 
 
Members Present:  Mitch Bergeson, Mike Point, Kevin Short, Jim Fitzgibbon, Fred Hundt and Dean 
Tangeman 


Absent & Excused:  None 


Staff:    City Forester John Kemppainen and Admin Asst. Jen Wagner 


Guest:  


Call to order:  Bergeson called to order @ 5:03 PM  


 
1) Communications:  


 Bergeson attended Tree City USA and put feelers out for canopy cover within the City to target 
tree location with the grant 


 
2)   Approval of minutes from January 14, 2021 Meeting:  Motion by Tangeman, seconded by Short to 


approve the minutes.  Carried 5-0. 
 


 
3) January Forestry Reports:  Kemppainen stated: 


       


 In-house tree trimming continued in January for the winter season. City staff has been focusing 
on small tree trimming (6” in diameter and less) while a tree trimming contractor will trim larger 
trees. 


 I assisted with snow plowing operations on several occasions in December. 


 I attended (virtually) weekly meetings of the Woody/Ornamentals Species Advisory Group for 
the DNR Invasive Species Council. These meetings are being held to review currently 
regulated trees and shrubs under NR40, and also to assess new species to add to the 
regulated list.  


 I contacted all of the elementary schools in Stoughton to determine which 4th and 5th grade 
classrooms are interested in receiving tree seedlings for Arbor Day this coming April. 
 


 
4) OLD BUSINESS: Discussion on 2021 DNR Grant – Gravel Beds, Outreach and Tree Application & 


Criteria:  Bergeson proposed a list of trees to choose from and tracking for time for Grant  
 


 Kemppainen will make the final decisions on what trees to order based on the grant money from 
McKay Nursery 


 Each member will need to track their time spent on grant work and Bergeson will keep track of 
meeting time spent discussing the grant for each member 


 Trees will need to be ordered by early March from McKay Nursery 


 Required for the grant is to teach people how to properly plant the trees; this will also need to be 
documented 


 Courier Hub is interested in a follow up article on the Grant; get verbiage to them the week before 
in April 


 
 
5)  NEW BUSINESS: Discussion on Arbor Day 2021:   







 


 


 


 Kemppainen will reach out to St. Ann’s to see if they are also interested in participating 


 Will need trees to school on that Thursday and Friday 


 Bergeson suggested we contact St. Ann’s school for Arbor Day trees 
 
6) Future Agenda Items:   


 Canopy Project Update 


 Maintaining Old Trees 


 Verbiage for Hub due in April 
 


  Motion by Bergeson seconded by Short to adjourn the meeting at 6:05 p.m.  Respectfully submitted 2/12/21, Jen Wagner -     


Staff  







FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES  


February 23, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m. 


GoToMeeting  


 


Present: 
Schumacher, Reeves, Doom, Jenson, and Mayor Swadley  


 


Also Present: 
Finance Director Friedl, Clerk Licht, Utilities Director Weiss, and Planning Director Scheel, 


Alder Hundt 


 


Call to Order: 


Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  


 


Communications: 


 


Reports: the following reports were entered into the record.  


 Contingency Report 


 December 2020 Treasurer’s Report 


 January 2021 Treasurer’s Report 


 


COMMITTEE BUSINESS 
 


Approval of the January 26, 2021 Finance Committee Minutes 


Motion by Jenson, second by Doom to approve the January 26, 2021 Minutes. Motion carried 


5-0. 


 


Discussion regarding draft 2020 financial statements and forecasted ending fund 


balance 


Finance Director Friedl highlighted revenues, and expenditures, and COVID-19 lost revenues 


for 2020. Reeve suggested using the unassigned funds for a sinking fund.   


 


Resolution authorizing City staff to forego the small claims process related to the 


amounts owed by BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP and 


write off the remaining balance of $5,344.22 


Motion by Jenson, second by Doom to recommend that council approve a Resolution 


authorizing City staff to forego the small claims process related to the amounts owed by 


BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP and write off the remaining 


balance of $5,344.22. Motion carried 5-0. 


 


Resolution authorizing City staff to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax 


Increment District No. 9 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to recommend that council approve a resolution 


authorizing City staff to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax increment District 


No. 9. Motion carried 5-0. 


 







Discussion and possible action regarding the City collaborating with MadREP, Madison 


Development Corporation and regional Counties and Municipalities to participate in 


funding through the US EDA to establish a Revolving Loan Fund  


MadREP presented the Revolving Loan Fund option for the  City. The committee took no action on 


this item. 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding the timeline and process related to the creation 


of TIF No. 9 and the HWY 51 West project 


The committee did not discuss or take action on this item. It will be back before the 


committee at its March 9, 2021 meeting.  


 


 


 FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 


- Future Treatment of Costs Eligible for Special Assessments 


 


Adjournment: 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to adjourn at 7:00 p.m. Motion carried 5-0.  


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk  


 
 


 





		01-Landmarks Minutes 2-11-21

		02-Plan Minutes  2-8-21

		03-Plan Minutes  2-24-21-rjs

		04-Park  Rec minutes 1-19-2021

		05-River and Trails Task Force Minutes November 2020

		06-TC Min February 11, 2021

		07-February 23, 2021 Finance Minutes






CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 


 


 


 


Date:  March 18, 2021 


 


To:  Finance Committee  


 


From:  Jamin Friedl 


   


Subject: Release of KPW Phase I Municipal Revenue Obligation 


 


The development agreement for the commercial phase of the Kettle Park West development 


entitles the developer to receive a TIF-funding Municipal Revenue Obligation (the “Commercial 


Phase MRO”) to pay the cost of site grading work within that phase, up to $550,000.  When issued, 


the Commercial Phase MRO is payable over the remaining life of the TIF District, without interest.   


 


The Commercial Phase MRO has not yet been issued.  Instead, the developer assigned it to the 


City to secure the developer’s park-dedication related obligations.  The development agreement 


for the residential phase of the Kettle Park West Development required the developer to annex 


about 4 acres of land in the town of Rutland to the City, and to convey that land to the City as an 


addition to the 6.3 acres already dedicated for park purposes.  The Commercial Phase MRO was 


assigned to the City to protect the City in the event the 4 acres is not annexed and conveyed to the 


City. 


 


The annexation of the 4 acre parcel has been completed.  We expect the 4 acres to be conveyed to 


the City shortly.  Once that has occurred, we will issue the Commercial Phase MRO to the 


developer. 


 


This memo is provided for informational purposes only.  No action by the Council is required on 


this matter.  


 


 


Respectfully, 


 


Jamin Friedl 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/






Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, March 9, 2021 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/862656069. You can also dial in 


using your phone: +1 (571) 317-3116 . Access Code: 862-656-069.   


The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and 


Spectrum Channel 981. 


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky 
 


CALL TO ORDER 


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  


 


Roll Call:  


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted there were 12 alders present. 


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record. 


Public Works (1/21/21); Finance (1/26/21); Public Safety (1/27/21); CACP (2/2/21) 


 


Public Comment Period: 


 None 


 


Communications and Presentations  


 Stoughton Chamber of Commerce Presentation 


 


Consent Agenda 


A. February 23, 2021 Council Minutes 


 


Motion by Tikalsky, second by Reeves to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O- 5-2021- An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located within the 


preliminary plat named “Subdivision of Outlot 1, Block 1 – Kettle Park West – The Meadows Addition” 


in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding to SR-5 – Single Family Residential 


Motion by Caravello, second by Hundt to approve O-5-2021An ordinance amending the zoning 


classification of certain lands located within the preliminary plat named “Subdivision of Outlot 


  


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/862656069

tel:+15713173116,,862656069

https://wsto.tv/live





1, Block 1 – Kettle Park West – The Meadows Addition” in the City of Stoughton from RH – 


Rural Holding to SR-5 – Single Family Residential. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


O- 6-2021- Ordinance to create Sections 74-2 (h) and (i) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, 


relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral connections.  


Motion by Jenson, second by Schumacher to approve O-6-2021 Ordinance to create Sections 74-2 


(h) and (i) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect service 


lateral connections. Motion carried 11-0 with Tikalsky abstaining. 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


O-7-2021- Amending Sections 66-904 (8) of the Stoughton Municipal Code  


 


Majewski read O-7-2021 for a first reading. It will be back before the council on March 23rd.  


 


R-24-2021- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton to approve a policy for 


mailbox repair or replacement when damage is inflicted by equipment or personnel of the City of 


Stoughton  


 


Motion by Majewski, second by Reeves to approve R-24-2021 Resolution by the Common Council of 


the City of Stoughton to approve a policy for mailbox repair or replacement when damage is inflicted by 


equipment or personnel of the City of Stoughton. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-25-2021- Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Kirk Biodrowski for property at 1720 US 


Highway 51-138, Stoughton, Wisconsin.  (Site plan dated 2/1/21 and traffic flow plan dated 2/11/21)  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Doom to approve R-25-2021 Approving a Conditional Use Permit 


request by Kirk Biodrowski for property at 1720 US Highway 51-138, Stoughton, Wisconsin.  (Site plan 


dated 2/1/21 and traffic flow plan dated 2/11/21. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-26-2021- Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Jill Patterson to the Opera House Board, Pursuant 


to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. 


 


Motion by Ligocki, second by Caravello to approve R-26-2021 Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment 


of Jill Patterson to the Opera House Board, Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. Motion carried 12-


0. 


 


 


R-27-2021- Resolution urging state legislators to oppose the passage of pending state legislation 


affecting the sale of alcohol 


 







Motion by Jenson, second by Tikalsky to approve R-27-2021 Resolution urging state legislators to 


oppose the passage of pending state legislation affecting the sale of alcohol. Motion carried 11-0 with 


Boersma abstaining.  


 


R-28-2021- Resolution Authorizing City staff to forego the small claims process related to the amounts 


owed by BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP and write off the remaining 


balance of $5,344.22  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-28-2021 Resolution Authorizing City staff to 


forego the small claims process related to the amounts owed by BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE 


Investment Company LLP and write off the remaining balance of $5,344.22. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R- 29-2021- Resolution Authorizing City staff to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax 


Increment District No. 9  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-29-2021 Resolution Authorizing City staff to 


enter into an agreement with Ehlers to create Tax Increment District No. 9. Motion carried on roll call 


vote with Majewski and Heili voting “no”.  


 


R-30-2021- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Approving Additional work 


with True North Consultants for Services related to Environmental Consulting for City & 


Redevelopment Authority (RDA) Lands on Fourth Street and E. South St.  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve. Motion carried 12-0.  


 


O-8-2021- Amending Sec. 2-67 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; Appointments  


 


Heili read O-8-2021 for a first reading. It will be back before the council on March 23rd.  


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Boersma, second by Majewski to adjourn at 8:47 p.m. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Holly Licht, City Clerk  








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-09-2021\08a-Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2021.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Sections 66-904 (8) of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee 


Action:    


Public Works Committee recommends approval  4 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-7 - 2021 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


March 9, 2021 


March 23, 2021 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Sec. 66-904. - Range of required improvements.  
 


 (8) Stormwater drainage facilities. Whenever in the opinion of the director of planning and development 
upon consultation with the city contract engineer there is within reasonable distance a storm sewer 
main, the subdivision or planned unit development shall be provided with a complete stormwater 
management system which shall connect with such main. If the subdivision or planned unit 
development is traversed by any watercourse or channel, stream or creek, either live or dry, the 
subdivider shall dedicate a right-of-way for storm drainage purposes conforming substantially with 
the lines of such natural watercourse or channel, stream or creek or, at the developer's option, 
subject to the approval of the plan commission and the public works committee, provide adequate 
storm drains or other means for the handling of storm flow from and through his property and 
including the conveyance thereof. In general, the entire stormwater management systems and the 
disposal of stormwater shall be planned and built to meet the approval of the director of planning 
and development upon consultation with the city contract engineer.  


Aesthetics shall be taken into consideration in the design of stormwater detention basins. 


Curvilinear rather than rectangular shaped basins shall be used wherever possible. Exposed 


rip-rap shall be kept to a minimum. More extensive areas of rip-rap should be covered with a 


thin layer of topsoil, turf reinforcement, and sod or be covered by water. Fieldstone shall be 


used for rip-rap wherever possible to provide a more natural appearance. Structures shall be 


flush with the ground surface whenever possible. Outlet control structures shall be designed to 


blend into the side slopes of the basin rather than being exposed in the bottom of the basin.  A 


landscaping plan with a minimum of one tree or substantial bush cluster per detention basin side 


or per 100 feet of the perimeter, whichever provides more plantings, is required. A minimum of 


10 feet of level surface between the top of the detention basin slope and adjacent properties is 


desired. 


 


The subdivider shall, at its own cost, construct curbs and gutters, catch basins and inlets, storm 
sewers, road ditches and open channel drainageways as may be required by the city. All such 
facilities are to be of adequate size and grade to hydraulically accommodate maximum potential 
volumes of flow; the type of facility required, the design criteria and the sizes and grades to be 
determined, to present no hazard to life or property; and the size, type and installation of all 
stormwater drains and wastewater or sanitary sewers proposed to be constructed, shall be in 
accordance with the stormwater management plan and the plans and standards specifications  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-09-2021\08a-Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2021.docx 


 


approved by the director of planning and development upon consultation with the city contract 
engineer. Curb and gutter installation may be delayed pursuant to subsection (4). Where such 
installations are delayed, the stormwater to be conveyed by the curb and gutter management 
system shall be maintained by the city at the expense of the developer.  


Subdividers shall refer to the official map for site-specific standards related to the requirements 
of this section.  


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:            


      Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


       Holly Licht, City Clerk 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  February 11, 2021 


 


To:  Public Works Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Stormwater Pond Aesthetics 


 


The Public Works Committee has requested changes to the City regulations regarding the 


aesthetics of large stormwater basins.  We have prepared draft language to begin the discussion.  


It is modeled off regulations in Kenosha.  


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works Committee  2-11-2021- Stormwater Ponds.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Sec. 66-904. - Range of required improvements.  


The following set of improvements shall be constructed within subdivisions or condominium plats 
within the corporate limits of the city, to the specifications provided:  


(1)  Survey monuments. The subdivider or condominium developer shall install survey monuments 
placed in accordance with the requirements of Section 236.15, Wisconsin Statutes, and as the 
director of planning and development may require.  


(2)  Street grading. After the installation of temporary block corner monuments the subdivider or 
condominium developer shall grade all streets proposed to be dedicated in accordance with 
standard specifications approved by the city. The subdivider or condominium developer shall 
grade the roadbeds in the street rights-of-way to subgrade.  


(3)  Street surfacing. After the installation of all utility and stormwater drainage improvements, 
including necessary lateral connections, the subdivider or condominium developer shall surface 
all roadways in streets proposed to be dedicated to the widths prescribed by subsection 66-706. 
The surfacing shall be done in accordance with standard specifications approved by the city.  


(4)  Curb and gutter. Within one year after the installation of all utility and stormwater drainage 
improvements including necessary lateral connections, the subdivider or condominium 
developer shall construct a 30-inch barrier concrete curb and gutter at pavement edges in 
accordance with standard specifications approved by the city. This requirement may be waived 
at the discretion of the city in areas designated for permanent rural use as reflected in the city's 
comprehensive plan. Wherever possible, provisions shall be made at the time of construction 
for driveway access curb cuts. The breaking or cutting of curbs will only be allowed for driveway 
aprons.  


(5)  Sidewalks and multiuse paths. Concrete sidewalks shall be a minimum of five feet in width, and 
shall be required in accordance with the requirements of section 66-712. The construction of all 
required sidewalks, walkways, and multiuse paths shall be in accordance with standard 
specifications approved by the city.  


Subdividers shall refer to the official map for site-specific standards related to the requirements 
of this section.  


(6)  Public sanitary sewerage systems. The subdivider or condominium developer shall construct 
sanitary sewers in such a manner as to make adequate sanitary sewerage service available to 
each lot within the subdivision or condominium plat. The size, type, depth, minimum grade, and 
installation of all sanitary sewers proposed to be constructed shall be in accordance with 
standard specifications approved by the utilities director. The subdivider shall assume the cost 
of installing all wastewater or sanitary sewers 12 inches in diameter or less in size. Proposed 
sanitary sewer lines shall extend to the boundary lines of the tract being subdivided unless 
prevented by topography or other physical conditions or unless, upon consultation with the city 
contract engineer, such extension is not necessary or desirable for the coordination of the 
layout of the subdivision or condominium plat or for the advantageous development of the 
adjacent tracts. The minimum depth at the boundary lines shall be as proscribed by the utilities 
director. The subdivider or condominium developer shall install and complete the installation of 
sewer laterals to the street lot line prior to any paving, curbing or sidewalk construction. The 
subdivider or condominium developer shall assume the cost of installing all sanitary sewers  


(7)  Private sewage disposal systems. If public sewer facilities are not available, the subdivider or 
condominium developer shall make provision for adequate private sewage disposal systems. If 
at the time of final platting, sanitary sewer facilities are not available to the subdivision or 
condominium plat, but will become available within a period of five years from the date of 
recording, the subdivider or condominium developer shall install or cause to be installed 
sanitary sewers and sewer laterals to the street lot line in accordance with this section and shall 
cap all laterals as may be specified by standard specifications approved by the utilities director.  







(8) Stormwater drainage facilities. Whenever in the opinion of the director of planning and 
development upon consultation with the city contract engineer there is within reasonable 
distance a storm sewer main, the subdivision or planned unit development shall be provided 
with a complete stormwater management system which shall connect with such main. If the 
subdivision or planned unit development is traversed by any watercourse or channel, stream or 
creek, either live or dry, the subdivider shall dedicate a right-of-way for storm drainage purposes 
conforming substantially with the lines of such natural watercourse or channel, stream or creek 
or, at the developer's option, subject to the approval of the plan commission and the public 
works committee, provide adequate storm drains or other means for the handling of storm flow 
from and through his property and including the conveyance thereof. In general, the entire 
stormwater management systems and the disposal of stormwater shall be planned and built to 
meet the approval of the director of planning and development upon consultation with the city 
contract engineer.  


Aesthetics shall be taken into consideration in the design of stormwater detention basins. 


Curvilinear rather than rectangular shaped basins shall be used wherever possible. Exposed 


rip-rap shall be kept to a minimum. More extensive areas of rip-rap should be covered with a 


thin layer of topsoil, turf reinforcement, and sod or be covered by water. Fieldstone shall be 


used for rip-rap wherever possible to provide a more natural appearance. Structures shall be 


flush with the ground surface whenever possible. Outlet control structures shall be designed to 


blend into the side slopes of the basin rather than being exposed in the bottom of the basin.  A 


landscaping plan with a minimum of one tree or substantial bush cluster per detention basin 


side or per 100 feet of the perimeter, whichever provides more plantings, is required. A 


minimum of 10 feet of level surface between the top of the detention basin slope and adjacent 


properties is desired. 


The subdivider shall, at its own cost, construct curbs and gutters, catch basins and inlets, storm 
sewers, road ditches and open channel drainageways as may be required by the city. All such 
facilities are to be of adequate size and grade to hydraulically accommodate maximum potential 
volumes of flow; the type of facility required, the design criteria and the sizes and grades to be 
determined, to present no hazard to life or property; and the size, type and installation of all 
stormwater drains and wastewater or sanitary sewers proposed to be constructed, shall be in 
accordance with the stormwater management plan and the plans and standards specifications 
approved by the director of planning and development upon consultation with the city contract 
engineer. Curb and gutter installation may be delayed pursuant to subsection (4). Where such 
installations are delayed, the stormwater to be conveyed by the curb and gutter management 
system shall be maintained by the city at the expense of the developer.  


Subdividers shall refer to the official map for site-specific standards related to the requirements 
of this section.  


(9)  Public water supply facilities. The subdivider or condominium developer shall construct water 
mains in such a manner as to make adequate water service available to each lot within the 
subdivision or condominium plat. The subdivider shall assume the cost of installing all water 
mains 12 inches in diameter or less in size. Proposed water supply lines shall extend to the 
boundary lines of the tract being subdivided unless prevented by topography or other physical 
conditions or unless, in the opinion of the utilities director, such extension is not necessary or 
desirable for the coordination of the layout of the subdivision or condominium plat or for the 
advantageous development of the adjacent tracts. If public water service is not available, the 
subdivider or condominium developer shall make provision for adequate private water systems 
as specified by the city, state, county and/or town. The subdivider or condominium developer 
shall install and complete the installation of all required water laterals to the street lot line prior 
to any paving, curbing or sidewalk construction.  


(10)  Other utilities. The subdivider or condominium developer shall cause gas, electrical power, 
telephone, cable television, and other telecommunications facilities to be installed in such a 







manner as to make adequate service available to each lot in the subdivision or condominium 
plat. No such utility service shall be located on overhead poles. All installations must be 
underground. Plans indicating the proposed location of all utilities required to serve the plat shall 
be approved by the city.  


(11)  Street lights. The subdivider shall fund the installation of street lights along all streets 
proposed to be dedicated of a design compatible with the neighborhood, the type of 
development proposed, and city maintenance costs, as approved by the utilities director. Such 
lights shall be placed at each street intersection and at such interior block spacing as may be 
required by the utilities director.  


(12)  Street signs. The city shall install at the intersection of all streets proposed to be dedicated a 
street name sign of a design specified by the city. The city shall also install regulatory signs 
along all streets as necessary. The subdivider or condominium developer shall be responsible 
for reimbursing the city for all costs associated with the purchase and installation of required 
street name and regulatory signs.  


(13)  Terrace trees. The developer shall install or pay a fee to fund the installation of terrace trees. 
The number of required trees shall be determined using the methodology in section 10-2(5) of 
this Code. If the developer elects to install the required terrace trees, such installation shall be 
done in accordance with a tree planting plan approved by the public works director or their 
designee. The tree planting plan shall specify the number, species and location of required 
trees. If the developer elects to pay a fee to fund the installation of terrace trees, the fee shall be 
calculated using the methodology in section 10-2(6) of this Code.  


(14)  Driveways. Where driveways are to be provided, a concrete apron from all property lines to 
the pavement edge of adjacent streets shall be installed and shall otherwise comply with the 
applicable requirements of the city's municipal code.  


(Ord. No. 0-7-09, 6-23-2009; Ord. No. 0-8-2016, 5-24-2016; Ord. No. 0-5-2018, § 2, 2-13-2018)  







Public Works Committee
Thursday, September 17, 2020
(Virtual Meeting)


Members Present: Tom Majewski, Sid Boersma, Fred Hundt and Mayor Swadley


Absent/Excused: Lisa Reeves


Staff: Public Works Director Brett Hebert and Vickie Erdahl


Guests:


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:10 PM


1) Communications: Hebert reported:


 No large increases were requested in the 2021 Public Works Operating Budget,
however, an additional $3,000 increase was requested for tree planting infill since there
is no more funds in the EAB account.


 A staff position for an Equipment Operator was requested for the Parks Department


2) Approve August 20, 2020 Meeting Minutes: Motion by Boersma seconded by Hundt to
approve the minutes. Motion carried 3-0.


Old Business:


3) Review Rollout of Curbside E-waste Program:


The Public Works Committee approved the program for e-waste to be part of the bulk pick up
for the City and will now be discussed at Council. The electronic pick up can occur twice a
year in place of a regular monthly bulk pick up and must be called in to schedule.


The program will begin on January 1, 2021 at a charge of $6.00/yr. or .50 cents per resident
which will be put on the tax roll.


New Business:


4) Review Council Goals Pertaining to Public Works: Committee reviewed with the goals from
the City Council for 2020. Staff will provide responses to various items pertaining to Public
Works and Planning. Several items were discussed in greater detail see item #’s 5 & 6.


5) Approve the Director of Public Works or Their Designee to Apply for the DNR Urban
Forestry Projects Grant to Purchase Trees to Distribute to Residents to Replace Ash
Trees on Their Property that were removed due to the Emerald Ash Borer:


Hundt addressed the committee regarding the grant in which 40 bare root trees will be
purchased and placed in a gravel bed. In the fall of 2021 these trees will be given to city
residents who have had to remove ash trees on private property to restore canopy coverage.







The funds will be spent from the Tree Commission Donation Fund. Total Cost of the project
of $4,144.60 with half of that cost being reimbursed back to the city by the DNR upon
completion. The city’s share of the project is $2,072.30 with $1,344.60 of that cost being
covered by staff and volunteer time. Therefore, the city portion of the project is $727.70. This
cost will be borne by the Tree Commission Budget, which currently has in excess of $4,800 in
that account.


The grant needs to be submitted by October 1, 2020 to be considered.


Motion by Hundt and seconded by Boersma to move forward with the process and submit
the application for the 2021 Grant to the Department of Natural Resources Grant.


Motion carried 4-0 with the Mayor voting yes.


6) Discuss the creation of a storm water basin design standard: Majewski would like a storm
water basin design standard/ordinance developed for the city stating that he would like the
shape and esthetics of the basins to be more natural.


Scheel stated that the DNR has standards and design criteria in place that could be reviewed.
Hebert stated that the committee should also consider and discuss the maintenance after
installation.


Committee members will research topography and designs for basins and bring the information
to a future meeting.


7) Discussion on the Minimum Terrace Widths for New Developments: Majewski would like a
review of the right-of-way standards and minimum terrace widths. Scheel stated that the
standards were updated in 2009 and in newer subdivisions the terrace widths are substantially
larger along and remember there is a lot of competition for the right-of-way.


A suggestion made was that when designing a new subdivision, terrace widths be determined
by what category the road is (i.e. main or collector street) and a width that can support the
urban forest.


8) Discussion Pertaining to the DOT Inspection of the Jefferson St Pedestrian Bridge: Hebert
stated that as of September 17, 2020 the bridge had been closed until further notice as the State
had deemed the bridge structurally unsafe. The annual inspection report should be received by
next week. At that point Strand can develop a design and costs to either remove or repair the
bridge. Hebert will bring the costs to the committee when available.


The bridge was already in the CIP budget for 2021 to remove or replace. Mayor Swadley
stated that a federal grant had been applied for, however, we did not receive the grant –


 should we apply again in 2021 and put off making a decision for another year?
 Is the bridge even worth repairing?
 Remove and not replace? Majewski stated that the last time this issue was brought up, a lot


of people showed up at the public meeting in support of keeping the bridge
 Get data on usage of the bridge and other similar structures
 Look at another type of grant through the DNR


9) Future Agenda Items: Storm Water Basins, Pedestrian Bridge and Terrace Widths



rjscheel

Highlight







10) Adjourn: Motion to adjourn by Majewski, seconded by Hundt to adjourn the meeting at
6:52 pm. Motion carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl





		08a-Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2021

		08b-Public Works Committee  2-11-2021- Stormwater Ponds-package updated






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Sec. 2-67 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; Appointments 


Committee Action:     


Fiscal Impact:        


File Number: O-8-2021 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


March 9, 2021 


March 23, 2021 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1. Sec. 2-67 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as follows:  


 


         Sec. 2-67. - Appointments. 


Appointments to the standing committees set out in section 2-66 will be comprised of four 


city council members, one from each aldermanic district and up two City of Stoughton 


residents, with the exception of the personnel committee, which will be comprised of four city 


council members, one from each district. Whenever possible, the mayor will appoint a 


member of the previous year's committee as a hold over to insure committee continuity. 


Appointments to standing committees shall be made annually by the mayor at the 


reorganizational meeting of the city council, subject to confirmation by the council.  


Each committee shall elect its own chair and vice-chair at the first meeting following the 


reorganizational meeting. No alderperson shall serve as chair of more than one standing 


committee.  


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:  ______          


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:             


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Right:  0", Space After: 


9.75 pt



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH2AD_ARTIICICO_DIV2CO_S2-66ESMERE





Munis with Citizen Members on Standing Committees


pop 2010 census 12,443 14,390 13,004 17,442 29,441 25,260 12,097 7,009 9,231 8,650 8122


Municipality Ft Atkinson Whitewater Verona Middleton Sun Prairie Fitchburg Waunakee Mt Horeb Oregon McFarland Monona 


City Council 5 7 8 8 8 8 7 7 7 6


CA/CP n/a yes n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a


Finance n/a no no no yes no no n/a no yes yes


Parks & Rec yes yes yes yes yes yes yes yes yes yes yes


Personal n/a n/a no no yes no n/a n/a no yes yes


Public Safety n/a n/a no yes yes no yes n/a no yes yes


Public Works none no no yes yes yes yes n/a no yes yes


Sustaianability


http://www.ci.verona.wi.us/737/Sustainable-Verona


https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/118/Sustainability


https://www.cityofsunprairie.com/1189/Sustainable-Sun-Prairie


https://www.cityofmadison.com/sustainability/sustainPlan.cfm


Fort Atkinson Parks-Six citizen members shall be residents of the city and 1 council member


Whitewater-Community Affairs-The Commission consists of nine members, one of which shall be a council member


Whitewater-Parks-Six citizen members shall be residents of the city or a resident of the Whitewater School District-1 school district, 1 council member, 1 UW Whitewater


Verona Parks-2 community members, 3 alders


Middleton PW-Consists of five citizens (two year term), two alderpersons (one year term), and one alternate (city engineer).


Middleton PS-Consists of five citizens (two year term), two alderpersons (one year term), and one alternate (city engineer).


SP Parks-seven members: one Alderperson, the superintendent of the Sun Prairie Area School District or the Superintendent's designee, and five (5) citizens of recognized experience and qualifications


Fitchburg Parks- The Park Commission shall consist of one alderperson and six citizen members.


Fitchburg Public Works shall be comprised of an alderperson, three residents of the utility district


Waunakee Parks-Three trustees and 4 citizen representatives 


Waunakee PW-Three trustees and 4 citizen representatives 


Waunakee PS-Three trustees and 4 citizen representatives 


Mt Horeb Parks-2 trustees, one of whom shall be appointed by the Village President as chairperson,and 3 citizen members


Oregon Parks-Six citizen members, 1 trustee


McFarland Finance 2 Village Trustees and 3 or more citizen members


McFarland Parks 2 Village Trustees and 3 or more citizen members


McFarland Personal 2 Village Trustees and 3 or more citizen members


McFarland PS 2 Village Trustees and 3 or more citizen members


McFarland PW 2 Village Trustees and 3 or more citizen members





		16a-O-8-2021 Amending Sec 2-67

		16b-Committees



